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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 46th (Forty-Sixth) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of M/s.
Diamines and Chemicals Limited will be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Plot No.
13, PCC Area, P. O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346 on Tuesday, the 28th Day of June, 2022 at 12.00
Noon to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon including the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year
ended on March 31, 2022.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam (DIN: 02205898) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To declare Final Dividend of ` 3/- per Ordinary (Equity) share of ` 10/- each for the financial year 2021-
2022.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification, as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
payment of remuneration of ` 45000/- (Rupees Forty Five Thousand only) (Inclusive of all) plus
applicable taxes, to M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost & Management Accountants, Vadodara (Firm Registration
No. 000339) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.”

5. To approve payment of Remuneration of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-Executive Director in the
category of Professional Director exceeding fifty per cent of the total Remuneration/compensation/
fees payable to all other Non-Executive Director of the Company for the financial year 2022-23

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution, with or without modification, as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including any amendment,
modification, variation or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the
remuneration/compensation/fees payable to Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as a Professional Director for the
financial year 2022-23, which may be exceeding fifty per cent of the total remuneration paid to all other
Non-Executive Directors of the Company for the said period.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds, matters as may be deemed necessary and expedient in this regard.”

6. Re-appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya (DIN: 07048046) as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass following Resolution, with or without modification, as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Act and applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as may be in force from time to time, Mrs. Kejal
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Pandya (DIN: 07048046), Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, whose present term
of office as an Independent Director expires on April 26, 2023 has given her consent for the re-
appointment, whose appointment has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act and the applicable Regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time and who is eligible for reappointment,
be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company to hold
office for second term of five consecutive years with effect from  April 27, 2023 to April 26, 2028 and
whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things including filings and take steps as may be deemed
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution and matters incidental thereto.”

Place : Vadodara By Order of the Board
Date : May 11, 2022
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
REGISTERED OFFICE:
Plot No.13, PCC Area, Hemaxi Pawar
P.O. Petrochemicals, Company Secretary
Vadodara –391 346 Membership No.: A52581

  

N O T E S:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and January 13, 2021 & May 05, 2022 (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”) has allowed to hold Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without
the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. However, the Company prefers to hold
Annual General Meeting physically at the Registered Office of the Company on June 28, 2022.

2. The Explanatory Statement, for Item No. 4 to 6 pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, is
annexed hereto and forms part of this notice. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, of persons seeking
appointment / re-appointment as Directors under Item No. 2, 5 & 6 of the Notice, are also annexed.

3. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.
THE PROXY FORM MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
GIVEN HEREUNDER, NOT LESS THAN 48 (FOURTY-EIGHT) HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. A
PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING
IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 10 (TEN) PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10 (TEN)
PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR
ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant
to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of
the Board Resolution authorizing their representative together with specimen signatures of their
authorized representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting to the Registered office of
the Company.
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5. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from June
21, 2022 to June 28, 2022 (both days inclusive).

6. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their duly filled attendance slip along with their copy of
annual report to the Meeting, for attending the Meeting.

7. Members, who hold shares in dematerialization form, are requested to bring their depository account
number for identification.

8. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

9. Relevant documents, reports, orders, notice or other papers referred to in the accompanying Notice
are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days,
between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. up to the date of Annual General Meeting. Members seeking to
inspect such documents can send advance intimation by writing request letter at least 48 hours of
Inspection.

10. Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable from time to time, the
amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of its
transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company is required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government. The Company has not declared
any dividend in FY 2013-14 to 2015-16, so no dividend is due for Transferring amount to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government is not applicable in FY 2021-22.

Further, Members who have not claimed their dividend from the financial year 2016-17 till date are
requested to claim their unclaimed dividend. Members who have not en-cashed their above Dividend
Warrants/DDs may approach to the Company/RTA immediately for revalidation. 

11. To avoid loss of dividend warrants/DDs in transit and undue delay in respect of receipt of dividend
warrants/DDs, the Company has provided a facility to the Members for remittance of dividend through
the National Electronic Clearing System (NECS)/National Automated Clearing House (NACH). It is in
Members interest to avail NECS/NACH facility as it is quick and much convenient way of getting
dividend directly in your bank account. Members desirous of availing NECS/NACH facility are
requested to submit bank particulars in ECS Mandate Form to the company’s Registrar and share
Transfer Agent. The format is available on the website of the Company at www.dacl.co.in or update
bank details as mentioned in point no.14 of Notes.

12. As per Section 124(6) of the Act read with the IEPF Rules as amended, all the shares in respect of
which dividendhas remained unpaid / unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more have been
transferred to the IEPF Account.

13. In the event of transfer of shares and the unclaimed dividends to IEPF, members are entitled to claim
the same from IEPF by submitting an online application in the prescribed Form IEPF-5 available on the
website www.iepf.gov.in and sending a duly signed physical copy of the same to the Company along
with the requisite documents enumerated in Form IEPF-5. Members can file only one consolidated
claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules.

14. As per Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021, and
clarification vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14,
2021 issued by SEBI, on Common and Simplified Norms for processing Investor’s Service Request by
RTAs.

SEBI vide these Circulars have mandated the furnishing of PAN, Address with PIN code, Email address,
Mobile No., Bank Account details, Specimen Signature &  Nomination by holders of physical securities
and that from January 1, 2022, RTAs shall not process any service requests or complaints received
from the holder(s)/claimant(s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination documents/details etc. are received. The
Company has sent reminders to the physical holders whose mandatory details are yet to be updated.
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The folios wherein any one of the cited document / details are not available on or after April 01, 2023,
shall be frozen by the RTA. The RTA shall revert the frozen folios to normal status upon,

a) receipt of all the aforesaid documents / details mentioned as above or

b) dematerialization of all the securities in such folios

Members holding shares in physical form shall submit mandatory details to Company’s Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent or to the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company. Requisite
forms are also available on website of the Company www.dacl.co.in and website of RTA https://
linkintime.co.in/

15. Members are requested to notify immediately:

(a) Any change in their residential address.

(b) Income-tax Permanent Account Number (PAN).

(c) Bank details – Name and address of the bank; A/c No.; type of A/c

(d) Nomination Details

(e) Email ID & Mobile Number

(f) Specimen Signature

16. Non-Resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform the Company immediately:

(i) The change in the Residential Status on return to India for permanent settlement;

(ii) The particulars of NRE Bank Account maintained in India with complete name and address of the
Bank, if not furnished earlier.

17. Members seeking any information or clarification relevant to the Financial Statement of the Company,
can send written request to the Company, at least ten days before the date of the Annual General
Meeting. Replies will be provided in respect of such queries received only at the meeting.

18. Members are requested to address their communications regarding transfer of shares in Demat,
change of address, dividend mandates, etc. quoting their folio number(s) to the Company’s Registrar
& Transfer Agent:

M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
B-102 & 103, Shangrila Complex, First Floor,
Opp. HDFC Bank, Near Radhakrishna Char Rasta,
Akota, Vadodara – 390 020.
Te. (0265) 2356573, 6136000/01
Email: vadodara@linkintime.co.in

19. The Company will not entertain any direct request from Members for deletion/change in the bank
account details furnished by Depository Participants to the Company.

20. SEBI, vide its Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018, amended Regulation 40
of SEBI Listing Regulations pursuant to which after March 31, 2019 transfer of securities could not be
processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at the earliest as it will
not be possible to transfer shares held in physical mode as per extension of the deadline announced
by SEBI.

21. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the
same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, for consolidation into a single folio. The share certificates will be returned to the members after
making requisite changes thereon.

22. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding shares in physical form may file
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nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In
respect of shares held in Demat form; the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository
Participant.

23. The Company has made bonus issue of equity shares at the AGM held on July 12, 2011, and has made
an allotment of Bonus shares on July 21, 2011 to the shareholders, who were eligible. Pursuant to
Clause 5(A) of the erstwhile Listing agreement, shares which are unclaimed after necessary reminders
given to the shareholders have already been credited to “Demat Suspense Account”. Hence, the
Company requests such shareholders, who have not yet claimed such bonus shares, that they
communicate the Company’s RTA and claim such shares at their end.

24. As per sub clause F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2015 the Company shall disclose the following details in its Annual Report, as long as there are shares
in the suspense account:

(i) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the beginning of the year; 96 Shareholders & 3303 shares

(ii) Number of shareholders who approached issuer for transfer of shares from suspense account
during the year: NIL

(iii) Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the
year: NIL

(iv) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at
the end of the year; 96 Shareholders & 3303 shares

(v) That the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares.

Further, The Company is in process of transferring Bonus Fraction amount to Investor Education and
Protection fund.

25. In line with the measures of Green Initiative, Companies Act, 2013, provides for sending notice of the
meeting along with annual report to the Members through electronic mode. Members holding shares
in physical mode are requested to register their e-mail Id’s with the Company/RTA/as procedure
mentioned in point no.-14 of Notes. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to
register their e-mail Id’s with their respective DPs. If there is any change in the e-mail id already
registered with the Company/RTA, Members are requested to immediately notify such change to the
Company/RTA in respect of shares held in physical form and to DPs in respect of shares held in
electronic form.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, and Regulation 44 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2015, the Company has fixed June 21, 2022 as the “cut-off date” to determine the eligibility to vote by
electronic means or in the general meeting. A person whose name is recorded in the register of “remote e-
voting” (e-voting from a place other than venue of the AGM), to enable them to cast their votes at the 46th

Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the business at the 46th AGM may be transacted through such voting.
The Company has entered into an agreement with M/s Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL) for facilitating
e-voting to enable all its Shareholders to cast their vote electronically.

The facility for voting, either through electronic voting system or ballot/polling paper shall also be made
available at the venue of the AGM, apart from the remote e-voting facility provided prior to the date of AGM.
The members attending the meeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be
able to exercise their voting rights at the meeting. The members who have already cast their vote by remote
e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at
the AGM.
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The Company has appointed Mr. Sandip Sheth (Mem No. 5467) or failing him Mr. Prashant Prajapati (Mem
No. 32597) of M/s. Sandip Sheth & Associates, the firm of Company Secretaries in whole time practice, as
the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent
manner. The Scrutinizer shall make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, during the remote e-voting and voting at the AGM, not later than  48 hours from the conclusion
of the meeting, to the Chairman or a person, authorised by him in writing. The Chairman or a person,
authorised by him in writing, shall declare the results of the AGM forthwith. The results declared along with
the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the Company’s website and on the website of LIIPL and shall be
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

1. In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the
Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services
provided by LIIPL, on all resolutions set forth in this Notice.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

- The voting period begins on June 24, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. and ends on June 27, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. During
this period, shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date of June 21, 2022, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by Link Intime India Private Limited for voting thereafter.

- Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:  (EVENT NO. 220136)

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode can register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals
directly from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login”” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter
your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

2. If you are not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

2. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password.
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL
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for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/
login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will
have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be
redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number and
PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

3. Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-Individual
Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link
Intime as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -

A. User ID:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered
with the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall
provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided
to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP /
Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your
DP/Company.

* Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide
their Folio number in ‘D’ above

* Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

- Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least
one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one
capital letter).

- Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).
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3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.

4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.

2. E-voting page will appear.

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’
(If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and
accordingly modify your vote.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on
the e-voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian /
Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board
resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the
Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending
a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holding securities in sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
demat mode with NSDL 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
holding securities in sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
demat mode with CDSL 23058738 or 22- 23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or
Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting
website of Link Intime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

o Click on‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc.
as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No
+ Folio Number registered with the Company
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password:

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

✒ It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

✒ For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

✒ During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on
the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Other Instructions:

i. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, June 24, 2022 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Monday,
June 27, 2022 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on June 21, 2022, may cast their vote electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime India Private Limited for voting thereafter. Once the vote
on a resolution is cast by the Member, he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

ii. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital
of the Company as on June 21, 2022.

iii. Members who do not have access to e-voting facility may send duly completed Ballot Form (enclosed
with the Annual Report) so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company, Mr. Sandip Sheth, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. FCS 5467), at the
Registered Office of the Company not later than Tuesday, June 21, 2022 (5.00 p.m. IST). Members
have the option to request for physical copy of the Ballot Form by sending an e-mail to
secretarial@dacl.co.in by mentioning their Folio / DP ID and Client ID No. However, the duly completed
Ballot Form should reach the Registered Office of the Company not later than Tuesday, June 21, 2022
(5.00 p.m. IST). Ballot Form received after this date will be treated as invalid.

A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member casts
votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as
invalid.

iv. The Route Map to the venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed herewith this Notice.

Place : Vadodara By Order of the Board
Date : May 11, 2022
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
REGISTERED OFFICE:
Plot No.13, PCC Area, Hemaxi Pawar
P.O. Petrochemicals, Company Secretary
Vadodara –391 346 Membership No.: A52581
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

ITEM NO. 2:

Mr. Govindarajapuram Seshadri Venkatachalam aged about 67 years, possesses Bachelor’s degree in
Commerce from Mumbai University and also he is a Chartered Accountant, having more than 30 years of
experience in his core area of Competence i.e. Accounts & Finance. He is with company since 2008 as an
Independent Director of the Company and later appointed as an Executive Director with effect from February
07, 2015 and also re-appointed with effect from February 07, 2018 & February 07, 2021 for the period of 3
years each respectively. Prior to this he has worked in various companies which exposed him to different
corporate cultures and thus has enriched his profile on understanding of human behavior and different
business practices.

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam holds 13,684 equity shares in the Company. He holds designated partnership in
the following companies;

Divya Desh Tour & Travels LLP

Holidaywalas.com Travel LLP

It will be in the interest of the Company that Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam continues as Director of the Company.
He is interested in this resolution since it relates to his reappointment.

Resolution placed at item no. 2 of the notice is recommended for approval of the Shareholders as ordinary
resolution.

No Director, key managerial personnel or their relatives, except Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam, to whom the
resolution relates, are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

ITEM NO. 4: Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee approved the
appointment and remuneration of M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost & Management Accountants, to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2023.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of The
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified
by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the year 2022-23 as set out in the Resolution for the aforesaid services to
be rendered by them.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the passing of this resolution. None of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, is in any way concerned or interested in the said
resolution.

ITEM NO. 5 : Payment of Remuneration of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-Executive Director in the
category of Professional Director exceeding fifty per cent of the total Remuneration/compensation/
fees payable to all other Non-Executive Director of the Company

In terms of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 listed entity is required to obtain the approval of members of the Company by way of
Special Resolution for payment of remuneration to a single non-executive director exceeding 50% of the
total remuneration payable to all non-executive directors. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra was an independent
Director of the company and he was holding this position in the company since March 14, 2001. He is a
Practicing Chartered Accountant. Mr. Chhabra has vast knowledge in the field of Accounts and Finance.
During his tenure since 2001, he has played very active and significant role in setting up the complete
transparency and integrity in finance functions of the Company and hence to get the benefit of his vast
experience and strategic guidance, the Board of Directors has appointed him as a Professional Non-
Executive Directors for the period of three years with effect from November 06, 2020, for immense benefit to
the Company.
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The Company pays him consultation fees upon raising invoice on monthly basis which may be mutually
decided by the Board and Mr. Rajendra Chhabra and payment of such consultation fees may be exceeding
fifty percent of the total commission/remuneration/compensation payable to all non-executive Directors of
the Company for the financial year 2022-23, requiring approval of members in terms of aforesaid provision.

It is therefore resolutions as contained in Item Nos. 5 are proposed for the approval of shareholders by way
of special resolutions. The Board recommends the resolutions for the approval of Members of the Company.

None of the Directors except Mr. Rajendra Chhabra, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof, are
in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolutions.

ITEM NO. 6: Re-appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

Mrs. Kejal Padya was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company by the members
at the 42nd AGM of the Company held on August 06, 2018 for a period of five consecutive years commencing
from April 27, 2018.

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of upto five consecutive
years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a special resolution
by the Company for another term of upto five consecutive years on the Board of a Company.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in terms of the provisions of
Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mrs. Kejal Pandya, being eligible
for re-appointment as an Independent Director and offering herself for re-appointment, is proposed to be re-
appointed as an Independent Director for second term of five consecutive years from April 27, 2023 upto
April 26, 2028.

The Company has received declaration from her stating that she meets the criteria of Independence as
prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Regulation
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time
to time. She has also given her consent to continue to act as Director of the Company, if so appointed by the
members.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Kejal Pandya fulfils the conditions specified under Section 149 (6) of the
Act, the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable Regulation
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time
to time, for her reappointment as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and is independent
of the management. Copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as an Independent Non-
Executive Director setting out terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the
members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours (9:00 am to 5:00 pm) on
any working day, except Saturday, upto and including the date of AGM of the Company.

The Board considers that her continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is
desirable to continue to avail services of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as an Independent Director. Accordingly, the
Board recommends passing of the Special Resolution in relation to re-appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as
an Independent Director for another term of five consecutive years with effect from April 27, 2023 upto April
26, 2028, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

A brief profile of the Independent Director to be re-appointed is given below:

Mrs. Kejal Pandya (DIN: 07048046)

Mrs. Kejal Pandya, aged 49 years is a Chartered Accountant and a partner at Maloo Bhatt & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Vadodara. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India having
Membership No. 106270.

She has rich experience of more than 20 years in the areas of audits, Direct and Indirect Taxes with special
interest in Information System and internal Controls. Her experience includes consultancy for Software
Development for US and Indian Accounting, Taxation, Sales tax, Payroll, Inventory, billing, Education ERP.
She has given presentations at various forums on Audit and Taxation.
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She was associated with the Baroda Branch of ICAI as faculty for ITT batches for CA students. She was a
member of Managing Committee of Baroda Branch of ICAI during 2013-2016. She was Partner at CNK
Associates & LLP from 2014 to 2019.

Mrs. Kejal Pandya does not hold Equity shares in the company. She is also on the Board of the Garima
System Solutions Private Limited.

Except Mrs. Kejal Pandya, being an appointee and her relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice of the AGM. Mrs. Kejal Pandya is not related to
any Director of the Company.

Place : Vadodara By Order of the Board
Date : May 11, 2022
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
REGISTERED OFFICE:
Plot No.13, PCC Area, Hemaxi Pawar
P.O. Petrochemicals, Company Secretary
Vadodara –391 346 Membership No.: A52581

ROUTE MAP:-
Venue to the 46th AGM of the Company

Diamines And Chemicals Limited
Chemical Manufacturer

Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemical, Vadodara, Gujarat 391346

dacl.co.in

0265 353 4200
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BOARD'S REPORT
To the Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 46th Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022.

1.     Financial Results:

The Company’s financial performances for the year under review along with previous year’s figures are
given hereunder:

Financial Results (` ` ` ` `  in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021

Net Sales and Other Income 6,792.85 6,536.95 6,792.85 6,536.95

Profit before Finance costs and Depreciation 2,386.06 2,770.48 2,385.07 2,766.60

Expenses    
Finance cost 8.55 7.54 8.55 7.54
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 166.80 178.55 166.80 178.55

Profit from ordinary activities
before Tax Expense 2,210.71 2,584.39 2209.72 2580.51

Tax expense    
Current tax 575.56 695.55 575.56 695.55
Tax Related to earlier years 11.37 (117.11) 11.37 (117.11)
Deferred tax (48.57) (97.42) (48.57) (97.42)

Net Profit from ordinary activities after tax 1,672.35 2,103.37 1,671.36 2,099.49

Other comprehensive income /(expense)
(net of tax) 326.16 294.08 326.16 294.08

Total comprehensive income for the period 1,998.51 2,397.45 1,997.52 2,393.57

Net Profit / (loss) attributable to    
a) Owners of the Company - - 1,671.36 2,099.49
b) Non controlling interest - - - -

Other comprehensive income attributable to    
a) Owners of the Company - - 326.16 294.08
b) Non controlling interest - - - -

Total comprehensive income attributable to    
a) Owners of the Company - - 1,997.52 2,393.57
b) Non controlling interest - - - -

Balance of profit brought forward 6,748.28 5,037.98 6,744.40 5,037.98

Dividend     
Dividend (Final) (489.16) (365.67) (489.16) (365.67)
Tax on Dividend (Final) - (25.66) - (25.66)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - -

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 7,947.32 6,748.28 7,942.45 6,744.40

Basic & diluted earning per equity share on
Net profit from ordinary activities after tax
(face value `̀̀̀̀ 10/- each) (In `̀̀̀̀) 17.09 21.50 17.08 21.46
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2. Dividend
Dividend paid during the year ended March 31, 2022 include an amount of ` 5/- per equity share
towards final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021 on 9783240 equity shares of ` 10/- each.
The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of ` 3/- per Ordinary share on 9783240 ordinary
shares of ` 10/- each for the year ended on March 31, 2022. The Dividend for the year ended March 31,
2022 is subject to the approval of members at the Annual General Meeting on June 28, 2022 and will be
paid within statutory time period, if approved by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

3. Transfer to Reserves
Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has not proposed
to transfer any amount to general reserves account of the company during the year under review.

4. Review of Business Operations, performance highlights and Future Prospects
Your Directors wish to present the details of Business operations done during the year under review:
Standalone:
Total income for the year 2021-22 was registered at ` 6,792.85 lakhs as compared to income of `
6,536.95 lakhs for the year 2020-21
Net profit after tax was ` 1672.35 lakhs as compared to ` 2,103.37 lakhs in previous financial year.
Sales volumes for the year 2021-22 were at 1915.59 MT as compared to 2296.19 MT for the year 2020-21.
Consolidated:
Consolidated total income for the financial year 2021-22 stood at ` 6,792.85 lakhs. While net profit /
(loss) after tax reported at ` 1671.36 lakhs.

5. Investor Education And Protection Fund (IEPF)

a) details of the transfer/s to the IEPF made during the year as mentioned below:
(i) amount of unclaimed/unpaid dividend and the corresponding shares; - the Company had

not declared any Dividend during FY 2014-15. There is no unclaimed Dividend amount due
for transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund

(ii) redemption amount of preference shares; - Not Applicable
(iii) amount of matured deposits, for companies other than banking companies, along with

interest accrued thereon; - Not Applicable
(iv) amount of matured debentures along with interest accrued thereon; - Not Applicable
(v) application money received for allotment of any securities and due for refund along with

interestaccrued; - Not Applicable
(vi) sale proceeds of fractional shares arising out of issuance of bonus shares, merger and

amalgamation; - Not Applicable

b) details of the resultant benefits arising out of shares already transferred to the IEPF; - Dividend on
shares, which are transferred to IEPF, has been also transferred to IEPF.

c) year wise amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend lying in the unpaid account upto the Year and the
corresponding shares, which are liable to be transferred to the IEPF, and the due dates for such
transfer;

Year unpaid/unclaimed Date of Due date Due date of Transfer
dividend lying in Declaration of of Dividend of corresponding

the unpaid account Dividend in Transfer shares to IEPF
AGM / Board to IEPF

2016-17 394071/- 20-Jul-17 23-Sep-24 23-Oct-24
2017-18 541002/- 06-Aug-18 10-Sep-25 10-Oct-25
2018-19 (Interim) 1069185/- 26-Oct-18 30-Dec-25 29-Jan-26
2018-19 (Final) 392734/- 09-Aug-19 13-Oct-26 12-Nov-26
2019-20 (Interim) 742636/- 04-Feb-20 09-Apr-27 09-May-27
2019-20 (Final) 638865/- 04-Sep-20 08-Nov-27 08-Dec-27
2020-21 591888/- 20-Jul-21 23-Sep-28 22-Oct-28
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d) the amount of donation, if any, given by the company to the IEPF; - Not Applicable

e) such other amounts transferred to the IEPF, if any, during the year. - Not Applicable

6. Material Changes And Commitment, if any, affecting the Financial Position of the Company occurred
between the end of the Financial Year to which this financial statements relate and the date of the
report

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the
Financial Statements relate and the date of this Report.

7. Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year, pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual Report,
attached herewith as “ANNEXURE-A”.

8. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange Earnings
and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is furnished in ANNEXURE – B and is attached to this report.

Your Company understands and appreciates the responsibility and importance of conservation of
energy and continues to put efforts in reducing or optimizing energy consumption for its operations.

Your Company is continuously monitoring and taking measures for conservation of energy such as:

- Reduction in steam consumptions by improving insulation, electricity by installing LED lamps and
high efficiency motors for new installation and cooling water by debottlenecking of various operations

- Improvement in the yields and planned increase in throughput

- Improved steam condensate recovery by installing new designs of traps and monitoring trap
performance

- Utilization of by-products steams

9. Safety, Health And Environment:

a) Safety and Process Safety :

Safety and process safety appointed qualified EHS professional to implement process safety in
operations. The Company encourages a high level of awareness of safety issues among its
employees and strives for continuous improvement. All incidents are analysed in the safety
committee meetings and corrective actions are taken immediately. Employees are trained in safe
practices to be followed at work place.

The Company has planned Hazard and Operability Analysis (HAZOP) for new installation and
current operations to improve process safety. The Company works on designing and implementing
effective safety management system to improve safety in operations.

Safety promotional activities such as celebration of National Safety day, arranging poster competition,
slogan competition and prize distribution are conducted every year to encourage safety culture.
Company also conducts Mock drill regularly on quarterly basis and outcome of Mock drill is analyzed
and necessary improvements are implemented regularly. Company also makes continuous efforts
to increase Safety awareness with regular and contractual employees and workers. Team of First
Aiders are trained and certified as part of emergency Management Crew.

b) Health:

Your Company attaches utmost importance to the health of its employees. Periodic checkup of
employees is done to monitor their health. Company also has Occupational Health Center open for
24 hours, and Ambulance facility at its Manufacturing site. Health related issues if any are discussed
with visiting Medical Officer. Company also has a tie up with one hospital in the City to provide
timely medical assistance to the employees/workers in case of emergencies. The Company has
started annual health checkup of job Contractors for ensuring fitness during work.
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c) Environment:

Company always strives hard to give importance to environmental issues in normal course of
operations. Adherence to Environmental and pollution control Norms as per Gujarat Pollution
Control guidelines is of high concern to the Company. The Company is also signatory to “Responsible
Care”, a voluntary initiative of International Council of Chemical association (ICC) being implemented
by Indian Chemical Council to safely handle the products from inception in research laboratory
through manufacturing and distribution to utilization, reuse, recycle and finally their disposal.

d) Renewable Source of Energy:

During the year, the Company has sold ownership of 2 Wind power projects/Windmills, K 495 & K
436 (1250 KW each) situated at Gut No. 97 Village Bhone, Taluka Nandurbar, District Nandurbar,
Maharashtra and Gut No. 46/P of Village Chakala, Taluka Nandurbar, District Nandurbar,
Maharashtra respectively, on slump Sale basis to M/s Siva Electric Generation Private Limited
(SEGPL) w.e.f. January 01, 2021. Your Company is having Wind Turbine Generators (WTG) of total
0.75 MW Capacity as on March 31, 2022 at Shikarpur, Kutch, Gujarat.

10. Cash Flow and Consolidated Financial Statements:-

As required under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a Cash Flow Statement is part of the Annual
Report. The Company has its wholly Owned Subsidiary named DACL Fine Chem Limited, incorporated
in previous year on 30.07.2020 and required to publish Consolidated Financial Statements.

11. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives and Policy

The Company believes in contributing to harmonious and sustainable development of society and that
a company’s performance must be measured not only by its bottom line but also with respect to the
social contributions made by the company while achieving its financial goals. During the year, the CSR
Expenditure incurred by the company was ` 57.00 Lakhs in the area of Education, Health and
Environment. The CSR policy of the Company may be accessed on the Company website at the link:
https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/CSR.pdf. The Annual Report on CSR Activities is annexed herewith
as ANNEXURE – C.

12. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

Your Company made investment in Equity shares of other Company during the years for the purpose of
generation of additional surplus income. The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made
under Section 186 are furnished in ANNEXURE-D and are attached to this report. Details of the loans
and investments made by your Company are also given in the notes to the financial statements.

13. Material Orders Passed by Regulatory/Court:

There were no significant and material orders passed by any regulators and/or courts and tribunals
which may have the impact on the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

14. Internal Financial Controls:

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down adequate internal financial controls which are
operating effectively. The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations. During the year, policies and procedures are adopted by the Company
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of its frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparations of reliable financial information.
The scope of Internal Audit is well defined in the organization. The Internal Audit report regularly placed
before the Audit Committee of the Board. The Management monitors and evaluates the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies. Based on the report of Internal Auditors, process owners undertake corrective
action in their respective areas and thereby strengthening the controls continuously. Significant audit
observations, if any, and corrective actions suggested and taken are presented to the Audit Committee
of the Board.



18

Diamines And Chemicals Limited
CIN NO:L24110GJ1976PLC002905

15. Particulars of Contracts or arrangements made with Related Parties:

All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Regulation 23 of the SEBI, (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and do not
attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters,
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All other Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also
the Board for approval. The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related
party transactions is uploaded on the Company’s website https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/
RPT_Policy.pdf

Since, there were no materially significant Related Party transaction during the year under review, the
details, required in AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

16. Explanation or Comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made
by the Auditors and Practicing Company Secretary or Cost Auditor in their reports:

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made either by the Statutory Auditors or
by the Practicing Company Secretary or Cost Auditor in their respective reports.

17. Annual Return

TIn accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the copy of Annual Return pursuant to the
provisions of Section 92 (3) in prescribed format is available on https://www.dacl.co.in/upload/PDF/
Draft%20Annual%20Return%202021-2022%20(MGT-7)_637888802198711018.pdf

18. Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under review:

The Company had 6 (Six) Board meetings during the financial year. During the year under review,
Board Meetings were held respectively on May 18, 2021, June 16, 2021, August 11, 2021, October 29,
2021, December 28, 2021 and February 09, 2022. Your Directors confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, applicable provisions related to Secretarial Standards on the Meetings of the
Board of Directors, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central
Government, have been complied with. The details of attendance at the Board Meetings is stated herein
below for each Director and the details of attendance at Annual General Meeting for each Director
along with their other Directorships is stated in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Report. :

Sr. No. Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings attended (Total 6 held)
1. Mr. Amit M. Mehta 6/6

2. Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 4/6

3. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 6/6

4. Dr. Ambrish Dalal 6/6

5. Mr. Dhruv Mehta 6/6

6. Mrs. Kejal Pandya 6/6

19. Directors Responsibility Statement:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) read with 134 3(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement that:—

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
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state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.-and

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

20. Subsidiary/Associate Company/Joint venture its Performance & Financial Position:

During the previous year, Company had incorporated a Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) Company
named DACL Fine Chem Limited, on July 30, 2020 and holding has 2,00,000 equity shares constituting
100% of the paid-up equity share capital of DACL Fine Chem Limited as on March 31, 2022.

During the year under review, Company has incorporated a Company namely KLJ Organic Diamines
Limited in collaboration with another shareholder company. This entity has been formed with an intention
to classify the same as Joint Venture/Associate after finalisation of definitive terms and conditions with
other shareholder company. Pending above, the investment in said company has been recognised and
measured under Ind AS 109.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013, DACL Fine Chem Limited is the
100% wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and KLJ Organic Diamines Limited is intended Associate/
Joint venture Company. For the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the DACL Fine Chem Limited and
KLJ Organic Diamines Limited have not started its commercial activity yet.

The Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/
joint ventures (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014), Form AOC-1 is annexed as ANNEXURE I.

In terms of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated financial statements of the
company and its subsidiaries prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 and 111 as specified in the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, forming part of the annual report. In accordance
with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements and related information
of the company and its subsidiaries, wherever applicable, are available on the company’s website:
www.dacl.co.in. These are also available for inspection during regular business hours at our registered
office in Vadodara, Gujarat, India.

21. Deposits:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits falling within the purview of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time, during the year under review and therefore details mentioned in Rule 8(5)(v)& (vi) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act is not
required to be given.

22. Directors:

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam was re-appointed as an Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. February 07,
2021, for the period of 3 years and eligible for retire by rotation.

None of the Directors is disqualified for appointment/re-appointment under Section 164 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Certificate issued by the practicing Company Secretary relating to non-disqualification of
Directors is also attached herewith as “ANNEXURE G”. As required by law, this position is also reflected
in the Auditors’ Report. The composition of the Board, meetings of the Board held during the year and
the attendance of the Directors there at have been mentioned in the Report on Corporate Governance
in the Annual Report.
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23. Declarations of Independent Directors:

All the Independent Directors have submitted their declaration to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to
be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant rules. The Board hereby confirms that all the Independent directors have registered themselves
with Independent Directors Database. Out of three Independent Directors, one Independent Directors is
exempted from the Proficiency test as per Exemption criteria and one Independent Director has been
cleared Proficiency test within statutory time period as on March 31, 2022.

Further, Mrs. Kejal Pandya, is a Chartered Accountant and a partner at Maloo Bhatt & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Vadodara. She has rich experience of more than 20 years in the areas of audits, Direct
and Indirect Taxes with special interest in Information System and internal Controls. Her experience
includes consultancy for Software Development for US and Indian Accounting, Taxation, Sales tax,
Payroll, Inventory, billing, Education ERP. She has given presentations at various forums on Audit and
Taxation.

Further, term of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as a Non-executive Independent Director will be expired on April 26,
2023 and the Board considers that her continued association would be of immense benefit to the
Company and it is desirable to continue to avail services of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as an Independent
Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the Special Resolution in relation to re-
appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya as an Independent Director for another term of five consecutive years
with effect from April 27, 2023 upto April 26, 2028, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company
as mentioned in notice.

24. Familiarization Programmes:

The Company has adopted a familiarization policy for independent directors. The policy as well as the
details with regard to no. of hours and details of imparting the training to the independent directors of the
Company are available on the Company’s website www.dacl.co.in

25. Board Evaluation:

Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI, (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
mandates that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The Companies
Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own performance
and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule IV, of the Companies Act, 2013, states that
the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated. The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was
conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. The Board approved the evaluation
results as collated by the nomination and remuneration committee.

26. Particulars regarding Employees Remuneration:

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act, and
the Rules framed thereunder is enclosed as “ANNEXURE – E” to the Director’s Report. The information
in respect of employees of the company required pursuant to rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 will be provided upon request. In terms of
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members and
other entitled thereto, excluding the aforesaid Annexure which is available for inspection by the Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up to
the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof,
such Member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

27. Key Managerial Personnel:

As required under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has noted that Mr. G. S.
Venkatachalam, Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Dipen Ruparelia, Chief Financial Officer and
Ms. Hemaxi Pawar, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Mr. Amit
Mehta, Director (DIN NO. 00073907) was appointed as an Executive Chairman w.e.f. April 01, 2020.
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28. Auditors:

a. Statutory Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, at the 42nd Annual General Meeting
held on August 06, 2018, the shareholders had appointed M/s K.C Mehta & Co., Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 106237W), as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a
period of 5 years i.e. up to the conclusion of 47th Annual General Meeting to be held for the
adoption of accounts for the financial year ending March 31, 2023. As Companies (Amendment)
Act, 2017 has done away with the requirement of ratification at every Annual General Meeting, no
ratification for the appointment is required. There is no qualification or adverse remark in Auditors’
report. As regards the comments made in the Auditors’ Report, the Board is of the opinion that the
same are self-explanatory and does not require further clarification.

b. Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s. Sandip Sheth & Associates, Company Secretaries, as secretarial auditors of the
Company, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit
Report is annexed herewith as “ANNEXURE-F”. As regards the comments made in the Secretarial
Auditors’ Report, the Board is of the opinion that the same are self-explanatory and does not
require further clarification.

c. Internal Auditors

Pursuant to provisions of section 138(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed
M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as Internal auditors of the Company, to
undertake the Internal Audit of the Company from FY 2021-22.

d. Cost Auditors:

As per the requirement of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit), Amendment Rules 2014, your Company is required to get its cost
accounting records audited by a Cost Auditor.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost Accountants, have
been re-appointed as the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2022-23. In terms of the provisions of
Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Members of the
Company. Accordingly, the Board seeks ratification at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-23.

29. Instances of Fraud, if any, reported by the Auditors:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

30. Risk Management Policy:

The Company has a risk management policy which from time to time is reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board as well as by the Board of Directors. The policy is reviewed quarterly by assessing the
threats and opportunities that will impact the objectives set for the Company as a whole. The policy is
designed to provide the categorization of this into threats and its cause, impact, treatment and control
measures. As part of the risk management policy, the relevant parameters for manufacturing sites are
analyzed to minimize risk associate with protection of environment, safety of operations and health of
people at work and monitor regularly with reference to statutory regulations and guidelines define by
the company. The company fulfills its legal requirement concerning ambition, waste water and waste
disposal. Improving work place safety continued top priority at manufacturing site.
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31. Disclosure of composition of Audit Committee and Providing Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has in place an Audit Committee in terms of requirements of the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under and Listing (Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details of the composition of the Audit Committee, terms of
reference and meetings held are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this
Report.

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and oversees through the committee, the genuine
concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also provided adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns. The Company
has also provided direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee on reporting issues concerning
the interests of co employees and the Company.

During the year under review, Audit committee and Board has reviewed and updated Whistle Blower
Policy of the Company. The Company has disclosed information about establishment of the
Whistleblower Policy on its website https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/Whistle_blower_policy-DACL.pdf

32. Shares Capital and Debt Structure

a. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review the Total Authorized Share Capital is ` 17,50,00,000/- (Rupees
Seventeen Crore Fifty Lakhs Only) and paid-up, issued and subscribed share capital of the
company is ` 9,78,32,400/- (Rupees Nine Crore Seventy-Eight Lakhs Thirty-Two Thousand Four
Hundred Only).

b. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b. SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

c. BONUS SHARES
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees for the year ended
March 31, 2022. During the previous year, the Company sought approval of shareholders in 45th

Annual General Meeting held on July 20, 2021 to introduce and implement Company’s Employees
Stock Option Scheme called “DACL - Employees Stock Option Plan 2021” (‘the Scheme’).
Thereafter during the year under review, the Company has received in-principle approval of
2,00,000 shares from the BSE Limited on December 16, 2021.
The Scheme was in compliance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
(SBEB Regulations 2014) and amended as per SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (SBEB Regulations 2021) in the meetings held in May 11,
2022. There was no change in the Scheme except regulatory amendments as per SBEB
Regulations 2021. A certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company that the Scheme
has been implemented in accordance with SBEB Regulations and the resolution passed by the
members, shall be placed in the ensuing Annual General Meeting for inspection of the members.
The disclosures regarding stock options required to be made under the provisions of the SBEB
Regulations, 2021 are available on the website of the Company at www.dacl.co.in (weblink:
https:/ /www.dacl.co. in/upload/PDF/ESOP%20Disclosure%20by%20BOD%202021-
2022_637888802353398674.pdf)

33. Insurance:

All the properties and assets of the Company are adequately insured.

34. Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior
management which is available on Company’s website at link https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/
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C o d e % 2 0 o f % 2 0 C o n d u c t % 2 0 D i a m i n e s % 2 0 A n d % 2 0 C h e m i c a l s % 2 0 L i m i t e d % 2 0 -
%20Investor%20Information.pdf All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct.

35.  Insider Trading Policy:
As required under the Insider Trading Policy Regulations of SEBI and amendments thereto, your
Directors have framed Insider Trading Regulations and Code of Internal Procedures and Conducts for
Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insider as well as Code of Practices and Procedures
for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. The same is also posted on the website
of the Company at https://www.dacl.co.in/Policy.aspx During the previous year, the insider trading
policy was revised, reviewed and adopted by Audit Committee and Board as well.

36. Nomination And Remuneration Policy:
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed and
adopted a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.
The Remuneration Policy on the appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel provides a framework based on which our human resources management aligns their
recruitment plans for the strategic growth of the Company. The policy is available on website of the
Company at link https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/Nomination-Remuneration-Policy-03-12-2019-
new.pdf

37. Compliance with Secretarial Standards:
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2) and other applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government from time to time.

38. Corporate Governance:
Pursuant to the Regulation 27 of the SEBI, (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereunder, a separate section forming part of this report and titled
as “Corporate Governance” is attached herewith as “ANNEXURE-H”.

39. Disclosure Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And
Redressal) Act, 2013:
In line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has set up Internal Complaints Committees at its workplaces to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. No complaints have been reported during
the financial year 2021-22. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered
under this policy.

40. Finance:
During the year under review, the company had been sanctioned limits from State Bank of India of ` 13
crores in the form of Fund Based (FB) ` 12 crores and Non Fund Based (NFB) ` 1 crores.The limits are
short term funds for meeting working capital needs of the Company and secured primarily against
current assets and further secured collaterally against immovable assets of the company.

41. Other Disclosures:
The consolidated financial statement is also being presented in addition to the standalone financial
statement of the company which presents the financial data including Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company.

42. Acknowledgement:
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities
during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their
support and confidence reposed on your Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Mehta
Date : May 11, 2022 Executive Chairman
Place : Vadodara DIN: 00073907
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ANNEXURE – A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT:

Your Company is key producer of Ethylene amines based in India having its plant at PCC Area, P.O.
Petrochemicals; Vadodara. The Products Ethylene Amines find their application in various industry segments
such as Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients & Pharma-Intermediates, Specialty Chemicals, Agro-chemicals,
Resins, Water treatment chemicals, Petroleum production chemicals, Additives and in many other vital specific
sub applications. The plant facility is equipped with up to date manufacturing equipment and supported by R
& D Center and quality assurance department which are equipped with advanced equipment and analytical
instruments. The new pilot plant building has been recently constructed replacing old one and will be ready
with latest facilities by installation of equipments / machineries in couple of months. The Company has an
excellent team of experienced and qualified professional to manage day to day operations efficiently. For
more details please visit www.dacl.co.in.

PERFORMANCE:

Total standalone revenue (net of taxes) for the year 2021-22 amounted to ` 6792.85 lakhs compared to `
6,536.95 lakhs of the previous year 2020-21. The standalone operating profit after tax amounted to ̀  1672.35
lakhs compared to ` 2,103.37 lakhs in the previous year.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

Earlier, the company has identified and was working in two reportable primary segments viz. Specialty
Chemicals and Power Generation segment. After sale of Two Wind Turbine Generation units (Windmills)
situated in the state of Maharashtra under Slump Sale transaction in December 2021, the company has only
one reportable segment i.e. Specialty Chemicals. Thus, the disclosure particulars as per Ind AS-108 on
Operating Segments Reporting are made part of this Annual Report in Note 39 of standalone Financial
Statements.

STRENGTHS & OPPORTUNITIES:

Your company is key manufacturer of ethylene amines in India which is a growth market. This offers regular
opportunities & helps company to cater to market needs very effectively. Over the  years, the company has
developed robust Systems which  help to maintain and sustain the  operations despite  sever challenges it
faces and able to enjoy the market leadership position. Its geographical position & the vicinity to customers
also offer added advantage in servicing the customers.

Ethylene Amines are building blocks for many industries & hence your company believes that this fact will
continue to offer potential to grow by exploring manufacturing possibilities of derivatives based on homologues
of Ethylene Amines.

CONCERNS & THREATS:

Since company’s core business is Ethylene  amines, any negative Development or upheavals taking place in
the market place  may  affect  the  performance of the  company. Fluctuating prices of certain key raw materials
also has potential to impact the performance in short term.

Company also has to compete with competitors who are either forward or backward integrated & has the
advantage of scale of economies & thus can swamp the markets with excess & lower priced or even duty free
products.

OUTLOOK:

Since March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID 19 as pandemic. The Company has
adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure
business continuity with minimal disruption including remote working, maintaining social distancing,
sanitization of workspaces etc.
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The Board of Directors has not identified any material impact on the operations and financials of the company
as at March 31, 2022. Considering that the Company deals with Specialty Chemicals and Power Generation
(up to December 2021), there has been minimal disruption with respect to operations including production
and distribution activities.

The Company has not experienced any difficulties with respect to market demand, collections or liquidity. The
Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Considering the present Covid 19 situation, we do not foresee any significant impact on business of the
company. The company is well positioned to fulfill its existing orders/contracts/arrangements.

For the year 2022-23, the Company’s focus will continue on sustaining and maintaining the market share in
certain industry segment where company enjoys market leadership position. This will be achieved by forging
stronger relationship with customers and by negotiating and entering in to beneficial contracts with the
suppliers of raw materials.

The Ethylene amines business is going through demand-supply imbalance on global level and this is expected
to continue in the year 2022-23 also. Your company is well aware of the challenging scenario lying ahead
and taking necessary steps by planning activities properly at operational stages.

KEY DEVELOPMENT DURING THE YEAR:

Your Company has received Final Transfer Order for Industrial Plot, in Dahej Industrial Estate, Dahej,
Ankleshwar in December 2021. The said Industrial Plot is acquired under e-auction process held through
Liquidator/IP appointed by Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi.

M/s KLJ Organic Diamines Limited, an intended Associate/Joint Venture Company has been incorporated on
December 15, 2021. The shareholding ratio between M/s KLJ Organic Limited (Associate/Joint Venture
Partner) and the Company is 65:35 respectively.

Your Company has received Environment Clearance from the State Level Environment Impact Assessment
Authority (SEIAA) for setting up expansion in manufacturing plant of ‘Synthetic Organic Chemicals’ at Plot No.
13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara.

HUMAN RESOURCE:

Human Resources Development, in all its aspects like training in safety and social values is under constant
focus of the management. Relations between the management & the employees at all levels remained
healthy & cordial throughout the year. The Management and the Employees are dedicated to achieve the
corporate objectives and the targets set before the Company. The Company has been regularly monitoring its
policy for enhancement in the skills of its employees by providing need-based training.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded
and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposal. The internal control systems are supplemented
by an extensive program of internal audits, review by management guidelines & procedures.

Company’s control systems are time tested, documented and recognized under ISO Certification. On the
financial side, periodic audits by Internal Auditors and External Auditors provide a means whereby identification
of areas of improvement and corrective measures taken whenever applicable.

The Company has an independent internal audit system, covering on a continuous basis, the entire gamut of
operations and services spanning major business functions. The internal audit functions include evaluation
of all financial & major operating system controls. The internal audit findings and recommendations are
reviewed by the Audit Committee and are then reported to the Board.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Whistle Blower policy in place to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if
any. The details of the policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and the said whistle blower
policy is posted on the website of the Company.
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Ratio FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Debtors Turnover Ratio (times) 6.22 5.74

Inventory Turnover Ratio (times) 6.18 4.28

Current Ratio (times) 8.41 9.69

Operating Profit Margin (%) 36.09 41.26

Net Profit Margin (%) 25.30 33.48

Dividend Per Share (`) 3.00 5.00

Earnings Per Share (times) 17.09 21.50

P/E Ratio (times) 15.90 12.29

Return on Net Worth (%) 16.68 24.74

Reason for significant change:
- Operating/Net Profit margin has fallen due to Increase in the Cost of Raw Material Consumption of

material mix.
- Interest Coverage and Debt Equity Ratio is not relevant here as company has not availed any long term

debt during the year. No major utilization of working capital loan during the year.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

The statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations are “forward looking statements”. The forward looking statements made in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future
events. Actual results might differ materially from those anticipated because of changing ground realities. The
Directors cannot guarantee that these assumptions are accurate or these expectations will materialize.

For and on behalf of the Board

Amit Mehta
Date : May 11, 2022 Executive Chairman
Place : Vadodara DIN: 00073907
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ANNEXURE - B

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
2021 – 22 2020 – 21

  A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION:

Electricity

a) Purchased Unit 1776090 1713060

Total Amount (` in lakhs) 113.12 103.48

Rate/Unit (`) 6.37 6.04

b) Own Generation

Through Diesel generator

Units 29776 41168

Units/Ltr. of Diesel Oil 3.77 3.43

Cost/Unit (`) 24.88 21.74

Coal

Quantity in tonnes 2845 2710

Total Cost (` in lakhs) 324.92 165.59

Average Rate/Tonne 11,421 6,110

LDO & FO

Quantity in tonnes 227.67 288.18

Total Cost (` in lakhs) 97.40 81.12

Average Rate / Tonne 42,782 28,148

Generation through Wind Turbine Generator

Units (KWH in thousand) 3282.24 2831.60

Total Amount (` in lakhs) 75.30 97.97

Average Generation Rate (` / Unit) 2.29 3.46

  B. CONSUMPTION PER TONNE OF PRODUCTION:

Production of Speciality Chemicals (MT) 1682.24 2039

Electricity (Unit) 1056 840

Coal (Tonnes) 1.69 1.33

FO/LDO (Tonnes) 0.14 0.14
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FORM – B
Form for Disclosure of Particulars with Respect to Absorption of Technology, Research &

Development.

I TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION / DEVELOPMENT :

(A) Specific Areas of significance in which R&D work was carried out by the company:

1. Providing Technical support to Marketing department.

2. Technical support to QA and Production department for continuously improving the quality and
development of new products.

(B) Benefits derived from R&D:

1. Technical support provided to production, marketing, and QA department to improve the business
of the company.

(C) Future plans of Action:

1. Development of Value added products.

2. Alternate routes for the synthesis of Ethylene amines.

3. Development of Hydrogenation, Ketonisation, Ammonition related products for Company’s growth

4. Produce samples of new prospective products for costumer to Validate

(D) Expenditure on R&D:

a) Capital : ` 46.03 lakhs

b) Revenue : ` 220.88 lakhs

c) Total : ` 266.91 lakhs

d) Total R&D expenditure : 3.93% of total turnover

(E) Technology absorption, adoption and innovation:

1. Efforts towards technology development and innovation – As stated above.

2. Benefits derived as results of the above efforts – As stated above.

3. Absorption and adoption of imported technology – Not Applicable.

II FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Year ended 31st March, 2022 2021
( `̀̀̀̀) (`)

Foreign Exchange Earnings 87,69,941 1,53,68,337
Foreign Exchange Outgo 7,58,41,673 18,52,86,548
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ANNEXURE C

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Diamines and Chemicals Limited (DACL) believes that growth, success and progress of a Company
are not reflected only by its bottom-line but also with respect to the social contribution made by the
company while achieving its financial goals.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company has been prepared keeping in mind the
Company’s business ethics and to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.

2. Composition of CSR Committee: (as on March 31, 2022)

Sl. Name of Director Designation/ Number of meetings Number of meetings
No. Nature of of CSR Committee of CSR Committee

Directorship held during the year attended during the year

1 Mr. Amit Mehta Executive Chairman 2 2

2 Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam Executive Director 2 1

3 Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Director 2 2

4 Ms. Kejal Pandya Director 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:https://www.dacl.co.in/Disclosure.aspx

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report). Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any- NIL

Sr. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for
No. preceding financial years (in `̀̀̀̀) the financial year, if any (in `̀̀̀̀)

TOTAL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section135(5) - ` 28,49,78,420/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section135(5) - ` 56,99,568/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.
- NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).- ` 56,99,568/-
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount                                                 Amount Unspent (in `)
Spent for The Total Amount Transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VII as per second
(in `) as per Section 135(6). proviso to section 135(5).

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer

57,00,000 - - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sr Name of Item from Local Location of Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
N o the the list of area the project. duration allocated spent in transfe- Implem- Implemen-

Project activities (Yes/ for the the rred to entation tation-
in No) project current Unspent Direct Through

Schedule (in `)  financial CSR (Yes/ No) Implement-
VII Year Account ing

to the Act (in `) for the Agency
State District project Name CSR

as per Regis-
Section tration
135 (6) number
(in `)

1.

2.

3.

TOTAL
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr Name of Item from Local Location of Amount Mode of Mode of
N o the the list of area the project. spent for Implem- Implementation

Project activities (Yes/ the entation Through
in Schedule No) project Direct Implementing

VII (in `)  (Yes/ No) Agency
to the Act

State District Name CSR
Registration

number

1. Development Education No Mahara- Mumbai 40,00,000 No  Institute of CSR00007536
of Educations shtra Information
Resources in Technology,
Continuous Bombay
Flow
Chemistry

2. Education to Promoting Yes Gujarat Vadodara 4,00,000 No Mahavir CSR00002591
street children education Foundation

Trust

3. Senior Citizen Health No Gujarat Bhavnagar 4,00,000 No PNR Shah CSR00001320
Catract Society for
Surgery Relief
Project

4. Greenary Environment Yes Gujarat Vadodara 2,00,000 No Society for CSR00007585
Promotion – Clean
Tree Plantation Environ-
in Industrial ment
Area

5. Solar Environment Yes Gujarat Vadodara 7,00,000 No Lions Blind CSR00013035
System Girls Welfare

Centre Trust

TOTAL 57,00,000

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:  Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : NA

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : 57,00,000

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. Particular Amount
No. (in ̀ )

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 56,99,568

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 57,00,000

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 432

(iv) Surplus arising out of  the CSR projects or  programmes or activities of
the previous financial years, if any -

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Sl. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to Amount
N o Financial transferred Spent any fund specified under Remaining

Year.  to Unspent in the Schedule VII as per to be spent
CSR Account reporting section 135(6), if any. in succeeding

under Financial Name of Amount Date of financial
section135 (6) Year the Fund (in `̀̀̀̀) transfer years (in `̀̀̀̀)

(in `̀̀̀̀) (in `̀̀̀̀)

- - - - - - - -

TOTAL - - - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s) : Not Applicable

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sr. Project Name of Financial Project Total amount Amount spent Cumulative Status of the
No. ID The Project Year in duration allocated for on the amount spent Project

which the the project project in at the end Completed/
project was (in `̀̀̀̀) the reporting of reportig Ongoing

Commenced Financial Year Financial Year
(in `̀̀̀̀) (in `̀̀̀̀)

1. - - - - - - - -

2. - - - - - - - -

3. - - - - - - - -

TOTAL - - - - - - -

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

(asset-wise details). Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5).

Amit Mehta
Executive Chairman

Date : May 11, 2022 Chairman of CSR Committee
Place : Vadodara DIN: 00073907
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ANNEXURE-D

PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ADVANCE, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Sr. Company Name Date of Aggregate Date of Nature of
No Making Amount of Board Advance/Loan/

last Investment/ Approval Investment
Investment Amount of

Advance /
Loan as on
31.03.2022

1. Sintex Industries Limited 19.10.2005 0 19.07.2005 Equity Shares

2. Sintex Plastic Technology Limited 25.06.2020 359,177 NA Equity Shares

3. UPL Limited 06.05.2020 76,20,938 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

4. Deepak Nitrite Limited 25.01.2022 1,44,87,911 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

5. PI Industries Limited 18.03.2020 80,38,706 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

6. Reliance Industries Limited 18.03.2020 25,60,668 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

7. Alkyl Amines Chemicals limited 17.03.2020 96,800 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

8. GHCL Limited 22.04.2020 7,16,779 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

9. Meghmani Organics Limited 19.08.2020 37,28,136 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

10. Meghmani Fine Chem Limited 08.09.2021 12,14,441 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

11. Gujarat State Fertilizers &
Chemicals Limited 28.06.2021 17,44,202 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

12. Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers
& Chemicals Limited 09.07.2021 89,48,756 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

13. Infosys Limited 23.04.2021 67,60,395 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

14. Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 06.10.2021 10,38,996 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

15. Syngene International Limited 25.01.2022 17,63,320 04.02.2020 Equity Shares

16. DACL Fine Chem Limited 12.07.2021 20,00,000 07.07.2021 Equity Shares

17. KLJ Organic Diamines  Limited 15.02.2022 35,000 29.10.2021 Equity Shares

Total 6,11,14,225

Details of the loans and investments made by your Company are also given in the notes to the financial
statements (Note no. 5 of Standalone).

For Diamines and Chemicals Limited

Amit Mehta
Date : May 11, 2022 Executive Chairman
Place : Vadodara DIN: 00073907
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ANNEXURE-E
Particulars regarding employees Remuneration

{Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016}
PART – A – Disclosure as per Rule 5 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

REQUIRMENTS

The ratio of remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of the employees for the
financial year.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, CFO,  CEO, CS in the financial year

The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of the employees in the financial
year.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls
of the Company

Average percentile increase already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration;

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the company

DISCLOSURE

Mr. Amit Mehta : 53.80 times
Mr. G S Venkatachalam : 34.43 times

Mr. Amit Mehta (EC) :18.34%
Mr. G S Venkatachalam (CEO/ED): 9.73%
Mr. Dipen Ruparelia (CFO) :10.77%
Ms. Hemaxi Pawar (CS) :11.32%

The median remuneration of the employees
in FY 2022 was decreased by 8.74%

110 as on March 31, 2022

The average percentile increase in the
remuneration of employees compared to
increase in remuneration of Key Managerial
Personnel is in line with bench mark study
and the performance of the company over a
period of time. There is no exceptional
increase in the managerial remuneration.

We confirm

SR.NO.

I

II

III

IV

V

VI

There was no other employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under sub rule (2) of
Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in Financial
Year 2021-22.
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ANNEXURE-F

FORM NO. MR 3

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022

To,
The Members,
Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals,
Vadodara – 391346, Gujarat

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Diamines and Chemicals Limited (hereinafter referred to
as”the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 (hereinafter
referred to as “Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i.) The Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii.) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii.) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv.) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

(v.) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act anddealing with client;

We further report that, there were no actions/events in pursuance of;

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 except as reported hereunder;
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 as amended from time to time;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 as amended from time to time;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the financial year under review.

(vi.) We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism
formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations of the
Company.

We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized
representatives during the conduct of audit, and also on the review of quarterly compliance reports by
respective department heads/Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer/Executive Director taken on record
by the Board of Directors of the Company, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check
basis, the Company has generally complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company;

(a) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

(b) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

(c) The Environment Protection Act, 1986;

(d) Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989;

(e) Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 and Amendment Rule, 2003;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following, to the extent
applicable to the Company during the audit period:

(i.) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii.) SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above.

We further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect
tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory
auditor/tax auditor and other designated professionals.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
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information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the respective Chairman of Board of
Committee thereof, the decisions of the Board or Committee were unanimous and no dissenting views have
been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events having a major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc
except the duly passed Special resolution for approval of ‘DACL - Employees Stock Option Plan 2021’

Sandip Sheth & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000
UDIN:F005467D000304073

Sandip Sheth
Partner

Place : Ahmedabad FCS: 5467
Date : May 11, 2022 CP No.: 4354

Firm Peer Review Regn. No:- 1427/2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral
part of this report.
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“Annexure – A”

To,
The Members,
Diamines and Chemicals Limited
CIN: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
Plot No. 13, PCC Area,P.O. Petrochemicals,
Vadodara – 391346, Gujarat

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of records, documents, papers maintained pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws as reported in our report is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company, as the same are being verified by the statutory/tax/internal auditors from time to time.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the representations from the Management and respective
departmental heads about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
during the audit period.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis, for the purpose of issuing Secretarial Audit Report.

6. The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We conducted our audit in the manner specified under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made there under, which seeks an opinion  and reasonable assurance about the compliance
status of various applicable acts and rules to the Company.

Sandip Sheth & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000
UDIN:F005467D000304073

Sandip Sheth
Partner

Place : Ahmedabad FCS: 5467
Date : May 11, 2022 CP No.: 4354

Firm Peer Review Regn No:- 1427/2021
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ANNEXURE - G

CIN: - L24110GJ1976PLC002905 Nominal Capital: - 1,75,000,000/-
Paid-up Capital: - 97,832,400/

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members,
M/S. Diamines and Chemicals Ltd.
Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals,
BARODA-391 346.

We have examined all relevant registers, records, forms and disclosures received from the directors of
Diamines And Chemicals Limited, produced before us by the Company for the purpose of certifying
compliance of conditions of clause 10 (i) of para C of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of Chapter IV
of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended on 31st

March, 2022. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification. During the course of such certification, we have
relied on various informations and declaration furnished by each director of the Company as on 31st March,
2022 and relied on the online information available with Ministry of Corporate Affairs Portal, its filling
position and other web pages.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022, have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr Name of Director Director Identification Date of appointment
No. Number (DIN) in the Company
1 Mr. Amit Mahendra Mehta 00073907 14/03/2001

2 Mr. Rajendra Surendra Chhabra 00093384 14/03/2001

3 Mr. Dhruv Lalit Mehta 02083226 03/12/2019

4 Mr. Govindarajapuram Seshadri Venkatachalam 02205898 12/05/2008

5 Mr. Ambrish Keshav Dalal 02546506 31/03/2009

6 Ms. Kejal Vipinchandra Pandya 07048046 27/04/2018

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. Our examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the clause 10 (i) of para C of Schedule V read
with Regulation 34(3) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 for the year ended on 31st March, 2022.

Sandip Sheth & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000
UDIN:F005467D000304029

Sandip Sheth
Partner

Place : Ahmedabad FCS: 5467
Date : May 11, 2022 CP No.: 4354

Firm Peer Review Regn No:- 1427/2021
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ANNEXURE-H

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Your Company has always followed fair business and corporate practices. The Company believes that
good Corporate Governance is a key factor in achieving long-term growth and success and helps build the
confidence in the Company’s integrity.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMPOSITION:

As on March 31, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Four (4) Non-Executive Directors
and Two (2) Executive Directors and amongst them Three (3) are Independent Directors, who brings in a
wide range of skills and experience. The Board Members consists of persons with professional expertise
and experience in various fields of Chemicals, Marketing, Finance, Management, Accountancy, etc. and
the composition of the Board is in conformity with the amendments in the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (hereinafter referred
to as “SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015”). The Board members are not inter-se related to each other.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Promoter Director with effect from April 01, 2020.

Details of the Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2022, are as under:

1. Mr. Amit M. Mehta Executive Chairman
2. Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam Executive Director

3. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Non-Executive non Independent Director

4. Dr. Ambrish Dalal Non-Executive Independent Director

5. Mr. Dhruv Mehta Non-Executive Independent Director

6. Mrs. Kejal Pandya Non-Executive Independent Director

RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board has a variety of matters related to the operations of the Company for its consideration and
decision, which includes reviewing corporate performance, ensuring adequate availability of financial
resources and reporting to Shareholders. During the year under review, the Board met Six (6) times. The
maximum gap between any two meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days or any
extension provided by SEBI/MCA.

The Board of Directors ensures that their other responsibilities do not materially impact their responsibility
as Directors of the Company. The Company has not entered into any materially significant transactions with
its Directors or their relatives, etc. which affects the interest of the Company.

ROLE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Independent Directors play an important role in deliberations at the Board Meetings and bring to the
Company their wide experience in the fields of Chemicals, Technology, Management, Finance, Accountancy,
etc.

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was held during the year on Wednesday, February 09, 2022 without the attendance
of non-independent Directors and members of management, inter alia to:

a. Review the performance of the non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

b. Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the executive
directors and non-executive directors of the Company;

c. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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The meeting was attended by all the independent directors. Mrs. Kejal Pandya, who is an Independent
Director, was the Chairperson of the meeting of Independent Directors. The Independent Directors discussed
matters pertaining to the Company’s affairs and functioning of the Board and presented their views to the
Executive Director for appropriate action.

TENURE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

As per the provisions under section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, every year one third (1/3) of the total
strength of the Board, is liable to retire by rotation. The Directors, who are required to retire every year and if
eligible, they qualify for re-appointment.

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam, Executive Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The meetings of the Board of Directors are held through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM) because of COVID situation. Meetings are scheduled well in advance. The Board meets at regular
intervals to review the quarterly performance and the financial results of the Company. The Members of the
Board have access to all information on the Company and are free to recommend inclusion of any matter in
the agenda for discussion. Senior Management persons are also invited to attend the Board meetings and
provide clarifications as and when required.

During the year under review, Six (6) Board Meetings were held respectively on May 18, 2021, June 16, 2021,
August 11, 2021, October 29, 2021, December 28, 2021, February 09, 2022. Details of attendance at the
Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting for each Director along with their other Directorships are as
stated herein below:

Sr. Name of the Director DIN Category of No. of Board Attended last
No. Directorship Meetings AGM held

attended on 20/07/2021

1 Mr. Amit M. Mehta 00073907 Chairman-ED/PD 6/6 Yes
2 Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 02205898 ED 4/6 Yes

3. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 00093384 NED 6/6 Yes

4. Mr. Dhruv Mehta 02083226 NED-I 6/6 Yes

5. Dr. Ambrish Dalal 02546506 NED-I 6/6 Yes

6. Mrs. Kejal Pandya 07048046 NED-I 6/6 Yes

ED-Executive Director
NED–Non-Executive Director
NED-I–Non-Executive & Independent Director
PD–Promoter Director

The Chairman is Promoter and Executive Director, and hence half of the board consists of Independent
Directors.
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Details of Number of Directorships in other Bodies Corporate and Chairmanship(s)/Membership(s)
held in Committees of Public Limited Companies as on 31.03.2022:

Name of the Director(s) No. of Directorships No. of Chairmanship(s) and
in other Companies Membership(s) of Committees of
(Excluding Private Public Ltd. Cos. Including DACL**

Company, Section 8 and Chairmanship in Memberships in
One person Company) * Committees in which Committees of

Directors are Members Companies in
which they

hold Directorships

Mr. Amit M. Mehta 04 - 01
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 01 01 01
Mr. G.S. Venkatachalam 01 - -
Dr. Ambrish Dalal - - 02
Mr. Dhruv Mehta 02 01 01
Mrs. Kejal Pandya - - 02

*  Excluding Diamines and Chemicals Limited.
** The committees mentioned above include only Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

None of the Directors of the Company was a member of more than ten Committees of Boards as stipulated
under Regulation 26(1) of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 nor was a Chairman of more than five such
committees across all Companies in which he was a director.

BOARD COMMITTEES:

To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company, the Board has appointed the
following Committees:

Audit Committee:

The Company has an adequately qualified Audit Committee and its composition meets the requirement of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. The
Audit Committee was formed on March 14, 2001. The quorum of the said Audit Committee Meetings is 2
(Two) members or one third (1/3) of the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is greater, with at least
two independent directors.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2022 is as stated below:

Name Designation Category
Mr. Dhruv Mehta Chairman Non-Executive & Independent Director

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Member Non-Executive &  Non Independent Director

Dr. Ambrish Dalal Member Non-Executive & Independent Director

Mrs. Kejal Pandya Member Non-Executive & Independent Director

The terms of the reference of the Audit Committee include approving and implementing the audit procedures
and techniques, reviewing the financial reporting systems, internal control systems and control procedures
and ensuring compliance with the regulatory guidelines as amended from time to time.

The Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Internal Auditor are permanent invitees to the
Committee Meetings. The Statutory Auditors are also invited to attend the Meetings. The Company Secretary
acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Committee members are paid a sitting fee as decided by the Board from time to time for each meeting
attended by them.
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Meetings and attendance during the year:

The details of attendance of the Members at these Audit Committee Meetings are as follows:

            Member Attendance at Audit Committee Meetings held on:

17.05.2021 16.06.2021 10.08.2021 28.10.2021 28.12.2021 08.02.2022
Mr. Dhruv Mehta Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Dr. Ambrish Dalal Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mrs. Kejal Pandya Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The Minutes of Audit Committee Meetings are noted by the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings. The past
Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the 45th Annual General Meeting held on July 20, 2021.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Directors:

As on March 31, 2022, Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Four (4) members in that one (1)
Executive, one (1) Non-Executive Director and two (2) are Non-Executive & Independent Director of the
Company.

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra who is Non-executive Director chairs the Meetings. During the year under review, the
Committee met as and when required.

A summary of various complaints received and cleared by the Company during the year is given below:

Nature of Complaint Received Cleared

Non-receipt of Dividend Warrant Nil Nil

Non-receipt of Share Certificates Nil Nil

SEBI/Stock Exchange Letter/ROC 2 2

Miscellaneous Nil Nil

Total 2 2

Normally all complaints/queries are disposed-off expeditiously. The Company had no complaint pending at
the close of the financial year.

The Committee considers and resolves the grievances of the security holders of the Company including
complaints related to transfer of demat shares, non-receipt of balance sheet and non-receipt of declared
dividends. The present composition of the Committee is as follows:

    Name of the Director Executive / Non-Executive

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Non-Executive & Non Independent Director

Mr. Amit M Mehta Executive Chairman

Dr. Ambrish Dalal Non-Executive & Independent Director

Mrs. Kejal Pandya Non-Executive & Independent Director

Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The erstwhile Remuneration Committee is reconstituted as Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as
per the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for its Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees. The Remuneration Policy has laid down the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Director and Board diversity. The Policy lays down the
factors for determining remuneration of Whole-time Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees. The policy also lays down the evaluation criteria of the Independent Directors
and the Board. The policy has revised on December 03, 2019.
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At present, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Dr. Ambrish Dalal, Chairman,
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra and Mr. Dhruv Mehta, whose function is to approve remuneration policy of Directors.
The nomination and remuneration committee meetings were held on May 17, 2021, June 16, 2021, August
10, 2021, February 08, 2022.

The link of Nomination and Remuneration policy is https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/Nomination-
Remuneration-Policy-03-12-2019-new.pdf

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Director (s) for the financial year 2021 – 2022.

(`̀̀̀̀ In Lakhs)

Name of Director Designation Salary & Perquisite Commission Total
Allowance

Mr. Amit Mehta Executive Chairman 92.23 - 24.69 116.92

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam Executive Director 55.72 0.96 18.15 74.83

Commission is payable for the Financial Year 2021-22.

REMUNERATION PAID/PAYABLE TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

The remuneration paid to non-executive Directors for the year from 01.04.2021 to 31.03.2022 is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in lakhs)

Name Remuneration Sitting Fee Commission Total

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 12.00 4.44 3.09 19.53

Dr. Ambrish Dalal Nil 3.84 1.23 5.07

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Nil 3.80 1.23 5.03

Mrs. Kejal Pandya Nil 3.64 1.23 4.87

Commission is payable for the Financial Year 2021-22.

- Remuneration includes professional fees (Gross). The Company has employee stock option plan
2021 but not applicable to non-executive Directors during the year.

No. of shares held by the Non – Executive Directors of the Company as on 31.03.2022:

Sr.No.               Name No. of Equity Shares Held

1. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 18,100

2. Dr. Ambrish Dalal 26,200

3. Mr. Dhruv Mehta 45000

4. Mrs. Kejal Pandya 0

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and details of meetings attended by
the Members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee during the financial year 2021-2022 are
given below:

Name Position in Category No. of No. of
Committee Meetings Meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Amit Mehta Chairman Executive Chairman 3 2

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam Member Executive Director 3 2

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Member Non-Executive Director 3 3

Mrs. Kejal Pandya Member Non-Executive 3 3
Independent Director
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Formation of CSR Committee:
The Board in its meeting held on April 28, 2018, formulated and adopted Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Policy and composed / formed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee to determine the
scope, applicability and determine of the Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure. The Committee was
reconstituted w.e.f. November 06, 2020.
Terms of Reference:
The Committee is primarily responsible for formulating and recommending to the Board of Directors a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and monitoring the same from time to time, amount of
expenditure to be incurred on the activities pertaining to CSR and monitoring CSR activities.
CSR Policy
The Company has formulated CSR Policy and the same is available at the website of the Company at https:/
/www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/CSR.pdf
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
DISCLOSURES:
All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business
and on arm’s length basis and do not attract provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There
were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the financial year that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Related party transactions have been disclosed
in Note 40 to the financial statements. A statement in summary form of transactions with related parties in the
ordinary course of business and arm’s length basis is periodically placed before the Audit Committee for its
review. Segment Reporting as per Ind As-108 applicable to the Company is given in note No.39.
Material Subsidiaries: The Company does not have a material subsidiary as defined under Regulation
16(1)(c) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
CEO/CFO Certification: A certification from the CEO and CFO in terms of Regulation 33(2) (a) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 was placed before the Board Meeting held on May 11, 2022 to approve the
Audited Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022.
REGULATORY COMPLIANCES:
The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital markets and no
penalties, strictures have been imposed against it by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other regulatory
authorities for the time being in force.
POLICES:
Related party Transaction policy
Your company has formulatedRelated Party Transaction policy (RPT) as per applicable provisions of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, to disclose materiality of related party
transactions and dealing with related party transactions to be entered into by individual or taken together with
previous transaction during a financial year.
The detail of establishment of such updated policy is disclosed on the company’s website at https://
www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/RPT_Policy.pdf
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
The Company has more than Twelve Thousand (12,000) shareholders. The main source of information to the
Shareholders is Annual Report of the Company, which includes inter-alia, the Report of the Board of Directors,
Operational and Financial Review and the Audited Financial Results. Shareholders are also informed through
press publication about the quarterly financial performance of the Company.
Quarterly results of the Company have been announced within a period of Forty five (45) days of the respective
quarter. Whenever, the audited results are published for the fourth quarter, they are announced within Sixty
(60) days of the quarter as prescribed.
Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Financial Results are published in the Business Standard (in English
language) and in Vadodara Samachar (Regional Language) newspapers. These results are also immediately
posted on the website of the Company at www.dacl.co.in.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

 1. Book Closure Date June 21, 2022 to June 28, 2022 (both days inclusive)

 2. Date, Time and Venue of the 46th June 28, 2022 at 12.00 Noon at the Registered office of the
Annual General Meeting Company

 3. Listing on Stock Exchange BSE Limited,
25th Floor, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001.
Tel:  022 – 2272 1233 / 34.
Fax: 022 –2272 1919. (Stock code: 500120)

 4. Listing Fees Paid to the above Stock Exchange for the Financial Year 2021
– 2022.

 5. Registered Office /Plant location and Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P. O. Petrochemicals,
address for correspondence Vadodara – 391 346. Tel: 0265 – 3534200

Fax: 0265 – 2230 218
e-mail: info@dacl.co.in,   Website: www.dacl.co.in

 6. Place where Share Transfers are to In view of the SEBI circular, every listed company is required
be lodged: to appoint one common agency for handling both Physical &

Demat related services in respect of its shares. Following are
the details for the Shareholders:
M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
B-102 & 103, Shangrila Complex, First Floor,
Opp. HDFC Bank,Near Radhakrishna Char Rasta,
Akota, Vadodara - 390 020 Gujarat, India.
Tel. No.: +91 265 2356573, +91 265 2356794,
+91 265 6136000
E-mail : Vadodara@inkintime.co.in

 7. International Securities Identification INE 591D01014
Number (ISIN)

 8. Compliance Officer Ms. Hemaxi Pawar
Tel no: 0265 3534200
e-mail: secretarial@dacl.co.in

 9. Date, Time and Venue for the last 3 45th AGM –July 20, 2021 at 12.00 noon held through VC/OAVM
(Three) A.G.M.’s. 44th AGM – September 04, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. held through VC/

OAVM
EOGM – March 13, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. held at the Registered
office of the Company
43rd AGM – August 09, 2019 at 12.00 noon held at the Registered
office of the Company
*No Postal Ballots were used/invited for voting at these
meetings.

 10. Special Resolutions passed 45th AGM- 8 Special Resolutions were passed

44th AGM- 1 Special Resolution was passed
       EOGM- 1 Special Resolution was passed

43rd AGM – 4 special Resolutions were passed

42nd AGM - 1 Special Resolution was passed

41st  AGM – NIL

*No Postal Ballots were used/invited for voting at these
meetings.
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 11. Closing Price of the Company’s              ` 271.75/-
Shares on March 31, 2022.
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)

 12. Financial Year 1st April to 31st March each year.

 13. Dividend declared for current and 2020-21 - 50%
earlier years 2019-20 - 40% (Final)

2019-20 - 40% (Interim)
2018-19 - 20% (Final)
2018-19 - 30% (Interim)
2017-18 - 25%
2016 -17 - 15%

 14. Trading in Shares (Electronic Form) SEBI has made trading in the Company’s Shares compulsory
on Stock Exchange in electronic form for all categories of Investors.

MARKET PRICE DATA:

High and low during each month in the last financial year:

Sr.No. Month The Stock Exchange, Mumbai

High (`) Low (`)
1 April, 2021 374.95 265.00

2. May, 2021 359.95 266.10
3. June, 2021 307.00 270.00
4. July, 2021 324.00 271.65

5. August, 2021 351.00 252.00
6. September, 2021 319.00 275.05
7. October, 2021 311.00 260.00

8. November, 2021 270.00 229.00
9. December, 2021 260.00 230.00

10. January, 2022 306.00 249.00

11. February, 2022 349.70 239.50
12. March, 2022 288.75 252.00

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING: (as on March 31, 2022)

Shareholding of nominal value Shareholders Share Amount

                                 ` Number % of total ` % of total
                      (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

Upto - 500 12165 92.31 11369650 11.62

501 - 1,000 512 3.89 3972970 4.06

1,001 - 2,000 246 1.87 3633720 3.71

2,001 - 3,000 69 0.52 1772270 1.81

3,001 - 4,000 43 0.33 1516790 1.55

4,001 - 5000 27 0.20 1211630 1.24

5,001 - 10,000 46 0.35 3202800 3.27

Above 10,000 70 0.53 71152570 72.73

TOTAL 13178 100.00 97832400 100.00
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN: (as on March 31, 2022)

Sr. No. Category No. of Shares Held % of total Shares

1 Promoters & Persons acting in concert 5326026 54.44

2 Mutual Funds/Banks & FI’s/ Insurance Co. 3537 0.04

3 Central Govt/State Govt/POI (IEPF) 150998 1.54

4 Other Corporate Bodies/HUF 243494 2.49

5 Public 3858081 39.44

6 NRI’s 60916 0.62

7 Director or Director’s Relative 91459 0.93

8 Any Other (LLP, Unclaimed shares, 48729 0.50

Clearing Members)

TOTAL 9783240 100.00

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES: (as on March 31, 2022)

Particulars No. of Equity Shares % to Share Capital

NSDL 79,31,158 81.07%

CDSL 16,13,499 16.49%

Physical 2,38,583 2.44%

TOTAL 97,83,240 100%

Details of Plant Locations/Address of Correspondence:

Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P. O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on Equity:

The Company has not issued any of these instruments.

The names of the listed entities where the person is a director and the category of directorship

Director Name Details as on March 31, 2022
(Excluding Diamines and Chemicals Limited)

Name of listed entities where Category of Directorship
the person is a director

Mr. Amit Mehta Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra - -

Mr. G.S.Venkatachalam - -

Dr. Ambrish Dalal - -

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Shriram Asset Management Non-Executive Non Independent

Company Limited Director

Mrs. Kejal Pandya - -
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The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for the effective functioning
of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

Financial Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance function of an
enterprise, resulting in proficiency in complex financial management, capital
allocation and financial reporting processes.

Global Business Experience in driving business success in markets around the world, with
an understanding of diverse business environments, economic conditions,
cultures and regulatory frameworks, and a board perspective on global
market opportunities.

Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting in a
practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic planning, and
risk management. Demonstrated strengths in developing talent, planning
succession, and driving change and long-term growth.

Board Service and Service on a public company board to develop insights about maintaining
Governance board and management accountability, protecting shareholder interests,

and observing appropriate governance practices.

Sales and Marketing Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and market share, build
brand awareness and equity and enhance enterprise reputation

Directors having skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company

Name of Director skills/expertise/competencies

Mr. Amit Mehta Global Business, Leadership, Sales and Marketing

Mr. G.S.Venkatachalam Financial, Leadership, Sales and Marketing

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Financial, Board Service and Governance

Dr. Ambrish Dalal Financial, Board Service and Governance

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Financial, Board Service and Governance

Mrs. Kejal Pandya Financial, Board Service and Governance

Confirmation that in the opinion of the board that the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in
LODR regulations and are independent of the management.

Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure
along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided-
Not Applicable

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial
year for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the
listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad - Not Applicable

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation 32 (7A). – Not Applicable

A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is attached herewith as “Annexure G”.

The Company has paid fees for all services on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in
the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.
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Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - Nil

c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year - Nil

Non-mandatory disclosures/requirements:

- Reporting of Internal Auditor: Internal Auditor of the Company is reporting directly to the Audit Committee
on quarterly basis.

- The Company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy through which Directors, Employees and other
Stakeholders may report their genuine concerns or grievances. The Whistle Blower Policy was reviewed
and updated by the Audit Committee and the Board during the FY 2021-22. The Whistle Blower Policy
of the Company has been disclosed on the website of the Company at https://www.dacl.co.in/pdf/investors/
Whistle_blower_policy-DACL.pdf No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee to
report its genuine concerns or grievances.

- The Risk Management Policy as required by Listing Regulations is Not Applicable to the Company.

- The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by
Insiders and Code of Conduct for fair disclosures pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 and also adopted Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendments) Regulations,
2018.

As required by Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and amendments thereto, the Board of Directors has approved the Policy for Preservation of Documents and
Archival Policy and the same is available at the website of the Companyatwww.dacl.co.in

For Diamines and Chemicals Limited

Amit Mehta
Date : May 11, 2022 Executive Chairman
Place : Vadodara DIN: 00073907
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CIN: - L24110GJ1976PLC002905 Nominal Capital: - 1,75,000,000/-
Paid-up Capital: -  97,832,400/-

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To,
The Members of
M/s. DIAMINES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED
Plot No. 13, PCC Area,
P. O. Petrochemicals,
Vadodara - 391346

We have examined all relevant records of Diamines and Chemicals Limited for the purpose of certifying
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, para C of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of
Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2022. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanation and information furnished, We certify
that the Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of the para C of Schedule V read with
Regulation 34(3) of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, except as reported by the Secretarial Auditor in his respective report, if any.

Sandip Sheth & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Unique Code: P2001GJ041000
UDIN:F005467D000304051

Sandip Sheth
Partner

Place : Ahmedabad FCS: 5467
Date : May 11, 2022 CP No.: 4354

Firm Peer Review Regn No:- 1427/2021
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ANNEXURE - I

FORM AOC-I

Statement of salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary /
associate companies / joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part A: Subsidiary

Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts

(`̀̀̀̀ In Lakhs)

Name of Subsidiary                                                                                        DACL Fine Chem Limited
Financial Year/Period 2021-22 2020-21

Country of Incorporation India India
Date of Incorporation 30/07/2020 30/07/2020
Percentage of shareholding (by Holding Company) 100% 100%

Reporting Currency `̀̀̀̀ `

Share Capital              20.00                     5.00
Other Equity              (4.87)                   (3.88)

Liabilities                0.30                     3.34
Total Liabilities                0.30                     3.34
Total Assets              15.43                     4.46

Investments                   -                        -
Turnover                   -                        -
Profit Before Taxation              (0.99)                   (3.88)

Provision for Taxation                   -                        -
Profit After Taxation              (0.99)                   (3.88)
Proposed Dividend                   -                        -

% of shareholding 100% 100%

Note:
1.   The above mentioned subsidiary is yet to commence operation.
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Part B : Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures M/s KLJ Organic Diamines Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2022

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end

No. of Shares 3500

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture (in `) 35000

Extend of Holding % 35%

3. Description of how there is significant influence  Shareholding ratio is 35%

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Consolidated in Standalone
Financial Statement

5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest ` 0.09 lakhs
audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year (Please see note 2)

i. Considered in Consolidation ` 1672.35 lakhs

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation ` 1672.35 lakhs

Note:

1. The Company was incorporated on December 15, 2021 as Associate/Joint Venture Company, having
shareholding of 35% which is yet to commence operations.

2. Effect of Associates/Joint Venture share of profit/(Loss) is given in Other comprehensive income part of
standalone financial statement.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Mehta
Date : May 11, 2022 Executive Chairman
Place : Vadodara DIN: 00073907
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF

CONDUCT

This is to confirm that Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees. In addition, the Company
has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors. Both these codes are available on the
Company’s website.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, received from the
Senior Management team of the Company and the members of the Board a declaration of compliance with
the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management team means the Chief Financial Officer and
employees in the General Manager cadre and above as on 31st March, 2022.

For Diamines and Chemicals Limited
Sd/-

G. S. Venkatachalam
Place : Vadodara Executive Director
Date : May 11, 2022 DIN: 02205898
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of
Diamines and Chemicals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Diamines and Chemicals Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cashflows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of these standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
donot provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be
the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Sr. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
No.

1 Litigations and claims

(Refer to note 36(c) to the standalone financial
statements)

The cases are pending with multiple tax
authorities like Income Tax, Excise/Service
Tax and Provident Fund Authority etc.

In normal course of business, financial
exposures may arise from pending
proceedings and from litigation and claims.
Whether a claim needs to be recognised as
liability or disclosed as contingent liability in
the standalone financial statements is

Our audit procedures, inter alia, included the
following: 

· Evaluation of management’s judgment of tax
risks, estimates of tax exposures, other claims
and contingencies. Past and current experience
with the tax authorities and management’s
response on the subject matter were used to
assess the appropriateness of management’s
best estimate of the most likely outcome of each
uncertain contingent liability. 

· Understanding the current status of the tax
assessments & other litigations and discussing
selected matters with the entity’s management. 
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· Assessing the entity’s assumptions and
estimates in respect of claims, included in the
contingent liabilities disclosed in the standalone
financial statements.  

· Assessment of the probability of negative result
of litigation and the reliability of estimates of
related obligations.

Conclusion:

Based on procedure described above, we did not
identify any material exceptions relating to
management’s assertions, and treatment,
presentation and disclosure of the subject matter in
the standalone financial statements.

Sr. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
No.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis/ Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder’s
Information but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.The
above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
When we read the information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by
the circumstances and the applicable laws and regulations.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cashflows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (IndAS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

dependent on number of significant
assumptions and judgments. The amounts
involved are potentially significant and
determining the amount, if any, to be
recognised or disclosed in the standalone
financial statements, is inherently subjective. 

We considered the above area as a key audit
matter due to associated uncertainty related
to the outcome of these matters and
application of material judgement in
interpretation of law.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022,
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”;

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements– Refer Note 36(c) to the standalone financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts as at March
31, 2022 for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. As stated in Note 15 (iii) to the standalone financial statements

(a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

For K.C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
UDIN: 22045027AIUFUE4155

Place : Vadodara
Date : May 11, 2022
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Diamines and Chemicals
Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, we
report that:

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment
by which Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the title/ lease deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, physical verification
of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and discrepancies
noticed were not in excess of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory and same
have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such
banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iii. The Company has made investments in companies and Limited Liability Partnership during the year,
in respect of which:

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee,
or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a),
(c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the investments made
during the year are, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered
under section 185 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of the Investments
made.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
during the year from the public within the meaning of provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act, and the
rules framed thereunder or under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and therefore,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the order of
the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining whether
they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, income-tax, duty of customs, cess, goods and services tax and any other statutory
dues applicable to it. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as
at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no disputed dues in respect of goods and services tax
which have not been deposited. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
following are the particulars of Income tax, Service tax, duty of customs and duty of excise as at
March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited on account of dispute:

Name of the statute  Amount Period to which Forum where
(Nature of disputed dues) (`̀̀̀̀ in lakhs) the amount pending

relates

Income Tax Act, 1961(Income Tax) 4.45 A.Y 2010-11 Income-tax Appellate
Tribunal – Ahmedabad

Income Tax Act, 1961 (Income Tax) 5.64 A.Y 2016-17 Commissioner of
Income-Tax (Appeals),
Vadodara

Income Tax Act, 1961 (Income Tax) 38.75 A.Y 2017-18 Commissioner of
Income-Tax (Appeals),
Vadodara

Finance Act, 1994 (Service tax/ 62.63 F.Y. 2004-05 to Customs, Excise &
Excise) 2012-13 Service Tax Appellate

Tribunal (CESTAT),
Ahmedabad.

Finance Act, 1994 3.71 F.Y. 2011-12 to Superintendent - Central
(Service tax/ Excise) 2016-17 Excise, Customs and

Service Tax, Vadodara-I

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term
basis have, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company and therefore, reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
Indian accounting standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xvii The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and accordingly,
this clause is not applicable.
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xix In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (3)(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) The Company does not have any ongoing project for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and
accordingly reporting under clause (3)(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

xxi There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020
(CARO) report of the company included in the consolidated financial statements.

For K.C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
UDIN: 22045027AIUFUE4155

Place : Vadodara
Date : May 11, 2022
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Diamines and Chemicals Limited on the standalone financial statements of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements under
Clause(i) of Sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Diamines
and Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the, “Guidance note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to standalone Financial Statement and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
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expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia.

For K.C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
UDIN: 22045027AIUFUE4155

Place : Vadodara
Date : May 11, 2022
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st As at 31st

March,2022 March,2021
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 4A 3,753.01 2,243.88
(ii) Intangible assets 4B 2.01 2.68

(b) Capital work-in-progress 4C 187.96 15.39
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Investments
(A)  Investment in Subsidiary 5 20.00 5.00
(B)  Other Investments 1,266.82 593.67

(ii) Others 6 1.69 2.96
(d) Other non-current assets 7 440.33 1,007.57

Total Non-Current Assets 5,671.82 3,871.15
(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories 8 229.72 1,254.17
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 1,001.61 943.25
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 85.10 45.71
(iii) Other bank balances 11 3,947.22 3,211.16
(iv) Others 12 - 11.78

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 45.46 48.72
(d) Other current assets 14 78.60 95.56

Total Current Assets 5,387.71 5,610.35
TOTAL ASSETS 11,059.53 9,481.50

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity Share capital 15 978.32 978.32
(b) Other Equity 16 9,045.92 7,524.25

Total Equity 10,024.24 8,502.57
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions 17 40.19 36.20
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 354.35 358.68

Total Non-Current Liabilities 394.54 394.88
(2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 - 30.24
(ii) Trade payables 20

(A) due to micro enterprises and  small enterprises 0.98 12.62
(B) due to other than micro enterprises and

 small enterprises 237.42 273.91
(ii) Other financial liabilities 21 191.26 187.17

(b) Other current liabilities 22 178.69 37.81
(c) Provisions 23 32.40 42.30

Total Current Liabilities 640.75 584.05
Total Liabilities 1,035.29 978.93
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,059.53 9,481.50

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the standalone Financial Statements  1-47
As per our report of  even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Executive Chairman Executive Director
DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

I Revenue from Operations 24 6,610.68 6,281.71
II Other Income 25 182.17 255.24

III Total income (I+II) 6,792.85 6,536.95

IV EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 26 1915.00 1,640.02
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and
Work-In-Progress 27 169.92 113.21
Employee benefits expense 28 835.65 736.69
Finance costs 29 8.55 7.54
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 30 166.80 178.55
Other expenses 31 1486.22 1,276.55

Total expenses (IV) 4,582.14 3,952.56

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 2,210.71 2,584.39

VI Tax expense:
(a) Current Tax 34 575.56 695.55
(b) Tax relating to Earlier Years 34 11.37 (117.11)
(c) Deferred Tax 18 (48.57) (97.42)

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 1,672.35 2,103.37

VIII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A. Items that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss :
(i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on the

Defined Benefit Plans 21.18 (2.33)
(ii) Gain/(Loss) on measuring equity instruments at 349.21 334.04

Fair Value carried through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVTOCI)

(iii) Income tax on above (44.23) (37.63)

B. Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss : - -

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year ((VII+VIII)) 1,998.51 2,397.45

X Earnings per equity share Basic & Diluted 35 17.09 21.50

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the standalone Financial Statements 1-47

As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,210.71 2,584.39
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation / Impairment of Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 192.53 311.75
Loss on Slump sale 59.76 -
Dividend Income (8.10) (61.28)
Interest Income (162.73) (189.87)
Finance Costs 8.55 7.54
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets 3.10 -
Unrealised Loss/(Gain) on Foreign Exchange (0.11) 0.76
Provision for Doubtful Receivables/Advances/
Sundry balances written off 0.80 9.04
Provision for Non Moving Stock - (1.10)
Provision/Advances/Sundry Balances written back (8.55) (0.04)

Operating Profit/(Loss) before changes in working capital 2,295.96 2,661.19

Adjustment for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables (58.36) 297.89
Inventories 1,024.44 (553.95)
Financial Assets and Other Assets 28.75 (11.73)
Long-term Loans and Advances and Other Non-current Assets (29.28) (120.07)

Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables (48.13) (0.36)
Other Financial Liabilities 4.09 14.99
Other Liabilities and provisions 134.97 (108.62)

Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital 3,352.44 2,179.34

Income-tax paid (621.02) (642.01)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 2,731.42 1,537.33

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 162.73 189.87
Dividend Received 8.10 61.28
Purchase of  Equity Instruments (325.09) (174.67)
Sale of Equity Instruments 14.16 100.27
Investment in Subsidiary (15.00) (5.00)
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets
including CWIP & Capital Advances (1,497.12) (1,131.03)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 224.21 -
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents (736.07) (538.46)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (2,164.08) (1,497.74)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs (8.55) (7.54)
Payment of Dividend & Tax on Dividend (489.16) (391.33)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Borrowings (30.24) 30.24

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (527.95) (368.63)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 39.39 (329.04)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period (see Note 1) 45.71 374.75

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period (see Note 1) 85.10 45.71

Notes:
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hand 0.52 0.30
Balance with Banks 84.58 45.41

Cash and Cash equivalents 85.10 45.71

2 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the
Indian Accounting Standard 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows”.

3 Figures for previous years have been regrouped wherever necessary for uniformity in presentation

As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022
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 STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2022

A. Equity Share Capital (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  Amount

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 978.32
Changes in Equity share capital due to prior period errors -

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2020 978.32

Additions/(Reductions) -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 978.32

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 978.32

Additions/(Reductions) -

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 978.32

B. Other Equity (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars                                                                       Reserves & Surplus  Equity Total
General Retained Instruments

Reserve Earnings carried
through OCI

Balances as at 31st March, 2020 517.12 5,037.98 (15.45) 5,539.65
Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 2,103.37 2,103.37
Other Comprehensive Income for
the year, net of income tax* (1.74) (1.74)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity
instrument carried through OCI, net of income tax 295.83 295.83
Gain / (Loss) on sale of Investment (21.52) (21.52)
Payment of Dividend (Final) (365.67) (365.67)
Tax on Dividend (Final) (25.66) (25.66)

Balances as at 31st March, 2021 517.12 6,748.28 258.85 7,524.25

Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 1,672.35 1,672.35
Other Comprehensive Income for the year,
net of income tax* 15.85 15.85
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity
instrument carried through OCI, net of income tax 310.31 310.31
Gain / (Loss) on sale of Investment 12.32 12.32
Payment of Dividend (Final) (489.16) (489.16)

Balances as at 31st March, 2022 517.12 7,947.32 581.48 9,045.92

* Represent remeasurement gain / (loss) on the defined benefit plans

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the standalone Financial Statements 1-47
As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
1. Corporate Information

The Standalone Financial Statements of “Diamines and Chemicals Limited” (“the Company”) are for
the year ended 31st March, 2022.

The Company is a domestic public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its
registered office at Plot No. 13, New IPCL Rd, PCC Area, Vadodara, Gujarat. The Company’s shares
are listed and traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE). The company is engaged in business
of manufacturing and marketing of organic chemicals compounds and Power Generation.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

i) Statement of Compliance
These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended).

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification G.S.R
255(E) Dated: 23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

ii) Basis of Preparation
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values / amortized
cost / net present value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation of Standalone Financial Statements’ and Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013.
The Standalone Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also
the Company’s presentation and functional currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest two
decimal lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions.

The Company categorises assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described
as follows:
(i) Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(ii) Level 2: inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included

within level 1 for the asset or liability.
(iii) Level 3: inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications

to observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market
participants.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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iii) Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment
(PPE) recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and
used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS
101.

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) comprises of Tangible assets and Capital Work in progress.
PPE are stated at cost, net of tax/duty credit availed, if any, after reducing accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any; until the date of the Balance Sheet. The cost of PPE
comprises of its purchase price or its construction cost (net of applicable tax credit, if any), any cost
directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the management. Direct costs are capitalized until the
asset is ready for use and includes borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of PPE that are not yet ready for the intended use.

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

As per internal technical evaluation carried out by the management, the management of the
company believes that its Property, Plant & Equipment are of such nature that separate components
are not distinctly identifiable having different useful life. And therefore, Component level accounting
and reporting is not practically feasible for the company.

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment (other than Freehold land)
less their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method over the useful life of PPE as
stated in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on internal technical evaluation.
The management believes that the useful lives as assessed best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Useful lives of following class of PPE are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013, which are as under:-

Asset Description  Assets Useful life (in Years)

Factory Building 30

Building other than Factory Building 60

R& D Equipments 10

Office Equipments 5

Computers 3

Server 10

Road 5

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicle 8

Useful lives of following class of PPE are based on internal technical evaluation carried out by the
Company which are as under:-

Asset Description  Assets Useful life (in Years)

Plant & Machinery 20

Plant & Machinery (Tank) 25

Wind Electric Generators 22
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The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on an annual
basis and if necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Depreciation on additions/deletions to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of additions/deletions.

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or
other factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

iv) Intangible Assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised
as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying
value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

Intangible assets with finite useful life acquired separately, arerecognised only if it is probable
that future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of assets can be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated period of benefit, not exceeding ten years.

Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised .

Intangible assets are amortised on Straight Line Method from the date they are available for use,
over the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the Management as under:

Asset Description  Assets Useful life (in Years)

Software & Licenses 3

v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company reviews at each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss. If at the reporting period, there is an indication that there is
change in the previously assessed impairment loss, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that is determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.”

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period to see if there are any indications that
impairment losses recognised earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. The impairment
loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates which has the effect of increasing the
asset’s recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognised. If it is so, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying
amount that has been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. After a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis
over its remaining useful life. Reversals of Impairment loss are recognised in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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vi) Investments in Subsidiary

The Company records the Investment in equity instrument of Subsidiary at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investment in subsidiary, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts
are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

vii) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for impairment and
other losses, where considered necessary. The basis of determining the value of each class of
inventory is as follows:

Inventories Cost Formulae

Raw Material, packing materials, fuels At first–in–first out basis(Net of eligible credit)
and stores and spares

Raw Material (Goods in transit) At invoice price

Work-in-progress At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour cost
and appropriate proportion of manufacturing
expenses and overheads based on stage of
completion.

Finished Goods (Including in Transit) At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour cost
and appropriate proportion of manufacturing
expenses and overheads.

Scrap At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value

viii) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenues from sale of goods including power units or services are recognised upon transfer of
control of the goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which
the company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable duly
adjusted for variable consideration & customer’s right to return the goods and the same represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business. Revenue
also excludes taxes collected from customers. Any retrospective revision in prices is accounted
for in the year of such revision.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time on accrual basis as per the terms of the contract, when
there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainty is resolved.

When sales discount and rebate arrangements result in variable consideration, appropriate
estimates are made and estimated variable consideration is recognised as a deduction from
revenue at the point of sale (to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not be required). The Company typically uses the
expected value method for estimating variable consideration, reflecting that such contracts have
similar characteristics and a range of possible outcomes.

The contract asset or a contract liability is recognised when either party to a contract has performed,
depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.
When the company has a present unconditional rights to consideration, it is recognised separately
as a receivable.

Interest on investments is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts
invested and the rate of interest.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established.
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Export incentives (Duty Drawback Scheme benefits) are accrued in the year when the right to
receive the same is established in respect of exports made and are accounted to the extent there
is no significant uncertainty about the measurability and ultimate realization/ utilization of such
benefits/ duty credit.

Other income is recognised on accrual basis except when realization of such income is uncertain.

ix) Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using
closing exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the reporting period.

Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise.

x) Leases

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, 2019, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease
accounting model for lessees.

As a lessee

The Company’s lease assets primarily consist of lease for land. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

- the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases and corresponding Right-of-use Asset. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Right-of-use Assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of
use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.
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xi) Employees Benefits

Post Employment Benefit

(i) Defined Contribution Plan

The company’s contribution to defined contribution plan paid/payable for the year is charged
to the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

The liabilities towards defined benefit schemes are determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method. Actuarial valuation under the Projected Unit Credit method are carried out at
the balance sheet date. Remeasurement gains/losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). These gains/losses which are recognised in OCI are
reflected in retained earnings and are not reclassified to Profit or Loss. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise it is
amortized on straight-line basis over the remaining average period until the benefits become
vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by plan assets. The plan assets are
measured at fair value.

(iii) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised undiscounted during the period employee renders services.
These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, performance incentives, etc.

(iv) Other Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an
actuarially determined liability at present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance
sheet date, using Projected Unit Credit method.

xii) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.

General and specific borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying
assets is added to the cost of the assets upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

xiii) Statement of Cash Flows

Standalone Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operating, investing and
financing activities.

xiv) Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

(i) Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss because of
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items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(iii) Current and Deferred Tax Expense for the Year

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

xv) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on
the basis of following:

· the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

· the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Amortised Cost:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost, if both of the following
conditions are met:

· the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

· the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Fair Value through OCI:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTOCI, if both of the following conditions
are met:

· the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

· the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
Receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

General Approach

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment
loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates
provision on trade receivables at the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
expense (or income) in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to receive the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
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the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL.

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

· Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

· Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expired. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone
Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

xvi) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts
to manage its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these contracts are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and changes are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

xvii) Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and
returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the
segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss
amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Making Body (CODM) in deciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Company.

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/
expenses/ assets/liabilities” respectively.

xviii) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax with the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, with the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xix) Dividend

Provision is made in the accounts for the amount of any final dividend declared on the date of its
approval by the shareholders. Interim dividends, if any, are recorded as a liability on the date of its
declaration by the company’s board of directors.

xx) Research and Development

Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which it is incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development is
considered as an addition to Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible Assets.

xxi) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when, based on Company’s present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements by way of notes to
accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements by way of notes to
accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3. Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the date of the Standalone Financial Statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously
evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Key estimates, assumptions and judgements

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates
and assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the
various accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

(i) Income taxes

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions as also to determine the amount
of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits.

(ii) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets are depreciated/amortised over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes or commercial obsolescence. Management reviews
the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the
amount of depreciation/amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation/
amortisaion for future periods is revised, if there are significant changes from previous estimates
and accordingly, the unamortised/depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of
the assets.

(iii) Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business, Contingent Liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are
very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed
in the Notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither recognised nor
disclosed as contingent liability. The management decides whether the matters need to be
classified as ‘remote’, ‘possible’ or ‘probable’ based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences
etc.
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(iv) Evaluation of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external
factors (significant decline in asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates
etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic
performance of the idle assets etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable amount
of the Property, Plant and Equipment and such assessment is based on estimates, future plans as
envisaged by Company.

(v) Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is
made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised
in the income statement and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depends upon
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

(vi) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical
experience. The receivables are assessed on an individual basis assessed for impairment
collectively, depending on their significance. Moreover, trade receivables are written off on a
case-to-case basis if deemed not to be collectable on the assessment of the underlying facts and
circumstances.

(vii) Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be
a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow
can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the
application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.
The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

(viii) Revenue Recognition:

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer products and power units
to the customers. The Company assesses the products and power units promised in a contract
and identifies distinct performance obligations, if any, in the contract. Identification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the
customer to benefit independently from such deliverables. Judgement is also required to determine
the transaction price for the contract. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether
the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over time. The Company considers
indicators such as to who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right
to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product, transfer of significant risks
and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. The judgment is also
exercised in determining the variable consideration, if any, involved in transaction price and also
in estimating the impact of customer’s right to return the goods, based on prior experience. The
company has exercised judgments and concluded that it has only one performance obligation
from each of its contract with customers and it is being satisfied at a point in time.
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Diamines And Chemicals Limited
CIN NO:L24110GJ1976PLC002905

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  Software & Total
Licenses

4B. Intangible assets
Gross Block

As at 31st March, 2020 1.84 1.84

Additions 2.43 2.43
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2021 4.27 4.27

Additions 0.85 0.85
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2022 5.12 5.12

Accumulated Amortisation

As at 31st March, 2020 0.59 0.59

Charge for the year 1.01 1.01
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March,2021 1.59 1.59

Charge for the year 1.52 1.52
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2022 3.11 3.11

Net Block

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2.68 2.68

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 2.01 2.01

Note :
1. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as

of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value
as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

4C. Capital work-in-progress
Balance as at beginning of the year 15.39 115.83
Add: Additions during the year 1363.16 417.06
Less: Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment 1190.59 517.50

Total 187.96 15.39
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years  3 Years

4C(i) Ageing Schedule of Capital
work-in-progress (Projects in process):

As at 31st March, 2022

i) Projects in Progress 103.63 84.33 - - 187.96
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021

i) Projects in Progress 14.54 0.85 - - 15.39
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars               To be Completed in

 Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years  3 Years

4C(ii) Completion Schedule of CWIP whose
completion is overdue or has exceeded
it’s compared cost to it’s original plan:

As at 31st March, 2022

i) Projects in progress 148.48 - - - 148.48
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021

i) Projects in progress 15.39 - - - 15.39
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021
5. Investments

Investments in Equity Instrument in
Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company  (Unquoted at Cost)
2,00,000 (P.Y. 50,000) equity shares of DACL Fine Chem Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 20.00 5.00

Total 20.00 5.00
Investments in Equity Instruments in other Entities
(a) Investments in Unquoted Securities (at FVTOCI)

3,500 (P.Y. Nil) equity shares of
KLJ Organic Diamines Limited (Fully paid up)
(Face Value ` 10 per share)* 0.09 -
Total (a) 0.09 -

(b) Investments in Quoted Securities (at FVTOCI)
2,37,950 (P.Y. 2,37,950) Equity Shares of
Sintex Plastics Technology Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) 12.97 7.85
200 (P.Y.232) Equity Shares of Alkyl Amines Chemicals Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 5.72 13.22
15,147 (P.Y. 10,847) Equity Shares of Deepak Nitrite Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 339.86 179.68
6,500 (P.Y. 6,500) Equity Shares of P.I. Industries Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) 183.28 146.78
2,500  (P.Y. 2,500) Equity Shares of Reliance Industries Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 65.87 50.08
21,000 (P.Y. 21,000)  Equity Shares of UPL Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 161.62 134.79
6,500 (P.Y. 6,500) Equity Shares of GHCL Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 35.59 14.92
51,220 (P.Y.37,220) Equity Shares of Meghmani Organics Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) 53.42 43.40
6,215 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Meghmani Finechem Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 60.46 -
16,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Gujarat State Fertilizers &
Chemicals Limited (Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 25.93 -
24,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Gujarat Narmada Valley Fert. &
Chem Limited (Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 202.67 -
5,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Infosys Limited (Fully paid up)
(Face Value ` 5 per share) 95.34 -
1,350 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Jubilant Ingrevia Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 6.07 -
3,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Syngene International Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 17.93 -
87,950 (P.Y.87,950) Equity Shares of Sintex Industries Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) - 2.95
Total (b) 1,266.73 593.67
Total (a+b) 1,266.82 593.67
Aggregate cost of quoted investments 590.79 275.08
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,266.73 593.67
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 20.09 5.00
* During the year, the company and another entity namely KLJ Organic Limited have incorporated Special
Purpose Vehicle namely, KLJ Organic Diamines Ltd (“SPV”) under mutual collaboration. The company has
subscribed to equity shares of the SPV vide the Memorandum of Association, amounting to an investment of `
35,000/-. Pending finalization of : (a) definitive and determinative terms & conditions on nature of arrangement/
relationship; and (b) respective shareholders’ rights and obligations through execution of Shareholders Agreement
the said investment has been recognised and measured at FVTOCI.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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Details of Subsidiary

Name of Company DACL Fine chem limited

Principal Activity Manufacturing of Chemicals

Place of Incorporation Vadodara, India

Principal place of business Vadodara, India

Proportion of Ownership Interest /Voting rights held by the company 100%

Investment in Subsidiary:-

Investment in subsidiary are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exist, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and the same is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

6. Financial Assets - Others
Security Deposits
- Considered Good 1.69 2.96

Total 1.69 2.96

7. Other Non-current Assets
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated)
Capital advances 132.68 18.33
Capital Advance - Advance for ROU Asset - 712.14
Prepaid Expenses/Insurance 5.60 13.48
Balances with Government Authorities
- CST 0.50 0.50
- Income Tax (Refund Receivable)                   165.84 129.20
- Income Tax paid under protest                     83.92 83.92
- GST Receivable                       1.79 -
Fixed deposit against BG*                     50.00 50.00

Total                   440.33 1,007.57

* Fixed deposit against BG are lien marked

8. Inventories*
Raw Materials                     24.59 885.79
Raw Materials - Goods in transit                           - 18.14
Work in Progress                     34.81 86.93
Finished goods                   110.51 227.26
Finished goods - Goods in transit                           - 1.05
Packing materials                       6.08 5.42
Fuel                     37.07 11.31
Stores and Spares                     16.66 18.27

Total                   229.72 1,254.17

* Valuation of inventories are done as per point no.(vii) of significant accounting policies (Note-2).
For hypothecation details refer Note-19.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

9. Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered good
Others              1,001.61 943.25
Doubtful Receivable                         - 7.61
Less:- Allowance for Doubtful Receivable                         - 7.61

Total                1,001.61 943.25

Movement in allowance for Doubtful Debts
Balance at the beginning of the year                       7.61 -
Add:- Allowance loss Recognised                           - 7.61
Less:- Reversed during the year                       7.61 -
Less:- Amount Written off as Bad Debts                           - -

Balance at the End of the year                           - 7.61

9(i) Ageing Schedule for Trade receivables

Outsanding for following periods
from due date of payment

Particulars Not  Less 6 Less 1-2 2-3 More Total
Due than 6  months- than years years than

months 1 year 1 year 3 years

F.Y 2021-22

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 889.13 112.48 - - - - - 1,001.61

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good - - - - - - - -

v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

F.Y 2020-21

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 872.23 70.79 0.23 - - - - 943.25

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good - - - - - - - -

v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
In current account 23.43 45.41
In cash credit account* 61.15 -
Cash on hand 0.52 0.30

Total 85.10 45.71

* For hypothecation details refer Note-19.

11. Other Bank Balances
Other bank deposits with original maturity of more than
3 months up to 12 months 3,808.69 3,061.25
Accrued Interest on FD 94.56 107.10
Earmarked bank balances* 43.97 42.81

Total 3,947.22 3,211.16

*These balances represents unclaimed dividend account which is earmarked for payment of dividend
and cannot be used for any other purpose.

12. Financial Assets : Others
Wind Farm Income Receivable - 4.72
Insurance Receivable - 3.97
Advances to Related Party
- To Subsidiary Company - 3.09

Total - 11.78

13. Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax (Net of provisions) 45.46 48.72

Total 45.46 48.72

14. Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Balances with Government Authorities 7.76 5.86
Prepaid Expenses 63.89 61.12
Advances to vendors 5.99 18.22
Employee Advance 0.11 0.11
Prepaid Current Employee Benefits (Gratuity) (Refer Note no.38) 0.85 -
Others - 10.25

Total 78.60 95.56

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

15. Equity Share Capital
Authorised
17,500,000 (P.Y. 17,500,000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each 1,750.00 1,750.00

Total 1,750.00 1,750.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
9,783,240 (P.Y. 9,783,240) Equity Shares ` 10/- each 978.32 978.32

Total 978.32 978.32

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting
period is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  No. of Share
Shares Capital

As at 1st April, 2020 97,83,240 978.32
Additions/(Reductions) - -
As at 31st March,2021 97,83,240 978.32

As at 1st April,2021 97,83,240 978.32

Additions/(Reductions) - -

As at 31st March, 2022 97,83,240 978.32

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder                                 As at 31st March, 2022             As at 31st March, 2021
No. of % of No. of % of

shares Holding shares Holding

Amit M. Mehta 12,45,229 12.73% 12,37,726 12.65%

Cherry A Mehta 10,57,079 10.80% 10,53,278 10.77%

Perfo Chem (India) Pvt Ltd 9,65,029 9.86% 9,62,179 9.83%

Harsh Amit Mehta 4,95,110 5.06% - -

Finorga India Pvt Ltd 4,94,917 5.06% 4,92,067 5.03%

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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Promoters’ Shareholding at the end of the year

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
end of the year end of the year

(As at 31st (As at 31st

March, 2022)   March, 2021)

Shareholder's Name No. of % of No. of % of % change
Shares total Shares total in share-

Shares Shares holding
of the of the during

company company the year

1. Amit Mahendra Mehta 12,45,229 12.73% 12,37,726 12.65% 0.08%

2. Cherry Amit Mehta 10,57,079 10.80% 10,53,278 10.77% 0.04%

3. Perfochem (India) Pvt. Ltd. 9,65,029 9.86% 9,62,179 9.83% 0.03%

4. Harsh Amit Mehta 4,95,110 5.06% 4,16,064 4.25% 0.81%

5. Finorga (India) Pvt. Ltd. 4,94,917 5.06% 4,92,067 5.03% 0.03%

6. Mohak Amit Mehta 4,87,250 4.98% 4,07,754 4.17% 0.81%

7. S. Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 4,86,200 4.97% 4,86,200 4.97% 0.00%

8. Pinakin Kantilal Patel 95,212 0.97% 95,212 0.97% 0.00%

9. Kokilaben M Mehta - 0.00% 1,54,588 1.58% -1.58%

Right, Preferences and restrictions attached to Shares

(i) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of ` 10 each. Each
holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 11th May, 2022 have recommended a final dividend
of ` 3 per Equity Share (previous year ` 5 per equity share) to be approved by the shareholders
in the ensuing general meeting. On approval, this will result in an outflow of `̀̀̀̀ 293.50 Lakhs
(Previous year ` 489.16 Lakhs)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

16. Other Equity
General Reserve 517.12 517.12
Retained Earnings 7,947.32 6,748.28
Equity instruments carried through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 581.48 258.85

Total 9,045.92 7,524.25

Particulars relating to Other Equity

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 517.12 517.12
Additions/Deductions during the year

Balance at the end of the year 517.12 517.12

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,748.28 5,037.98
Add: Net Profit for the year 1,672.35 2,103.37
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement
of defined benefit obligation, net of income tax 15.85 (1.74)
Less: Payments of dividends (Final) (489.16) (365.67)
Less: Tax on Dividends (Final) - (25.66)

Balance at the end of the year 7,947.32 6,748.28

Equity instruments carried through other comprehensive income (OCI)
Balance at the beginning of the year 258.85 (15.45)
Add: Gain/(Loss) on sale of Investment 12.32 (21.52)
Add: Fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments
(Net of Taxes) 310.31 295.83

Balance at the end of the year 581.48 258.85

Total 9,045.92 7,524.25

Description of the nature and purpose of Other Equity

General Reserve :

The General Reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.
The reserve can be distributed/utilised by the Company in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings:

Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date and is net of amount transferred
to other reserves such as general reserves etc.& amount distributed as dividends and related dividend
distribution taxes.

Reserve for equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income :

This represents cumulative gains / (losses) arising on the measurement of equity instruments at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022



93

Diamines And Chemicals Limited
CIN NO:L24110GJ1976PLC002905

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

17. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 40.19 36.20

Total 40.19 36.20

18. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax Liabilities 380.28 392.65
Less: Deferred tax Assets (25.93) (33.97)

Total 354.35 358.68

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening Recog- Recognised Closing
Balance nised in other Balance

in Profit Compreh-
or Loss ensive

Income

Major Components and Reconciliation of
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities

2021-22

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 354.44 (49.50) - 304.94

Equity Instruments through FVTOCI 38.21 - 38.90 77.11

Provision for Provident Fund liability (2.52) - - (2.52)

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis (28.78) (1.16) 5.33 (24.61)

Provision for Doubtful debts (1.92) 1.92 - -

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (0.76) 0.20 - (0.56)

Total 358.68 (48.54) 44.23 354.35

2020-21

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 453.72 (99.28) - 354.44

Equity Instruments through FVTOCI - - 38.21 38.21

Provision for Provident Fund liability (2.91) 0.40 - (2.52)

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis (31.12) 2.93 (0.59) (28.78)

Provision for Doubtful debts - (1.92) - (1.92)

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (1.21) 0.44 - (0.76)

Total 418.49 (97.42) 37.63 358.68
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021

19. Borrowings
Loan Repayable on Demand
(i) Secured

- Cash Credit from bank* - 30.24

Total - 30.24

*The Company has availed fund based working capital facilities viz., Cash Credit Facility and non-fund
based working facilities from Bankers viz., Bank Guarantees and Letter of Credits, which are secured
by hypothecation charge on Inventories, book debts and all other current assets of the company, as
primary security and registered mortgage charge over land & building and hypothecation charge on
plant & machinery as collateral security.
**The Company has availed borrowings from State bank of India against security of current assets.
The Quarterly Returns or the Current Assets Statements filed by the company with the Bank/Financial
Institution are in the agreement with the books of account.

20. Trade Payables
Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been identified by the Company on the basis of the
information available. The relevant disclosures are given below :
* Payment made to suppliers beyond the due date during the year was `̀̀̀̀ Nil (P.Y. ` Nil). No interest
during the year has been paid to Micro and Small Enterprises as there were no delayed payments.
Further, interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end is `̀̀̀̀ Nil (P.Y. ` Nil).

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises* 0.98 12.62
Others 237.42 273.91

Total 238.40 286.53

20(i)Ageing Schedule for MSME and other Trade payables

                                                          Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars  Not Less 1-2 2-3 More  Total
Due  than years years than

1 year  3 years

F.Y 2021-22

A. Cases where due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME 0.98 0.98
(ii) Others 209.49 27.57 237.06
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME                    -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others 0.31 0.31

B. Cases where no due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME                    -
(ii) Others 0.05 0.05
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others -
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                                                          Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars  Not Less 1-2 2-3 More  Total
Due  than years years than

1 year  3 years

F.Y 2020-21

A. Cases where due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME 12.62 12.62
(ii) Others 251.38 6.86 258.24
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME                    -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others                    -

B. Cases where no due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME                    -
(ii) Others 5.10 10.57 15.67
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME                    -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others                    -

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

21. Other Financial Liabilities
Forward Contract Liability 0.03 1.24
Unclaimed dividends 43.70 42.81
Payable for Capital Goods 5.53 0.97
Employee Bonus / Exgratia Payable 29.12 29.76
Salary Payable 39.18 38.68
Outstanding Liabilities Expenses 17.26 15.47
Commission Payable to Directors 49.63 51.90
Other Payables 6.81 6.34

Total 191.26 187.17

22. Other Current Liabilities
Liability for Statutory Payments 123.86 29.62
Contract Liability - Advance from Customers 54.83 8.19

Total 178.69 37.81

23. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity - 6.34
Compensated absences 20.14 22.92

Others
Others 12.26 13.04

Total 32.40 42.30
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

24. Revenue From Operations
(a) Sale of products

Manufactured Goods 6,513.68 6,209.64

(b) Sale of Power
Sale of Power generation from windmill 75.30 59.61

(c) Other Operating Revenue
Sale of Scrap 21.25 10.60
Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 0.45 1.86

Total 6,610.68 6,281.71

25. Other Income
Interest on Fixed and Other Deposits 162.73 189.87
Insurance Income - 3.97
Dividend Income 8.10 61.28
Exchange gains/(losses) on foreign currency 2.74 0.08
Balances / Provisions written back (Net) 0.16 0.04
Miscellaneous income 0.05 -
Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Debts 7.61 -
Reversal of Provision for Non Moving Stock 0.78 -

Total 182.17 255.24

26. Cost of Materials consumed
Raw Materials Consumed :
Opening Stock 903.93 239.05
Add: Purchases 889.73 2,165.92
Less: Closing Stock 24.59 903.93

1,769.07 1,501.04
Packing Materials :
Opening Stock 5.42 4.91
Add: Purchases 146.59 139.49
Less: Closing Stock 6.08 5.42

145.93 138.98

Total 1,915.00 1,640.02

27. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress
Finished Goods
Closing Stock 110.51 228.31
Less: Opening Stock 228.31 232.26

(117.80) (3.95)

Work in Progress
Closing Stock 34.81 86.93
Less: Opening Stock 86.93 196.19

(52.12) (109.26)

Total 169.92 113.21
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

28. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus * 717.36 628.17
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 67.04 60.89
Staff Welfare Expenses 51.25 47.63

Total 835.65 736.69

*  Including Commission to Executive Chairman & Director

29. Finance Costs
Interest on
Cash Credit Facilities 2.80 0.06
Others 0.18 0.34
Other Borrowing Costs
Bank Charges 5.31 4.07
Processing Charges 0.26 3.07

Total 8.55 7.54

30. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation on PPE (Including Right-of-use Assets) 165.28 177.54
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1.52 1.01

Total 166.80 178.55
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

31. Other Expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parts 100.42 80.53
Power and Fuel 562.24 364.67
Factory Expenses 25.83 15.44
Material Handling 57.21 54.64

Repair and Maintenance
- Buildings 32.46 43.32
- Machinery 76.80 84.54
- Others 5.22 8.84
Rent 32.64 9.87
Insurance 55.78 30.18
Rates and Taxes 19.32 4.21
Legal fees 1.15 1.00

Professional Fees
- R&D Consultancy fees 34.13 55.15
- Others 112.34 99.45
Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below) 10.27 11.21
Director’s Sitting fees 15.72 9.92
Commission to Non Executive Directors 6.79 7.58
Printing and Stationery 2.16 2.66
Security Charges 32.04 25.97
House Keeping Expenses 14.34 12.07
Travelling and Motor Car Expenses 31.54 9.14
Research and Development Expenses 3.07 1.32
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note (ii) below) 57.00 42.06
Selling Expenses 40.92 56.91
Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment 25.73 133.20
Loss on Deposit/Advances - 50.00
Loss on Slump sale 59.76 -
Donation Exp - 25.00
Miscellaneous Expenses* 71.34 37.67

Total 1,486.22 1,276.55

* None of the item individually accounts for more than ` 10,00,000 or
1% of revenue whichever is higher.

(i) Payment to Auditors :
(a) Statutory Auditors

- As Auditor 7.70 7.70
- For Taxation Service 1.90 1.90
- Certification 0.15 1.16
- Reimbursement of Expenses 0.01 -

(b) Cost Auditors
- As Auditor 0.52 0.45

Total 10.27 11.21
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(ii) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: ̀̀̀̀̀  57.00 Lakhs  (Previous

Year: ` 42.06 Lakhs)

(b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars In Cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash

(i) Construction/acquisition of any Asset - - -
(ii) On purposes other than above 57.00 57.00

(42.06) - (42.06)

Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.

32. Disclosure of the aggregate amount of research and development expenditure recognised as an
expense during the period - Research and Development (R&D) :
The Company has in-House R&D unit at its registered office and is registered with the Department of
Scientific & Industrial Research (DSIR), Ministry of Science & Technology, New Delhi.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Revenue Expenditure 220.88 163.76

Total 220.88 163.76

33. Disclosures as per Ind AS- 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”:

1. The Company derives revenues from sale of goods, power units and scrap from its contracts with
customers. The revenues have been disclosed in Note No.24 “Revenue from Operations”.

2. The disaggregation of revenues is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenues from sale of goods 6,513.68 6,209.64
Revenues from sale of power units 75.30 59.61
Other Operating Revenue
- Revenues from sale of scrap 21.25 10.60
- Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 0.45 1.86

Total 6,610.68 6,281.71
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The revenues are further disaggregated into revenues from domestic as well as export market as
follows:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature  Domestic  Exports

For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,

2022  2021 2022 2021

Sale of goods 6,425.98 6,055.96 87.70 153.68
Sale of power units 75.30 59.61 - -
Other Operating Revenue 21.70 12.46 - -

Total 6,522.98 6,128.03 87.70 153.68

3. The movement in Company’s receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities are as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Receivables Contract Contract
Assets Liabilities

Balance as at the beginning of the year 943.25 - 8.19
Additions / (Adjustments) 58.36 - 46.64

Balance as at the end of the year 1,001.61 - 54.83

The revenue of `̀̀̀̀ 8.19 lakhs (P.Y. ` 5.59 lakhs) has been recognised from the carried forward
contract liabilities balance as at the beginning of the year.

4. The revenue from contracts with customers for the year includes variable consideration (volume
& Rate discounts) of ̀̀̀̀̀  2.00 lakhs (P.Y. ̀  6.40 lakhs), which has been deducted from the transaction
price. The company uses expected value method in measuring the variable consideration. There
were no constraints in estimating variable consideration.

5. The Company has applied practical expedient referred to in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and
accordingly, has not disclosed information related to remaining performance obligations. No
consideration from contracts with customers is excluded from the remaining performance
obligations.
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

34. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 on “Income Taxes”
A. Components of Tax Expenses/(Income)

a. Profit or Loss Section
Current Tax 575.56 695.55
Earlier Year 11.37 (117.11)
Deferred Tax (48.57) (97.42)

Income tax expense recognised in the
statement of profit or loss 538.36 481.02

Income tax relating to Other Comprehensive Income

b. Other Comprehensive Income Section
Remeasurement of Defined Benefits Plans 5.33 (0.59)
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 38.90 38.21

Income Tax Expense recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income 44.23 37.63

B. Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense/(Income) and
Accounting Profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
applicable in India
Profit before Tax 2,210.71 2,584.39
Corporate Tax Rate as per Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on Accounting Profit 556.39 650.44
Effect of income exempt from tax (8.10) (15.42)
Effect of expenses/provisions not deductible in
determining taxable profit 57.14 29.53
Effect of concessions - (2.87)
Effect of change in tax rate due to switch to new tax regime - (56.79)
Effect of expenses/provisions deductible in
determining taxable profit (78.45) (6.75)
Tax adjustment of earlier years 11.37 (117.11)

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 538.36 481.02

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022



102

Diamines And Chemicals Limited
CIN NO:L24110GJ1976PLC002905

35. In accordance with Ind AS - 33, “Earnings Per Share”, the Basic and Diluted EPS have been
calculated as under:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Profits available to equity shareholders (` in Lakhs) 1,672.35 2,103.37
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 97,83,240 97,83,240

Earnings Per Share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each
- Basic & Diluted (in `) 17.09 21.50

36. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

(A) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

(a) Guarantees issued by the bankers on behalf of the Company 45.51 44.68

Total (a) 45.51 44.68

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 6.40 6.40

Total (b) 6.40 6.40

(c) Pending Litigations:
(i) Income Tax 132.76 175.74
(ii) Service Tax/Excise 66.34 66.34
(iii) Provident Fund 29.50 29.50

Total (c) 228.60 271.58

Total (a+b+c) 280.51 322.66

(B) Commitments:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances) 1286.48 103.39
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37. Leases
The Company has taken certain warehouses and vehicles on rent for its business operations under
leave and license agreements and rent agreements respectively. These are generally not non-
cancellable agreements and they are for the periods not exceeding 12 months under the said
agreements. The said agreements are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Lease Payments recognised during the year:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Lease Payments - Rent 32.64 9.87
Bus and Car Rent Payments (Included in note no. 28 under
Staff Welfare Expenses) 26.10 21.97

The company has adopted Ind AS 116 w.e.f. 1st April 2019. The Company has elected to apply
recognition exemption permitted under the said Ind AS and accounted these leases as short-term
leases. Hence, the payments in relation to these leases are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

38. Employee Benefits

The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

A. Defined Contribution Plans
i. Provident Fund
ii. Superannuation Fund

The Provident Fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the
Superannuation Fund is administered by the LIC of India as applicable for all eligible employees.
Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. These funds are recognised by the Income
Tax Authorities.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Contribution to Provident Fund 37.51 32.91

Superannuation Fund 3.52 4.25

Total 41.03 37.16

B. Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. Under the gratuity plan,
the eligible employees are entitled to post retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each
year of service until the retirement age of 58, subject to a payment ceiling of ̀  20 lakhs. The benefit
vests upon completion of five years of continuous service as per “The Payment of Gratuity Act” and
once vested it is payable to the employee on retirement or on termination of employment. The
Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India through its Gratuity Trust Fund.

The obligations under the compensated absences plan have been determined by Independent
Actuary using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method. Compensated absences is payable to all
eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or
resignation. At the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.
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The provision towards Compensated Absences is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Non-Current liability 40.19 36.20
Current liability 20.14 22.92

Total 60.33 59.12

Gratuity is defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to following Risks:

Interest Risk :

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities Rate will increase the
present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases
the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk :

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level
will increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk :

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in
India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt
instruments.

Mortality Risk :

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for the life time and payable till retirement age
only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

C. The Company offers the following employee benefits scheme to its employees

a. Gratuity  (Funded through annual payment to Life insurance corporation of India)

b. Compensated absences encashment (Unfunded)

a. Gratuity

Valuations in respect of above have been carried out by independent actuary, as at the
balance sheet date, based on the following assumptions:

Particulars                                                                                                  Valuation as at

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

i. Discount Rate (per annum) 6.90% 6.05%
ii. Rate of increase in compensation levels

(per annum) 6.00% 6.00%
iii. Expected Rate of Return on Assets 6.90% 6.05%
iv. Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00%
v. Mortality rate during the employment  Indian Assured Indian Assured

Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Table   (2012-14) Table

vi. Actuarial Valuation Method Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit  Method Credit  Method

vii. Retirement Age (years) 58 58
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viii. The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined after considering several
applicable factors such as the composition of the plan assets, investment strategy,
market scenario, etc.

ix. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India
securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

x. The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation,
seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

The provision towards the Gratuity is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Current liability/(Asset) (0.85) 6.34

Total (0.85) 6.34

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

i. Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the
Beginning of the year 122.05 106.12
Interest Cost 5.53 6.01
Current Service Cost 18.02 15.91
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (46.45) (11.07)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations -
Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (5.16) 1.25
Due to change in Demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations -
Due to Experience (16.59) 3.83
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the
End of the year 77.40 122.05

ii. Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year 115.71 34.63
Interest Income 5.69 1.95
Contributions by the Employer 3.88 87.45
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (46.45) (11.07)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.58) 2.75
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the year 78.25 115.71

iii. Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year) (77.40) (122.05)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 78.25 115.71
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 0.85 (6.34)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.85 (6.34)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

iv. Expenses Recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss for the Current year
Current Service Cost 18.02 15.91
Net Interest Cost (0.16) 4.06

Expenses Recognised 17.86 19.97

v. Expenses Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) for Current year
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligation For the year (21.75) 5.08
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.58 (2.75)

Net (Income)/Expenses For the year Recognised in OCI (21.17) 2.33

vi. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments : From the Fund
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years
From the Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 19.19 61.34
2nd Following Year 15.67 5.91
3rd Following Year 10.17 15.01
4th Following Year 2.01 9.69
5th Following Year 1.17 1.84

Sum of Years 6 to 10 17.98 14.10

vii. Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 77.40 122.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (3.48) (2.50)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 3.80 2.72
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 3.48 2.53
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (3.41) (2.45)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.10 0.04
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.10) (0.04)

Notes on Sensitivity Analysis
i. Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumptions of the Company which are discount

rate and salary assumptions as of the end of the reporting period, showing how the defined
benefit obligation would have been affected by changes is presented in the table above.

ii. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit
obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

iii. There is no change in the method from the previous period and the points /percentage by
which the assumptions are stressed are same to those in the previous year.

39. Information on Segment Reporting as per Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”
Operating Segments are those components of business whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the Chief Operating Decision making body in the Company to make decisions for performance
assessment and resource allocation. The Company has identified two reportable primary segments,
Speciality Chemicals and Power Generation in terms of Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”. (Refer
Note 4A)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

A. Segment Revenue (Sales / Services to external customers):
a. Speciality Chemicals 6,535.38 6,222.10
b. Power Generation 75.30 59.61

Total Revenue 6,610.68 6,281.71
B. Segment Results :

Profit/ (Loss)  before Tax and Interest
a. Speciality Chemicals 2,190.66 2,549.48
b. Power Generation (65.68) (149.25)

Total 2,124.98 2,400.23
Less:Interest Expense 8.55 7.54
Others Unallocated Expenses (94.27) (191.70)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2,210.71 2,584.39
Current Tax 575.56 695.55
Tax relating to Earlier Years 11.37 (117.11)
Deferred Tax (48.57) (97.42)

538.36 481.02
Profit /(Loss) after Tax 1,672.35 2,103.37

Other Information :
Segment Assets
a. Speciality Chemicals 9,692.01 8,476.28
b. Power Generation 80.70 403.46
c. Others – Unallocated 1,286.82 601.76

Total 11,059.53 9,481.50
Segment Liabilities
a. Speciality Chemicals 1,035.29 978.93
b. Power Generation - -
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 1,035.29 978.93
Capital Expenditure during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals – Property, Plant and Equipment

and Capital work-in-progress 1,948.06 517.18
– Capital Advances 132.68 730.47

b. Power Generation - -
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 2,080.74 1,247.65
Depreciation during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals 147.45 134.01
b. Power Generation 19.35 44.54
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 166.80 178.55
Impairment during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals - 14.50
b. Power Generation 25.73 118.70
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 25.73 133.20
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Notes :
i. One customer contributed 10% or more to the company's revenue for F.Y. 2021-22 i.e. `̀̀̀̀

1609.89 lakhs (P.Y. ` 1472.70 lakhs).
ii. The revenue from the said customer pertains to the Speciality Chemicals.
iii. The Company does not have any other reportable segment in terms of Ind AS 108 on

“Operating Segments”.

40. Related Party Disclosures:
Name of related parties and description of their relationships are as under:
(A) Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Amit M Mehta Executive Chairman
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam Executive Director
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Professional Director

(Independent Director upto 5th November,2020)
Professional Director-Non executive directors
(w.e.f 06th November, 2020)

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Ambrish Dalal Independent Director
Mrs. Kejal Pandya Independent Director

(B) Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Mohak Mehta Relative of Key Managerial personnel

(C) Wholly owned Subsidiary (WOS)

DACL Fine Chem Limited Subsidiary (since incorporation i.e. 30th July, 2020)

(D) Director of WOS:

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala Director of WOS (w.e.f. 17th November, 2020)

(E) Entities over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence:
S Amit & Co.
S Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.
Divya Desh Tour & Travels LLP
Holidaywalas.Com Travel LLP
Perfo Chem (I) Private Limited
Reaxa Chemistry Solutions LLP
Hi End Property Developers LLP
Mohar Properties and Trading LLP
Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd.
Chem Amit
Godiawala Trading Corporation
R.S.Chhabra & Co.(Prop. Mr Rajendra Chhabra)
Malabar Capital Advisors Private Limited
Malabar Capital Private Limited
Karuv Management Services LLP
RDVM Partners LLP
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The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in ordinary course of business
during the year:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction  Entities over Key Relative Wholly Director Total
which Key Manag- of Key owned of WOS

Managerial erial Manag- Subsi-
Personnel perso- erial diary

exercise nnel perso- (WOS)
significant nnel

influence

Remuneration paid - 148.91 23.35 - 16.37 188.63
- (122.68) (23.35) - (5.50) (151.53)

Mr. Amit M Mehta - 92.23 - - - 92.23
- (71.23) - - - (71.23)

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam - 56.68 - - - 56.68
- (51.45) - - - (51.45)

Mr. Mohak Mehta - - 23.35 - - 23.35
- - (23.35) - - (23.35)

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala - - - - 16.37 16.37
- - - - (5.50) (5.50)

Sitting Fees paid - 15.72 - - - 15.72
- (9.92) - - - (9.92)

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra - 4.44 - - - 4.44
- (2.84) - - - (2.84)

Mr. Ambrish Dalal - 3.84 - - - 3.84
- (2.44) - - - (2.44)

Mr. Dhruv Mehta - 3.80 - - - 3.80
- (2.40) - - - (2.40)

Mrs. Kejal Pandya - 3.64 - - - 3.64
- (2.24) - - - (2.24)

Professional Fees 12.00 - - - - 12.00
(6.00) - - - (9.42) (15.42)

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala - - - - - -
- - - - (9.42) (9.42)

R.S.Chhabra & Co. 12.00 - - - - 12.00
(Prop. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra) (6.00) - - - - (6.00)

Commission - 49.63 - - - 49.63
- (51.90) - - - (51.90)

Mr. Amit M Mehta - 24.69 - - - 24.69
- (27.57) - - - (27.57)

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam - 18.15 - - - 18.15
- (16.75) - - - (16.75)

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra - 3.09 - - - 3.09
- (3.45) - - - (3.45)

Mr. Dhruv Mehta - 1.23 - - - 1.23
- (1.38) - - - (1.38)

Mr. Ambrish Dalal - 1.23 - - - 1.23
- (1.38) - - - (1.38)

Mrs. Kejal Pandya - 1.23 - - - 1.23
- (1.38) - - - (1.38)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction  Entities over Key Relative Wholly Director Total
which Key Manag- of Key owned of WOS

Managerial erial Manag- Subsi-
Personnel personnel erial diary

exercise perso- (WOS)
significant nnel

influence

Reimbursement of 4.98 0.14 - - 0.88 5.99
Expenses (0.34) (0.60) - - - (0.94)
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam - 0.14 - - - 0.14

- (0.60) - - - (0.60)
S Amit Speciality 4.22 - - - - 4.22
Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. (0.34) - - - - (0.34)
S Amit & Co. 0.75 - - - - 0.75

- - - - - -
Mr. Tanmay Godiawala - - - - 0.88 0.88

- - - - - -

Wholly owned - - - - - -
Subsidiary (WOS) - - - (3.09) - (3.09)
DACL Fine Chem Limited - - - - - -

- - - (3.09) - (3.09)

Investment in - - - 15.00 - 15.00
Subsidiary (WOS) - - - (5.00) - (5.00)
DACL Fine chem limited - - - 15.00 - 15.00

- - - (5.00) - (5.00)

Purchase of Goods 2.74 - - - - 2.74
(2.95) - - - - (2.95)

Reaxa Chemistry 2.74 - - - - 2.74
Solutions, LLP (2.95) - - - - (2.95)

Sale of Goods - - - - - -
(0.27) - - - - (0.27)

Reaxa Chemistry - - - - - -
Solutions, LLP (0.27) - - - - (0.27)

Rent of Office 5.52 - - - - 5.52
- - - - - -

Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd.  5.52 - - - - 5.52
- - - - - -

Rent of P&M 21.24 - - - - 21.24
- - - - - -

Reaxa Chemistry 21.24 - - - - 21.24
Solutions, LLP - - - - - -
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction  Entities over Key Relative Wholly Director Total
which Key Manag- of Key owned of WOS

Managerial erial Manag- Subsi-
Personnel perso- erial diary

exercise nnel perso- (WOS)
significant nnel

influence

Advance for 16.99 - - - - 16.99
Capital Assets - - - - - -
Reaxa Chemistry 16.99 - - - - 16.99
Solutions, LLP - - - - - -

Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.

Balance as at: (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Other payable: 60.73 65.12
Remuneration :
Mr. Amit M Mehta 4.87 4.05
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 2.33 2.62
Mr. Mohak Mehta 1.49 1.60
Mr. Tanmay Godiawala 0.98 1.07

Legal & Professional Fees
R.S.Chhabra & Co. (Prop. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra) - Net of TDS 0.90 0.93

Commission to Directors:
Mr. Amit M Mehta 24.69 27.57
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 18.15 16.75
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 3.09 3.45
Mr. Dhruv Mehta 1.23 1.38
Mr. Ambrish Dalal 1.23 1.38
Mrs. Kejal Pandya 1.23 1.38

Purchase of Goods
Reaxa Chemistry Solutions, LLP - 2.94

Rent of Office
Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd. - Net of TDS 0.53 -

Other receivable: 16.99 3.09

Advances : -                             -
DACL Fine chem Limited - 3.09
Reaxa Chemistry Solutions, LLP 16.99 -

Note - ‘Terms and Conditions’ (i) All outstanding balances are unsecured.
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Category-wise break up of compensation to key management personnel is as follows:
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Short-term employee benefits 191.75 166.99
Post-employment benefits* - -
* Does not include provisions for incremental gratuity and compensated absences liabilities, since the
provisions are based on actuarial valuations for the Company as a whole.
Note:-
During the year, the company and another entity namely KLJ Organic Limited have incorporated Special
Purpose Vehicle namely, KLJ Organic Diamines Ltd (“SPV”) under mutual collaboration. The company
has subscribed to equity shares of the SPV vide the Memorandum of Association, amounting to an
investment of ` 35,000/-. Pending finalization of : (a) definitive and determinative terms & conditions on
nature of arrangement/relationship; and (b) respective shareholders’ rights and obligations through
execution of Shareholders Agreement the said investment has been recognised and measured at FVTOCI.

41. Disclosures on financial instruments
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides
additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.
The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.
(a) Financial assets and liabilities:

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial
assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021
I. Financial assets:

Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Derivatives
- Forward Contracts - -
Total - -
Measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Investments in equity instruments (Quoted) 1,266.73 593.67
Total 1,266.73 593.67
Measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables 1,001.61 943.25
Cash and cash equivalents 85.10 45.71
Other bank balances 3,947.22 3,211.16
Other financial assets 1.69 14.74
Total 5,035.62 4,214.86

II. Financial liabilities:
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Derivatives
- Forward Contracts 0.03 1.24
Total 0.03 1.24
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings - 30.24
Trade payables 238.40 286.53
Other financial liabilities 191.23 185.93
Total 429.63 502.70

The carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximates to their fair values.
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(b) Capital Management
The company’s objective when managing capital is to:
- Safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that the Company is able to provide

maximum return to stakeholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company’s Board of Directors reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this
review, the Board considers the cost of capital, risk associated with each class of capital
requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.
Fair Value Measurement:
This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial
assets.
Fair value of the Company’s financial assets / financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis
Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars           As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

1. Financial assets / liabilities at fair
value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)

Financial assets / (liabilities)
measured at fair value
Gain/(Loss) on Forward Contract (0.03) (1.24)

Valuation technique and key input : Mark to market Statement provided by State Bank of
India

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars           As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2. Financial assets / liabilities at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets measured
at fair value
Investments in equity Shares -
Quoted 1,266.73 593.67
unquoted 0.09

Valuation technique and key input : Level 1-Quoted bid prices from Stock Exchange

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
Unlisted shares valued at fair value
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Purchases 0.35
Fair value changes (0.26)
Balance at the end of the year 0.09 -
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Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
(but fair value disclosures are required)
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the financial statements (except fair value of investments in equity instruments
and Derivatives - Forward Contracts) approximate their fair values.
There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended 31st

March, 2022.
3. Disclosure related to Derecognition of  investments in equity instruments measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income during the reporting period;

(a) the reasons for disposing of the investments - The company has disposed of certain
long-term investments in equity instruments in line with its risk management policy to
mitigate the associated risks.

(b) the fair value of the investments at the date of derecognition - Sale Price on the date
of sale.

(c) the cumulative gain or loss on disposal - Loss on disposal ` ` ` ` ` 9.20 Lakhs (P.Y Loss `
21.52 Lakhs)

(c) Financial risk management:

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its
business strategies. The risk management policy is approved by the Company’s Board. The
Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings (if any), trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to
provide guarantees to support its operations in selective instances. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations and investments. The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk etc. The objectives of the Company’s financing policy are to secure solvency, limit
financial risks and optimise the cost of capital. The Company’s capital structure is managed using
equity and debt ratios as part of the Company’s financial planning.

(a) Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices- will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return. The major
components of market risk are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

(I) Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company undertakes
transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise.

Foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2022 are hedged as per the policy of the
company

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Amount in `̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs Amount in ` in Lakhs
Foreign Foreign

currency currency

Payable USD 2,11,877.23 161.17 2,12,200.56 157.35
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Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

The Company is principally exposed to foreign currency risk against USD. Sensitivity of profit
or loss arises mainly from USD denominated receivables and payables.As per management’s
assessment of reasonable possible changes in the exchange rate of +/- 5% between USD-
INR currency pair, sensitivity of profit or loss only on outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the period end is presented below:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

USD sensitivity at year end For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Assets:
Weakening of INR by 5% - -
Strengthening of INR by 5% - -

Liabilities:

Weakening of INR by 5% -8.06 -7.87
Strengthening of INR by 5% 8.06 7.87

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover foreign
currency payments in USD. The Company enters in to contracts with terms up to 120 days.

Forward cover is obtained from bank for each of the aggregated exposures and the Trade
deal is booked. The forward cover deals are all backed by actual trade underlines and
settlement of these contracts on maturity are by actual delivery of the hedged currency for
settling the underline hedged trade transaction.

Though the forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments, they are used for
hedging foreign currency exposure and outstanding as at year ended 31st March, 2022 and
31st March, 2021 are as under:-

Outstanding contracts                  Average exchange rates             Foreign Currency

31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021 2022 2021

USD-Sell 76.07 74.15 2,11,877.23 2,12,200.56

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Outstanding contracts                       Nominal Amounts                     Fair Value

31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021 2022 2021

In INR 161.17 157.35 161.14 156.11

Total 161.17 157.35 161.14 156.11

(II) Interest rate risk:
The Company invests the surplus fund generated from operations in bank deposits. Bank
deposits are made for a period of up to 12 months and carry interest rate of 5%-5.10% as per
prevailing market interest rate. Considering these bank deposits are short term in nature,
there is no significant interest rate risk. There is no significant utilisation of borrowings.

(III) Price risk:
The Company’s equity securities price risk arises from investments held and classified in the
balance sheet at fair value through OCI. The Company’s equity investments in Securities are
publicly traded.
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Price sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of profit or loss in respect of investments in equity shares at the end of the reporting
period for +/-5% change in price and net asset value is presented below:

Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2022 would increase / decrease by
` ` ` ` ` 63.34 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 29.69 Lakhs)  as a result of 5% changes in fair value of equity investments
measured at FVTOCI.

(b) Credit risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Company’s exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled
by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management of the Company.
Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance
with banks, investments in equity instruments and trade receivables.

None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks,
which may result into financial loss for the company.

(c) Liquidity  risk:

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the
obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, liquidity management also
involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liquidity
ratios.

The information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to
pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based
on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 Years 3 Years to 5 Years
1 year to 3 Years 5 Years and above

As at 31st March, 2022
Borrowings -
Trade payables 238.09 0.31
Other Financial Liabilities 191.26

Total 429.35 0.31

As at 31st March, 2021
Borrowings 30.24
Trade payables 286.53
Other Financial Liabilities 187.17

Total 503.94
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43. The Company does not have any Immovable Property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the
Company.

44. The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

45. The company has sought balance confirmations from trade receivables and trade payables, wherever
such balance confirmations are received by the Company, the same are reconciled and appropriate
adjustments if required, are made in the books of account.

46. The previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make it comparable with the
current year.

47. Approval of Standalone Financials Statements
The Standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on  11th May,
2022.

As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of
Diamines and Chemicals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Diamines and Chemicals Limited
(“the Holding Company” or “the Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at  March 31, 2022, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising
of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and ICAI’s Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of these consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Sr. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
No.

1 Litigations and claims

(Refer to note 36(c) to the consolidated
financial statements)

In case of holding company, the cases are
pending with multiple tax authorities like
Income Tax, Excise/Service Tax and Provident
Fund Authority etc.

Our audit procedures, inter alia, included the
following:

· Evaluation of holding company’s management’s
judgment of tax risks, estimates of tax exposures,
other claims and contingencies. Past and
current experience with the tax authorities and
management’s response on the subject matter
were used to assess the appropriateness of
management’s best estimate of the most likely
outcome of each uncertain contingent liability. 
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In normal course of business, financial
exposures may arise from pending
proceedings and from litigation and claims.
Whether a claim needs to be recognised as
liability or disclosed as contingent liability in
the consolidated financial statements is
dependent on number of significant
assumptions and judgments. The amounts
involved are potentially significant and
determining the amount, if any, to be
recognised or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements, is inherently subjective. 

We considered the above area as a key audit
matter due to associated uncertainty related
to the outcome of these matters and
application of material judgement in
interpretation of law.

· Understanding the current status of the tax
assessments & other litigations and discussing
selected matters with the holding company’s
management. 

· Assessing the holding company’s assumptions
and estimates in respect of claims, included in
the contingent l iabilit ies disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

· Assessment of the probability of negative result
of litigation and the reliability of estimates of
related obligations.

Conclusion:

Based on procedure described above, we did not
identify any material exceptions relating to
management’s assertions, and treatment,
presentation and disclosure of the subject matter in
the consolidated financial statements.

Sr. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
No.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder’s
Information but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by
the circumstances and the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
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and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Groupare also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. For the
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by us, we remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by us. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We have audited the financial statements of wholly owned subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of `̀̀̀̀ 15.43 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022 (P.Y. ` 4.46 Lakhs), total revenues of `̀̀̀̀  Nil (P.Y. `  Nil),
total comprehensive income (comprising of Loss and other comprehensive income) of `̀̀̀̀ (0.99) Lakhs (P.Y.
` (3.88) Lakhs) and net cash inflows amounting to ̀̀̀̀̀  10.96 Lakhs for the year ended on that date (P.Y. ̀   4.26
Lakhs), as considered in the consolidated financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act,we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

c. the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as on March
31, 2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary,
none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A”;

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Group, to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act;and

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 36(c) to the consolidated financial
statements;

ii. the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2022;
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iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

iv. (a) the respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is
company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act by us,  to the best of our knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) the respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is
company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act by us, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company and its subsidiary which
is company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.   As stated in Note 15 (iii) to the consolidated financial statements
(a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Holding

Company during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.
(b) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed final dividend for the year

which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us,
and based on the CARO reports issued by us in respect of Holding Company and Subsidiary included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For K.C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
UDIN: 22045024AIUGBB5379

Place : Vadodara
Date : May 11, 2022
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Diamines and Chemicals Limited on the consolidated financial statements of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Diamines
and Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
(Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the, “Guidance note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to consolidated Financial Statements and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K.C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106237W

Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
UDIN: 22045024AIUGBB5379

Place : Vadodara
Date : May 11, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st As at 31st

March,2022 March,2021
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 4A 3,753.01 2,243.88
(ii) Intangible assets 4B 2.01 2.68

(b) Capital work-in-progress 4C 187.96 15.39
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5 1,266.82 593.67
(ii) Others 6 1.89 3.16

(d) Other non-current assets 7 440.33 1,007.57
Total Non-Current Assets 5,652.02 3,866.35

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 8 229.72 1,254.17
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 1,001.61 943.25
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 100.33 49.97
(iii) Other bank balances 11 3,947.22 3,211.16
(iv) Others 12 - 8.69

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 45.46 48.72
(d) Other current assets 14 78.60 95.56

Total Current Assets 5,402.94 5,611.52
TOTAL ASSETS 11,054.96 9,477.87

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity Share capital 15 978.32 978.32
(b) Other Equity 16 9,041.05  7,520.37

Total Equity 10,019.37 8,498.69
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions 17 40.19 36.20
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 354.35 358.68

Total Non-Current Liabilities 394.54 394.88
(2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 - 30.24
(ii) Trade payables 20

(A) due to micro enterprises and  small enterprises 0.98 12.62
(B) due to other than micro enterprises and

 small enterprises 237.42 273.91
(iii) Other financial liabilities 21 191.56 187.42

(b) Other current liabilities 22 178.69 37.81
(c) Provisions 23 32.40 42.30

Total Current Liabilities 641.05 584.30
Total Liabilities 1,035.59 979.18
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,054.96 9,477.87

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  1-48

As per our report of  even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Executive Chairman Executive Director
DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
I Revenue from Operations 24 6,610.68 6,281.71
II Other Income 25 182.17 255.24
III Total income (I+II) 6,792.85 6,536.95
IV EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 26 1915.00 1,640.02
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and
work-in-progress 27 169.92 113.21
Employee benefits expense 28 835.65 736.69
Finance costs 29 8.55 7.54
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 30 166.80 178.55
Other expenses 31 1,487.21 1,280.43
Total expenses (IV) 4,583.13 3,956.44

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 2,209.72 2,580.51
VI Tax expense:

(a) Current Tax 34 575.56 695.55
(b) Tax relating to Earlier Years 34 11.37 (117.11)
(c) Deferred Tax 18 (48.57) (97.42)

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 1,671.36 2,099.49
VIII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

A. Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss :
(i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on the

Defined Benefit Plans 21.18 (2.33)
(ii) Gain/(Loss) on measuring equity instruments at 349.21 334.04

Fair Value carried through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVTOCI)

(iii) Income tax on above (44.23) (37.63)
B. Items that will be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss : - -
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year ((VII+VIII)) 1,997.52 2,393.57

Profit for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company 1,671.36 2,099.49
- Non-controlling interests - -
Other comprehensive income for the year
- Owners of the Company 326.16 294.08
- Non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income for the year
- Owners of the Company 1,997.52 2,393.57
- Non-controlling interests - -

X Earnings per equity share Basic & Diluted 35 17.08 21.46
Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-48

As per our report of  even date attached
For K. C. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Neela R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 045027
Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Executive Chairman Executive Director
DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898

Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,209.72 2,580.51
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation / Impairment of Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 192.53 311.75
Loss on Slump sale 59.76 -
Dividend Income (8.10) (61.28)
Interest Income (162.73) (189.87)
Finance Costs 8.55 7.54
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3.10 -
Unrealised Loss/(Gain) on Foreign Exchange (0.11) 0.76
Provision for Doubtful Receivables/Advances/
Sundry balances written off 0.80 9.04
Provision for Non Moving Stock - (1.10)
Provision/Advances/Sundry Balances written back (8.55) (0.04)

Operating Profit/(Loss) before changes in working capital 2,294.97 2,657.31

Adjustment for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade Receivables (58.36) 297.89
Inventories 1,024.44 (553.95)
Financial Assets and Other Assets 25.66 (8.63)
Long-term Loans and Advances and Other Non-current Assets (29.28) (120.07)

Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables (48.13) (0.36)
Other Financial Liabilities 4.14 15.24
Other Liabilities and provisions 134.97 (108.62)

Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital 3,348.41 2,178.60

Income-tax paid (621.02) (642.01)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 2,727.39 1,536.58

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 162.73 189.87
Dividend Received 8.10 61.28
Purchase of  Equity Instruments (325.09) (174.67)
Sale of Equity Instruments 14.16 100.27
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets
including CWIP & Capital Advances (1,497.12) (1,131.03)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 224.21 -
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents (736.07) (538.46)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (2,149.08) (1,492.74)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs (8.55) (7.54)
Payment of Dividend & Tax on Dividend (489.16) (391.33)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Borrowings (30.24) 30.24

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (527.95) (368.63)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 50.36 (324.78)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period (see Note 1) 49.97 374.75

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period (see Note 1) 100.33 49.97

Notes:
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hand 0.52 0.30
Balance with Banks 99.81 49.67

Cash and Cash equivalents 100.33 49.97

2 The above Consolidated  Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as
set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows”.

3 Figures for previous years have been regrouped wherever necessary for uniformity in presentation.

As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022
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 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  Amount

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 978.32
Changes in Equity share capital due to prior period errors -

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2020 978.32

Additions/(Reductions) -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 978.32
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 978.32

Additions/(Reductions) -

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 978.32

B. Other Equity (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars                                                                       Reserves & Surplus  Equity Total
General Retained Instruments

Reserve Earnings carried
through OCI

Balances as at 1st April, 2020 517.12 5,037.98 (15.45) 5,539.65
Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 2,099.49 2,099.49
Other Comprehensive Income for
the year, net of income tax* (1.74) (1.74)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity
instrument carried through OCI, net of income tax 295.83 295.83
Gain / (Loss) on sale of Investment (21.52) (21.52)
Payment of Dividend (Final) (365.67) (365.67)
Tax on Dividend (Final) (25.66) (25.66)

Balances as at 31st March, 2021 517.12 6,744.40 258.85 7,520.37

Movement during the year:
Profit for the period 1,671.36 1,671.36
Other Comprehensive Income for the year,
net of income tax* 15.85 15.85
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity
instrument carried through OCI, net of income tax 310.31 310.31
Gain / (Loss) on sale of Investment 12.32 12.32
Payment of Dividend (Final) (489.16) (489.16)

Balances as at 31st March, 2022 517.12 7,942.45 581.48 9,041.05

* Represent remeasurement gain / (loss) on the Defined Benefit Plans

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-48

As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
1. Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise Financial statements of “Diamines and Chemicals
Limited” (“the Holding Company” or “Parent Company”) and its Subsidiary (collectively referred as “the
Group”) for the year ended March 31, 2022.

The Holding company is a domestic public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India
having its registered office at Plot No. 13, New IPCL Rd, PCC Area, Vadodara, Gujarat. The Holding
Company’s shares are listed and traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE).

The Holding company has its Wholly owned Subsidiary (DACL Fine Chem Limited) domiciled in India.
The Group is mainly engaged in business of manufacturing and marketing of organic chemicals
compounds and Power Generation.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

i) Statement of Compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended).

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification G.S.R
255(E) Dated: 23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

ii) Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values / amortized
cost / net present value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilities. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classified
as current or non-current as per the Group’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (‘functional currency’).
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are presented in Indian currency (INR),
which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Group. All values are rounded off to
the nearest two decimal lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Principles of Consolidation:

Subsidiary:

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group”).

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is
exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies consistently
for material like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements except
otherwise stated. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by combining the financial statements
of the company and its subsidiaries on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flow after eliminating in full
intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flow relating to intra-group
transactions and unrealized profits. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Such unrealized profit/losses are
fully attributed to the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions.

The Group categorises assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described
as follows:

(i) Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(ii) Level 2: inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

(iii) Level 3: inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications
to observable related market data or Group’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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iii) Property, Plant and Equipment

The Holding Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property Plant &
Equipment (PPE) recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous
GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA
of Ind AS 101.

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) comprises of Tangible assets and Capital Work in progress.
PPE are stated at cost, net of tax/duty credit availed, if any, after reducing accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any; until the date of the Balance Sheet. The cost of PPE
comprises of its purchase price or its construction cost (net of applicable tax credit, if any), any cost
directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the management. Direct costs are capitalized until the
asset is ready for use and includes borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of PPE that are not yet ready for the intended use.

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

As per internal technical evaluation carried out by the management, the management of the
group believes that its Property, Plant & Equipment are of such nature that separate components
are not distinctly identifiable having different useful life. And therefore, Component level accounting
and reporting is not practically feasible for the group.

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment (other than Freehold land)
less their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method over the useful life of PPE as
stated in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on internal technical evaluation.The
management believes that the useful lives as assessed best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Useful lives of following class of PPE are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013, which are as under:-

Asset Description  Assets Useful life (in Years)

Factory Building 30

Building other than Factory Building 60

R& D Equipments 10

Office Equipments 5

Computers 3

Server 10

Road 5

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicle 8

Useful lives of following class of PPE are based on internal technical evaluation carried out by the
Group which is as under:-

Asset Description  Assets Useful life (in Years)

Plant & Machinery 20

Plant & Machinery (Tank) 25

Wind Electric Generators 22
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The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on an annual
basis and if necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Depreciation on additions/deletions to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of additions/deletions.

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or
other factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

iv) Intangible Assets

The Holding Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets
recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that
carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

Intangible assets with finite useful life acquired separately, are recognised only if it is probable
that future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of assets can be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated period of benefit, not exceeding ten years.

Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets are amortised on Straight Line Method from the date they are available for use,
over the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the Management as under:

Asset Description  Assets Useful life (in Years)

Software & Licenses 3

v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews at each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If
such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss. If at the reporting period, there is an indication that there is
change in the previously assessed impairment loss, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that is determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.”

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period to see if there are any indications that
impairment losses recognised earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. The impairment
loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates which has the effect of increasing the
asset’s recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognised. If it is so, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying
amount that has been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. After a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis
over its remaining useful life. Reversals of Impairment loss are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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vi) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for impairment and
other losses, where considered necessary. The basis of determining the value of each class of
inventory is as follows:

Inventories Cost Formulae

Raw Material, packing materials, fuels At first–in–first out basis(Net of eligible credit)
and stores and spares

Raw Material (Goods in transit) At invoice price

Work-in-progress At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour cost
and appropriate proportion of manufacturing
expenses and overheads based on stage of
completion.

Finished Goods (Including in Transit) At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour cost
and appropriate proportion of manufacturing
expenses and overheads.

Scrap At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value

vii) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenues from sale of goods including power units or services are recognised upon transfer of
control of the goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which
the group expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable duly
adjusted for variable consideration & customer’s right to return the goods and the same represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business. Revenue
also excludes taxes collected from customers. Any retrospective revision in prices is accounted
for in the year of such revision.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time on accrual basis as per the terms of the contract, when
there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainty is resolved.

When sales discount and rebate arrangements result in variable consideration, appropriate
estimates are made and estimated variable consideration is recognised as a deduction from
revenue at the point of sale (to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not be required). The Group typically uses the
expected value method for estimating variable consideration, reflecting that such contracts have
similar characteristics and a range of possible outcomes.

The contract asset or a contract liability is recognised when either party to a contract has performed,
depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.
When the group has a present unconditional rights to consideration, it is recognised separately as
a receivable.

Interest on investments is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts
invested and the rate of interest.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established.

Export incentives (Duty Drawback Scheme benefits) are accrued in the year when the right to
receive the same is established in respect of exports made and are accounted to the extent there
is no significant uncertainty about the measurability and ultimate realization/ utilization of such
benefits/ duty credit.

Other income is recognised on accrual basis except when realization of such income is uncertain.
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viii) Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using
closing exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the reporting period.

Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise.

ix) Leases

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, 2019, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-Consolidated balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

As a lessee

The Group’s lease assets  primarily consist of lease for land. The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Group assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

- the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognises a lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases  and corresponding Right-of-use Asset . For these short-term
and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Right-of-use Assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of
use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

x) Employees Benefits

Post Employment Benefit

(i) Defined Contribution Plan

The group’s contribution to defined contribution plan paid/payable for the year is charged to
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss.
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(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

The liabilities towards defined benefit schemes are determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method. Actuarial valuation under the Projected Unit Credit method are carried out at
the balance sheet date. Remeasurement gains/losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). These gains/losses which are recognised in OCI are
reflected in retained earnings and are not reclassified to Profit or Loss. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise it is
amortized on straight-line basis over the remaining average period until the benefits become
vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by plan assets. The plan assets are
measured at fair value.

(iii) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised undiscounted during the period employee renders services.
These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, performance incentives, etc.

(iv) Other Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an
actuarially determined liability at present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance
sheet date, using Projected Unit Credit method.

xi) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.

General and specific borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying
assets is added to the cost of the assets upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

xii) Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals
of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operating, investing
and financing activities.

xiii) Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

(i) Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(iii) Current and Deferred Tax Expense for the Year

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

xiv) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on
the basis of following:

· the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

· the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Amortised Cost:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost, if both of the following
conditions are met:

· the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

· the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through OCI:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTOCI, if both of the following conditions
are met:
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· the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

· the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following Financial Assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial Assets and are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and
bank balance

Simplified Approach

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
Receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

General Approach

For recognition of impairment loss on other Financial Assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the group reverts to recognising impairment
loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Group estimates provision on
trade receivables at the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
expense (or income) in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to receive the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL.

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

· Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

· Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by a Group are recognised at the proceeds received.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different.
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Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

xv) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to
manage its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these contracts are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and changes are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

xvi) Segment Reporting

The Group identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns
and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the
segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss
amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Making Body (CODM) in deciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Group.

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/
expenses/ assets/liabilities” respectively.

xvii) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax with the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing  the profit / (loss) after tax  as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, with the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xviii) Dividend

Provision is made in the accounts for the amount of any final dividend declared on the date of its
approval by the shareholders. Interim dividends, if any, are recorded as a liability on the date of its
declaration by the respective companies’board of directors.

xix) Research and Development

Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which it is incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development
is considered as an addition to Property, Plant & Equipment/Intangible Assets.

xx) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when,based on Group’s present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
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uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements by way of notes to
accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements by way of notes to
accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3. Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated
and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

Key estimates, assumptions and judgements

In particular, the Group has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial
statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

(i) Income taxes

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions as also to determine the amount
of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits.

(ii) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets are depreciated/amortised over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes or commercial obsolescence. Management reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount
of depreciation/amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation/
amortisaion for future periods is revised, if there are significant changes from previous estimates
and accordingly, the unamortised/depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of
the assets.

(iii) Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business, Contingent Liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Group. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very
difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the
Notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither recognised nor
disclosed as contingent liability. The management decides whether the matters need to be
classified as ‘remote’, ‘possible’ or ‘probable’ based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences
etc.
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(iv) Evaluation of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external
factors (significant decline in asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates
etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic
performance of the idle assets etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable amount
of the Property, Plant and Equipment and such assessment is based on estimates, future plans as
envisaged by Group.

(v) Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Group’s liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised in
the income statement and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depends upon
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

(vi) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical
experience. The receivables are assessed on an individual basis assessed for impairment
collectively, depending on their significance. Moreover, trade receivables are written off on a
case-to-case basis if deemed not to be collectable on the assessment of the underlying facts and
circumstances.

(vii) Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be
a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow
can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the
application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.
The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

(viii) Revenue Recognition:

Te Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer products and power units to the
customers. The Group assesses the products and power units promised in a contract and identifies
distinct performance obligations, if any, in the contract. Identification of distinct performance
obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to
benefit independently from such deliverables. Judgement is also required to determine the
transaction price for the contract. The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over time. The Group considers indicators
such as to who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product, transfer of significant risks
and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. The judgment is also
exercised in determining the variable consideration, if any, involved in transaction price and also
in estimating the impact of customer’s right to return the goods, based on prior experience. The
group has exercised judgments and concluded that it has only one performance obligation from
each of its contract with customers and it is being satisfied at a point in time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022
(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  Software & Total
Licenses

4B. Intangible assets

Gross Block

As at 1st April, 2020 1.84 1.84

Additions 2.43 2.43
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March,2021 4.27 4.27

Additions 0.85 0.85
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2022 5.12 5.12

Accumulated Amortisation

As at 1st April, 2020 0.59 0.59

Charge for the year 1.01 1.01
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2021 1.59 1.59

Charge for the year 1.52 1.52
Deductions/Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2022 3.11 3.11

Net Block

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2.68 2.68

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 2.01 2.01

Note :
1. The Holding Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets

recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that
carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

4C. Capital work-in-progress
Balance as at beginning of the year 15.39 115.83
Add: Additions during the year 1363.16 417.06
Less: Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment 1190.59 517.50

Total 187.96 15.39
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years  3 Years

4C(i) Ageing Schedule of Capital
work-in-progress (Projects in process):

As at 31st March, 2022

i) Projects in Progress 103.63 84.33 - - 187.96
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021

i) Projects in Progress 14.54 0.85 - - 15.39
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars               To be Completed in

 Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years  3 Years

4C(ii) Completion Schedule of CWIP whose
completion is overdue or has exceeded
it’s compared cost to it’s original plan:

As at 31st March, 2022

i) Projects in progress 148.48 - - - 148.48
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021

i) Projects in progress 15.39 - - - 15.39
ii) Projects tempararily suspended - - - - -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

5. Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments in other Entities
(a) Investments in Unquoted Securities (at Cost)

3,500 (P.Y. Nil) equity shares of
KLJ Organic diamines limited (Fully paid up)
(Face Value ` 10 per share)* 0.09 -
Total (a) 0.09 -

(b) Investments in Quoted Securities (at FVTOCI)
2,37,950 (P.Y. 2,37,950) Equity Shares of
Sintex Plastics Technology Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) 12.97 7.85
200 (P.Y.232) Equity Shares of Alkyl Amines Chemicals Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 5.72 13.22
15,147 (P.Y. 10,847) Equity Shares of Deepak Nitrite Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 339.86 179.68
6,500 (P.Y. 6,500) Equity Shares of P.I. Industries Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) 183.28 146.78
2,500  (P.Y. 2,500) Equity Shares of Reliance Industries Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 65.87 50.08
21,000 (P.Y. 21,000)  Equity Shares of UPL Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 161.62 134.79
6,500 (P.Y. 6,500) Equity Shares of GHCL Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 35.59 14.92
51,220 (P.Y.37,220) Equity Shares of Meghmani Organics Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) 53.42 43.40
6,215 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Meghmani Finechem Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 60.46 -
16,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Gujarat State Fertilizers &
Chemicals Limited (Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 2 per share) 25.93 -
24,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Gujarat Narmada Valley Fert. &
Chem Limited (Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 202.67 -
5,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Infosys Limited (Fully paid up)
(Face Value ` 5 per share) 95.34 -
1,350 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Jubilant Ingrevia Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 6.07 -
3,000 (P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Syngene International Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 10 per share) 17.93 -
87,950 (P.Y.87,950) Equity Shares of Sintex Industries Limited
(Fully paid up) (Face Value ` 1 per share) - 2.95
Total (b) 1,266.73 593.67
Total (a+b) 1,266.82 593.67
Aggregate cost of quoted investments 590.79 275.08
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,266.73 593.67
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 0.09 -

* During the year, the holding company and another entity namely KLJ Organic Limited have incorporated
Special Purpose Vehicle namely, KLJ Organic Diamines Ltd (“SPV”) under mutual collaboration. The
holding company has subscribed to equity shares of the SPV vide the Memorandum of Association,
amounting to an investment of ` 35,000/-. Pending finalization of : (a) definitive and determinative
terms & conditions on nature of arrangement/relationship; and (b) respective shareholders’ rights and
obligations through execution of Shareholders Agreement the said investment has been recognised
and measured at FVTOCI.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

6. Financial Assets - Others
Security Deposits
- Considered Good 1.89 3.16

Total 1.89 3.16

7. Other Non-current Assets
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated)
Capital advances 132.68 18.33
Capital Advance - Advance for ROU Asset - 712.14
Prepaid Expenses 5.60 13.48
Balances with Government Authorities
- CST 0.50 0.50
- Income Tax (Refund Receivable)                   165.84 129.20
- Income Tax paid under protest                     83.92 83.92
- GST Receivable                       1.79 -
Fixed deposit against BG*                     50.00 50.00

Total                   440.33 1,007.57

* Fixed deposit against BG are lien marked

8. Inventories*
Raw Materials                     24.59 885.79
Raw Materials - Goods in transit                           - 18.14
Work in Progress                     34.81 86.93
Finished goods                   110.51 227.26
Finished goods - Goods in transit                           - 1.05
Packing materials                       6.08 5.42
Fuel                     37.07 11.31
Stores and Spares                     16.66 18.27

Total                   229.72 1,254.17

* Valuation of inventories are done as per point no.(vi) of significant accounting policies (Note-2).
For hypothecation details refer Note-19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

9. Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered good
Others              1,001.61 943.25
Doubtful Receivable                         - 7.61
Less:- Allowance for Doubtful Receivable                         - 7.61

Total                1,001.61 943.25

Movement in allowance for Doubtful Debts
Balance at the beginning of the year                       7.61 -
Add:- Allowance loss Recognised                           - 7.61
Less:- Reversed during the year                       7.61 -
Less:- Amount Written off as Bad Debts                           - -

Balance at the End of the year                           - 7.61

9(i) Ageing Schedule for Trade receivables

    Outsanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not  Less 6 Less 1-2 2-3 More Total
Due than 6  months- than years years than

months 1 year 1 year 3 years

F.Y 2021-22

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 889.13 112.48 - - - - - 1,001.61

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good - - - - - - - -

v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

F.Y 2020-21

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 872.23 70.79 0.23 - - - - 943.25

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good - - - - - - - -

v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
In current account 38.66 49.67
In cash credit account* 61.15 -
Cash on hand 0.52 0.30

Total 100.33 49.97

* For hypothecation details Refer Note - 19.

11. Other Bank Balances
Other bank deposits with original maturity of more than
3 months up to 12 months 3,808.69 3,061.25
Accrued Interest on FD 94.56 107.10
Earmarked bank balances* 43.97 42.81

Total 3,947.22 3,211.16

* These balances represents unclaimed dividend account which is earmarked for payment of dividend
and cannot be used for any other purpose.

12. Financial Assets : Others
Wind Farm Income Receivable - 4.72
Insurance Receivable - 3.97

Total - 8.69

13. Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax (Net of provisions) 45.46 48.72

Total 45.46 48.72

14. Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Balances with Government Authorities 7.76 5.86
Prepaid Expenses 63.89 61.12
Advances to vendors 5.99 18.22
Employee Advance 0.11 0.11
Prepaid Current Employee Benefits (Gratuity) (Refer Note no.38) 0.85 -
Others - 10.25

Total 78.60 95.56

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

15. Equity Share Capital
Authorised
17,500,000 (P.Y. 17,500,000) Equity shares of ` 10/- each 1,750.00 1,750.00

Total 1,750.00 1,750.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
9,783,240 (P.Y. 9,783,240) Equity Shares ` 10/- each 978.32 978.32

Total 978.32 978.32

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting
period is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars  No. of Share
Shares Capital

As at 1st April, 2020 97,83,240 978.32
Additions/(Reductions) - -
As at 31st March, 2021 97,83,240 978.32

As at 1st April, 2021 97,83,240 978.32

Additions/(Reductions) - -

As at 31st March, 2022 97,83,240 978.32

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder                                 As at 31st March, 2022             As at 31st March, 2021
No. of % of No. of % of

shares Holding shares Holding

Amit M. Mehta 12,45,229 12.73% 12,37,726 12.65%

Cherry A Mehta 10,57,079 10.80% 10,53,278 10.77%

Perfo Chem (India) Pvt Ltd 9,65,029 9.86% 9,62,179 9.83%

Harsh Amit Mehta 4,95,110 5.06% - -

Finorga India Pvt Ltd 4,94,917 5.06% 4,92,067 5.03%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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Promoters’ Shareholding at the end of the year

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
end of the year end of the year

(As at 31st March, (As at 31st March,
2022)   2021)

No. of % of No. of % of % change
Shareholder's Name Shares total Shares total in share-

Shares Shares holding
of the of the during

company company the year

1. Amit Mahendra Mehta 12,45,229 12.73% 12,37,726 12.65% 0.08%

2. Cherry Amit Mehta 10,57,079 10.80% 10,53,278 10.77% 0.04%

3. Perfochem (India) Pvt. Ltd. 9,65,029 9.86% 9,62,179 9.83% 0.03%

4. Harsh Amit Mehta 4,95,110 5.06% 4,16,064 4.25% 0.81%

5. Finorga (India) Pvt. Ltd. 4,94,917 5.06% 4,92,067 5.03% 0.03%

6. Mohak Amit Mehta 4,87,250 4.98% 4,07,754 4.17% 0.81%

7. S. Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 4,86,200 4.97% 4,86,200 4.97% 0.00%

8. Pinakin Kantilal Patel 95,212 0.97% 95,212 0.97% 0.00%

9. Kokilaben M Mehta - 0.00% 1,54,588 1.58% -1.58%

Right, Preferences and restrictions attached to Shares

(i) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares having par value of  ` 10 each. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) The Board of Directors of the holding company in their meeting held on 11th May, 2022 have
recommended a final dividend of ` 3 per Equity Share (previous year ` 5 per equity share) to be
approved by the shareholders in the ensuing general meeting. On approval, this will result in an
outflow of ` 293.50 Lakhs (Previous year ` 489.16 Lakhs)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

16. Other Equity
General Reserve 517.12 517.12
Retained Earnings 7,942.45 6,744.40
Equity instruments carried through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 581.48 258.85

Total 9,041.05 7,520.37

Particulars relating to Other Equity

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 517.12 517.12
Additions/Deductions during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 517.12 517.12

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,744.40 5,037.98
Add: Net Profit for the year 1,671.36 2,099.49
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement
of defined benefit obligation, net of income tax 15.85 (1.74)
Less: Payments of dividends (Final) (489.16) (365.67)
Less: Tax on Dividends  (Final) - (25.66)

Balance at the end of the year 7,942.45 6,744.40

Equity instruments carried through other comprehensive income (OCI)
Balance at the beginning of the year 258.85 (15.45)
Add: Gain/(Loss) on sale of Investment 12.32 (21.52)
Add: Fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments
(Net of Taxes) 310.31 295.83

Balance at the end of the year 581.48 258.85

Total 9,041.05 7,520.37

Description of the nature and purpose of Other Equity

General Reserve :

The General Reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.
The reserve can be distributed/utilised by the Company in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings:

Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date and is net of amount transferred
to other reserves such as general reserves etc. & amount distributed as dividends and related dividend
distribution taxes.

Reserve for equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income :

This represents cumulative gains / (losses) arising on the measurement of equity instruments at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

17. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 40.19 36.20

Total 40.19 36.20

18. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax Liabilities 380.28 392.65
Less: Deferred tax Assets (25.93) (33.97)

Total 354.35 358.68

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening Recog- Recognised Closing
Balance nised in other Balance

in Profit Compreh-
or Loss ensive

Income

2021-22

Major Components and Reconciliation of
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 354.44 (49.50) - 304.94

Equity Instruments through FVTOCI 38.21 - 38.90 77.11

Provision for Provident Fund liability (2.52) - - (2.52)

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis (28.78) (1.16) 5.33 (24.61)

Provision for Doubtful debts (1.92) 1.92 - -

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (0.76) 0.20 - (0.56)

Total 358.68 (48.54) 44.23 354.35

2020-21

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 453.72 (99.28) - 354.44

Equity Instruments through FVTOCI - - 38.21 38.21

Provision for Provident Fund liability (2.91) 0.40 - (2.52)

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis (31.12) 2.93 (0.59) (28.78)

Provision for Doubtful debts - (1.92) - (1.92)

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (1.21) 0.44 - (0.76)

Total 418.49 (97.42) 37.63 358.68

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

19. Borrowings
Loan Repayable on Demand
(i) Secured

- Cash Credit from bank* - 30.24

Total - 30.24

*The Company has availed fund based working capital facilities viz., Cash Credit Facility and non-fund
based working facilities from Bankers viz., Bank Guarantees and Letter of Credits, which are secured
by hypothecation charge on Inventories, book debts and all other current assets of the company, as
primary security and registered mortgage charge over land & building and hypothecation charge on
plant & machinery as collateral security.
**The Company has availed borrowings from State bank of India against security of current assets.
The Quarterly Returns  or the Current Assets Statements filed by the company with the Bank/Financial
Institution are in the agreement with the books of account.

20. Trade Payables
Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been identified by the Company on the basis of the
information available. The relevant disclosures are given below :
* Payment made to suppliers beyond the due date during the year was `̀̀̀̀ Nil (P.Y. ` Nil). No interest
during the year has been paid to Micro and Small Enterprises as there were no delayed payments.
Further, interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end is `̀̀̀̀ Nil (P.Y. ` Nil).

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises* 0.98 12.62
Others 237.42 273.91

Total 238.40 286.53

20(i)Ageing Schedule for MSME and other Trade payables

                                                          Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars  Not Less 1-2 2-3 More  Total
Due  than years years than

1 year  3 years

F.Y 2021-22

A. Cases where due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME 0.98 0.98
(ii) Others 209.49 27.57 237.06
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME                    -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others 0.31 0.31

B. Cases where no due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME                    -
(ii) Others 0.05 0.05
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022



156

Diamines And Chemicals Limited
CIN NO:L24110GJ1976PLC002905

                                                          Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars  Not Less 1-2 2-3 More  Total
Due  than years years than

1 year  3 years

F.Y 2020-21

A. Cases where due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME 12.62 12.62
(ii) Others 251.38 6.86 258.24
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME                    -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others                    -

B. Cases where no due date of
payment is specified

(i) MSME                    -
(ii) Others 5.10 10.57 15.67
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME                    -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others                    -

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

21. Other Financial Liabilities
Forward Contract Liability 0.03 1.24
Unclaimed dividends 43.70 42.81
Payable for Capital Goods 5.53 0.97
Employee Bonus / Exgratia Payable 29.12 29.76
Salary Payable 39.18 38.68
Outstanding Liabilities Expenses 17.56 15.72
Commission Payable to Directors 49.63 51.90
Other Payables 6.81 6.34

Total 191.56 187.42

22. Other Current Liabilities
Liability for Statutory Payments 123.86 29.62
Contract Liability - Advance from Customers 54.83 8.19

Total 178.69 37.81

23. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity - 6.34
Compensated absences 20.14 22.92

Others
Others 12.26 13.04

Total 32.40 42.30
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

24. Revenue From Operations
(a) Sale of products

Manufactured Goods 6,513.68 6,209.64

(b) Sale of Power
Sale of Power generation from windmill 75.30 59.61

(c) Other Operating Revenue
Sale of Scrap 21.25 10.60
Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 0.45 1.86

Total 6,610.68 6,281.71

25. Other Income
Interest on Fixed and Other Deposits 162.73 189.87
Insurance Income - 3.97
Dividend Income 8.10 61.28
Exchange gains/(losses) on foreign currency 2.74 0.08
Profit/loss on Sale of Asset - -
Balances / Provisions written back (Net) 0.16 0.04
Miscellaneous income 0.05 -
Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Debts 7.61 -
Reversal of Provision for Non Moving Stock 0.78 -

Total 182.17 255.24

26. Cost of Materials consumed
Raw Materials Consumed :
Opening Stock 903.93 239.05
Add: Purchases 889.73 2,165.92
Less: Closing Stock 24.59 903.93

1,769.07 1,501.04
Packing Materials :
Opening Stock 5.42 4.91
Add: Purchases 146.59 139.49
Less: Closing Stock 6.08 5.42

145.93 138.98

Total 1,915.00 1,640.02

27. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress
Finished Goods
Closing Stock 110.51 228.31
Less: Opening Stock 228.31 232.26

(117.80) (3.95)

Work in Progress
Closing Stock 34.81 86.93
Less: Opening Stock 86.93 196.19

(52.12) (109.26)

Total 169.92 113.21
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

28. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus * 717.36 628.17
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 67.04 60.89
Staff Welfare Expenses 51.25 47.63

Total 835.65 736.69

*  Including Commission to Executive Chairman & Director

29. Finance Costs
Interest on
Cash Credit Facilities 2.80 0.06
Others 0.18 0.34
Other Borrowing Costs
Bank Charges 5.31 4.07
Processing Charges 0.26 3.07

Total 8.55 7.54

30. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation on PPE (Including Right-of-use Assets) 165.28 177.54
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1.52 1.01

Total 166.80 178.55
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

31. Other Expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parts 100.42 80.53
Power and Fuel 562.24 364.67
Factory Expenses 25.83 15.44
Material Handling 57.21 54.64

Repair and Maintenance
- Buildings 32.46 43.32
- Machinery 76.80 84.54
- Others 5.22 8.84
Rent 32.64 9.87
Insurance 55.78 30.18
Rates and Taxes 19.32 4.39
Incorporation Fees* - 2.57
Legal fees 1.15 1.00

Professional Fees
- R&D Consultancy fees 34.13 55.15
- Others 112.90 100.18
Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below) 10.61 11.46
Director’s Sitting fees 15.72 9.92
Commission to Non Executive Directors 6.79 7.58
Printing and Stationery 2.16 2.76
Security Charges 32.04 25.97
House Keeping Expenses 14.34 12.07
Travelling and Motor Car Expenses 31.54 9.14
Research and Development Expenses 3.07 1.32
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note (ii) below) 57.00 42.06
Selling Expenses 40.92 56.91
Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment 25.73 133.20
Loss on Deposit/Advances - 50.00
Loss on Slump sale 59.76 -
Donation Expenses - 25.00
Miscellaneous Expenses** 71.44 37.71

Total 1,487.21 1,280.43

*  Incorporation Fees relates to Wholly owned Subsidiary
   (DACL Fine Chem Limited) which was incorporated on 30th July, 2020
** None of the item individually accounts for more than ` 10,00,000 or
   1% of revenue whichever is higher.

(i) Payment to Auditors :
(a) Statutory Auditors

- As Auditor 8.04 7.95
- For Taxation Service 1.90 1.90
- Certification 0.15 1.16
- Reimbursement of Expenses 0.01 -

(b) Cost Auditors
- As Auditor 0.52 0.45

Total 10.61 11.46
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(ii) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: `̀̀̀̀ 57.00 Lakhs  (Previous

Year: ` 42.06 Lakhs)

(b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars In Cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash

(i) Construction/acquisition of any Asset - - -
(ii) On purposes other than above 57.00 57.00

(42.06) - (42.06)

32. Disclosure of the aggregate amount of research and development expenditure recognised as an
expense during the period - Research and Development (R&D) :
The Company has in-House R&D unit at its registered office and is registered with the Department of
Scientific & Industrial Research (DSIR), Ministry of Science & Technology, New Delhi.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Revenue Expenditure 220.88 163.76

Total 220.88 163.76

33. Disclosures as per Ind AS- 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”:

1. The Company derives revenues from sale of goods, power units and scrap from its contracts with
customers.  The revenues have been disclosed in Note No.24 “Revenue from Operations”.

2. The disaggregation of revenues is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenues from sale of goods 6,513.68 6,209.64
Revenues from sale of power units 75.30 59.61
Other Operating Revenue
- Revenues from sale of scrap 21.25 10.60
- Duty Drawback Scheme benefits 0.45 1.86

Total 6,610.68 6,281.71
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The revenues are further disaggregated into revenues from domestic as well as export market as
follows:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature  Domestic  Exports

For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,

2022  2021 2022 2021

Sale of goods 6,425.98 6,055.96 87.70 153.68
Sale of power units 75.30 59.61 - -
Other Operating Revenue 21.70 12.46 - -

Total 6,522.98 6,128.03 87.70 153.68

3. The movement in Company’s receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities are as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Receivables Contract Contract
Assets Liabilities

Balance as at the beginning of the year 943.25 - 8.19
Additions / (Adjustments) 58.36 - 46.64

Balance as at the end of the year 1,001.61 - 54.83

The revenue of `̀̀̀̀ 8.19 lakhs (P.Y. ` 5.59 lakhs) has been recognised from the carried forward
contract liabilities balance as at the beginning of the year.

4. The revenue from contracts with customers for the year includes variable consideration (volume
& Rate discounts) of ̀̀̀̀̀  2.00 lakhs (P.Y. ̀  6.40 lakhs), which has been deducted from the transaction
price. The company uses expected value method in measuring the variable consideration. There
were no constraints in estimating variable consideration.

5. The Company has applied practical expedient referred to in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and
accordingly, has not disclosed information related to remaining performance obligations. No
consideration from contracts with customers is excluded from the remaining performance
obligations.
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

34. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 on “Income Taxes”
A. Components of Tax Expenses/(Income)

a. Profit or Loss Section
Current Tax 575.56 695.55
Earlier Year 11.37 (117.11)
Deferred Tax (48.57) (97.42)

Income tax expense recognised in the
statement of profit or loss 538.36 481.02

Income tax relating to Other Comprehensive Income

b. Other Comprehensive Income Section
Remeasurement of Defined Benefits Plans 5.33 (0.59)
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 38.90 38.21

Income Tax Expense recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income 44.23 37.63

B. Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense/(Income) and
Accounting Profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
applicable in India
Profit before Tax 2,209.72 2,580.51
Corporate Tax rate as per Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on Accounting Profit 556.14 649.46
Effect of income exempt from tax (8.10) (15.42)
Effect of expenses/provisions not deductible in
determining taxable profit 57.14 29.53
Effect of concessions - (2.87)
Effect of change in tax rate due to switch to new tax regime - (56.79)
Effect of expenses/provisions deductible in
determining taxable profit (78.20) (5.77)
Tax adjustment of earlier years 11.37 (117.11)

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 538.36 481.02
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35. In accordance with Ind AS - 33, “Earnings Per Share”, the Basic and Diluted EPS have been
calculated as under:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Profits available to equity shareholders (` in Lakhs) 1,671.36 2,099.49
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 97,83,240 97,83,240

Earnings Per Share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each
- Basic & Diluted (in `) 17.08 21.46

36. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

(A) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

(a) Guarantees issued by the bankers on behalf of the Company 45.51 44.68

Total (a) 45.51 44.68

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 6.40 6.40

Total (b) 6.40 6.40

(c) Pending Litigations:
(i) Income Tax 132.76 175.74
(ii) Service Tax/Excise 66.34 66.34
(iii) Provident Fund 29.50 29.50

Total (c) 228.60 271.58

Total (a+b+c) 280.51 322.66

(B) Commitments:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances) 1286.48 103.39
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37. Leases
The Company has taken certain warehouses and vehicles on rent for its business operations under
leave and license agreements and rent agreements respectively. These are generally not non-
cancellable agreements and they are for the periods not exceeding 12 months under the said
agreements. The said agreements are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Lease Payments - Rent 32.64 9.87
Bus and Car Rent Payments (Included in note no. 28
under Staff Welfare Expenses) 26.10 21.97

The company has adopted Ind AS 116 w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. The Company has elected to apply
recognition exemption permitted under the said Ind AS and accounted these leases as short-term
leases. Hence, the payments in relation to these leases are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

38. Employee Benefits

The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

A. Defined Contribution Plans

i. Provident Fund

ii. Superannuation Fund

The Provident Fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the
Superannuation Fund is administered by the LIC of India as applicable for all eligible employees.
Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. These funds are recognised by the Income
Tax Authorities.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Contribution to Provident Fund 37.51 32.91

Superannuation Fund 3.52 4.25

Total 41.03 37.16

B. Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. Under the gratuity plan,
the eligible employees are entitled to post retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each
year of service until the retirement age of 58, subject to a payment ceiling of ̀  20 lakhs. The benefit
vests upon completion of five years of continuous service as per “The Payment of Gratuity Act” and
once vested it is payable to the employee on retirement or on termination of employment. The
Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India through its Gratuity Trust Fund.

The obligations under the compensated absences plan have been determined by Independent
Actuary using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method. Compensated absences is payable to all
eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or
resignation. At the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.
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The provision towards Compensated Absences is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Non-Current liability 40.19 36.20
Current liability 20.14 22.92

Total 60.33 59.12

Gratuity is defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to following Risks:

Interest Risk :

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities Rate will increase the
present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases
the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk :

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level
will increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk :

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in
India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt
instruments.

Mortality Risk :

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for the life time and payable till retirement age
only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

C. The Company offers the following employee benefits scheme to its employees

a. Gratuity  (Funded through annual payment to Life insurance corporation of India)

b. Compensated absences encashment (Unfunded)

a. Gratuity

Valuations in respect of above have been carried out by independent actuary, as at the
balance sheet date, based on the following assumptions:

Particulars                                                                                                  Valuation as at

31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021

i. Discount Rate (per annum) 6.90% 6.05%
ii. Rate of increase in compensation levels

(per annum) 6.00% 6.00%
iii. Expected Rate of Return on Assets 6.90% 6.05%
iv. Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00%
v. Mortality rate during the employment  Indian Assured Indian Assured

Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Table  (2012-14) Table

vi. Actuarial Valuation Method Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit  Method Credit  Method

vii. Retirement Age (years) 58 58
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viii. The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined after considering several
applicable factors such as the composition of the plan assets, investment strategy,
market scenario, etc.

ix. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India
securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

x. The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation,
seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

The provision towards the Gratuity is as under:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Current liability/(Asset) (0.85) 6.34

Total (0.85) 6.34

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

i. Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the
Beginning of the year 122.05 106.12
Interest Cost 5.53 6.01
Current Service Cost 18.02 15.91
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (46.45) (11.07)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations -
Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (5.16) 1.25
Due to change in Demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations -
Due to Experience (16.59) 3.83
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the
End of the year 77.40 122.05

ii. Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year 115.71 34.63
Interest Income 5.69 1.95
Contributions by the Employer 3.88 87.45
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (46.45) (11.07)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.58) 2.75
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the year 78.25 115.71

iii. Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year) (77.40) (122.05)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 78.25 115.71
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 0.85 (6.34)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.85 (6.34)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

iv. Expenses Recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss for the Current year
Current Service Cost 18.02 15.91
Net Interest Cost (0.16) 4.06

Expenses Recognised 17.86 19.97

v. Expenses Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) for Current year
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligation For the year (21.75) 5.08
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.58 (2.75)

Net (Income)/Expenses For the year Recognised in OCI (21.17) 2.33

vi. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments : From the Fund
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years
From the Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 19.19 61.34
2nd Following Year 15.67 5.91
3rd Following Year 10.17 15.01
4th Following Year 2.01 9.69
5th Following Year 1.17 1.84

Sum of Years 6 to 10 17.98 14.10

vii. Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 77.40 122.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (3.48) (2.50)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 3.80 2.72
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 3.48 2.53
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (3.41) (2.45)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.10 0.04
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.10) (0.04)

Notes on Sensitivity Analysis

i. Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumptions of the Company which are
discount rate and salary assumptions as of the end of the reporting period, showing how the
defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes is presented in the table
above.

ii. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit
obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

iii. There is no change in the method from the previous period and the points /percentage by
which the assumptions are stressed are same to those in the previous year.

39. Information on Segment Reporting as per Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”
Operating Segments are those components of business whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the Chief Operating Decision making body in the Company to make decisions for performance
assessment and resource allocation. The Company has identified two reportable primary segments,
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Speciality Chemicals and Power Generation in terms of Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”. (Refer
Note 4A) (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year

ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021
A. Segment Revenue (Sales / Services to external customers):

a. Speciality Chemicals 6,535.38 6,222.10
b. Power Generation 75.30 59.61

Total Revenue 6,610.68 6,281.71
B. Segment Results :

Profit/ (Loss)  before Tax and Interest
a. Speciality Chemicals 2,189.67 2,545.60
b. Power Generation (65.68) (149.25)

Total 2,123.99 2,396.35
Less:Interest Expense 8.55 7.54
Others Unallocated Expenses (94.27) (191.70)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2,209.72 2,580.51
Current Tax 575.56 695.55
Tax relating to Earlier Years 11.37 (117.11)
Deferred Tax (48.57) (97.42)

538.37 481.02
Profit /(Loss) after Tax 1,671.35 2,099.49

Other Information :
Segment Assets
a. Speciality Chemicals 9,692.00 8,476.28
b. Power Generation 80.70 403.46
c. Others – Unallocated 1,282.26 598.13

Total 11,054.96 9,477.87
Segment Liabilities
a. Speciality Chemicals 1,035.29 978.93
b. Power Generation - -
c. Others – Unallocated 0.30 0.25

Total 1,035.59 979.18
Capital Expenditure during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals – Property, Plant and Equipment

and Capital work-in-progress 1,948.06 517.18
– Capital Advances 132.68 730.47

b. Power Generation - -
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 2,080.74 1,247.65
Depreciation during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals 147.45 134.01
b. Power Generation 19.35 44.54
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 166.80 178.55
Impairment during the year
a. Speciality Chemicals - 14.50
b. Power Generation 25.73 118.70
c. Others – Unallocated - -

Total 25.73 133.20
Notes :
i. One customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue for F.Y. 2021-22 i.e. `̀̀̀̀ 1609.89

lakhs (P.Y. ` 1472.70 lakhs).
ii. The revenue from the said customer pertains to the Speciality Chemicals.
iii. The Group does not have any other reportable segment in terms of Ind AS 108 on “Operating

Segments”.
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40. Related Party Disclosures:

Name of related parties and description of their relationships are as under:

(A) Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Amit M Mehta Executive Chairman
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam Executive Director
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra Professional Director

(Independent Director upto 5th November,2020)
Professional Director-Non executive directors
(w.e.f 06th November, 2020)

Mr. Dhruv Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Ambrish Dalal Independent Director
Mrs. Kejal Pandya Independent Director

(B) Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Mohak Mehta Relative of Key Managerial personnel

(C) Director of WOS:

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala Director of WOS (w.e.f. 17th November, 2020)

(D) Entities over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise significant influence:
S Amit & Co.
S Amit Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.
Divya Desh Tour & Travels LLP
Holidaywalas.Com Travel LLP
Perfo Chem (I) Private Limited
Reaxa Chemistry Solutions LLP
Hi End Property Developers LLP
Mohar Properties and Trading LLP
Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd.
Chem Amit
Godiawala Trading Corporation
R.S.Chhabra & Co. (Prop. Mr Rajendra Chhabra)
Malabar Capital Advisors Private Limited
Malabar Capital Private Limited
Karuv Management Services LLP
RDVM Partners LLP
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The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in ordinary course of business
during the year:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction  Entities over Key Relative Director Total
which Key Managerial of Key of WOS

Managerial personnel Manag-
Personnel erial

exercise perso-
significant nnel

influence

Remuneration paid - 148.91 23.35 16.37 188.63
- (122.68) (23.35) (5.50) (151.53)

Mr. Amit M Mehta - 92.23 - - 92.23
- (71.23) - - (71.23)

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam - 56.68 - - 56.68
- (51.45) - - (51.45)

Mr. Mohak Mehta - - 23.35 - 23.35
- - (23.35) - (23.35)

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala - - - 16.37 16.37
- - - (5.50) (5.50)

Sitting Fees paid - 15.72 - - 15.72
- (9.92) - - (9.92)

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra - 4.44 - - 4.44
- (2.84) - - (2.84)

Mr. Ambrish Dalal - 3.84 - - 3.84
- (2.44) - - (2.44)

Mr. Dhruv Mehta - 3.80 - - 3.80
- (2.40) - - (2.40)

Mrs. Kejal Pandya - 3.64 - - 3.64
- (2.24) - - (2.24)

Professional Fees 12.00 - - - 12.00
(6.00) - - (9.42) (15.42)

Mr. Tanmay Godiawala - - - - -
- - - (9.42) (9.42)

R.S.Chhabra & Co. 12.00 - - - 12.00
(Prop. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra) (6.00) - - - (6.00)

Commission - 49.63 - - 49.63
- (51.90) - - (51.90)

Mr. Amit M Mehta - 24.69 - - 24.69
- (27.57) - - (27.57)

Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam - 18.15 - - 18.15
- (16.75) - - (16.75)

Mr. Rajendra Chhabra - 3.09 - - 3.09
- (3.45) - - (3.45)

Mr. Dhruv Mehta - 1.23 - - 1.23
- (1.38) - - (1.38)

Mr. Ambrish Dalal - 1.23 - - 1.23
- (1.38) - - (1.38)

Mrs. Kejal Pandya - 1.23 - - 1.23
- (1.38) - - (1.38)
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(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Nature of Transaction  Entities over Key Relative Director Total
which Key Manag- of Key of WOS

Managerial erial Manag-
Personnel perso- erial

exercise nnel perso-
significant nnel

influence

Reimbursement of 4.98 0.14 - 0.88 5.99
Expenses (0.34) (0.60) - - (0.94)
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam - 0.14 - - 0.14

- (0.60) - - (0.60)
S Amit Speciality 4.22 - - - 4.22
Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. (0.34) - - - (0.34)
S Amit & Co. 0.75 - - - 0.75

-
Mr. Tanmay Godiawala - - - 0.88 0.88

- - - - -

Purchase of Goods 2.74 - - - 2.74
(2.95) - - - (2.95)

Reaxa Chemistry 2.74 - - - 2.74
Solutions, LLP (2.95) - - - (2.95)

Sale of Goods - - - - -
(0.27) - - - (0.27)

Reaxa Chemistry - - - - -
Solutions, LLP (0.27) - - - (0.27)

Rent of Office 5.52 - - - 5.52
- - - - -

Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd.  5.52 - - - 5.52
- - - - -

Rent of P&M 21.24 - - - 21.24
- - - - -

Reaxa Chemistry 21.24 - - - 21.24
Solutions, LLP - - - - -

Advance for 16.99 - - - 16.99
Capital Assets - - - - -
Reaxa Chemistry 16.99 - - - 16.99
Solutions, LLP - - - - -

Amounts in bracket indicate previous year figures.
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Balance as at: (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Other payable: 60.73 65.12
Remuneration :
Mr. Amit M Mehta 4.87 4.05
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 2.33 2.62
Mr. Mohak Mehta 1.49 1.60
Mr. Tanmay Godiawala 0.98 1.07

Legal & Professional Fees
R.S.Chhabra & Co. (Prop. Mr. Rajendra Chhabra) - Net of TDS 0.90 0.93

Commission to Directors:
Mr. Amit M Mehta 24.69 27.57
Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam 18.15 16.75
Mr. Rajendra Chhabra 3.09 3.45
Mr. Dhruv Mehta 1.23 1.38
Mr. Ambrish Dalal 1.23 1.38
Mrs. Kejal Pandya 1.23 1.38

Purchase of Goods
Reaxa Chemistry Solutions, LLP - 2.94

Rent of Office
Finorga (I) Pvt. Ltd. - Net of TDS 0.53 0.00

Other receivable: 16.99 -

Advances : -                             -
Reaxa Chemistry Solutions, LLP 16.99 0.00

Note - ‘Terms and Conditions’ (i) All outstanding balances are unsecured.

Category-wise break up of compensation to key management personnel is as follows: (`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Short-term employee benefits 191.75 166.99
Post-employment benefits* - -

* Does not include provisions for incremental gratuity and compensated absences liabilities, since the
provisions are based on actuarial valuations for the Company as a whole.
Note:-
During the year, the holding company and another entity namely KLJ Organic Limited have incorporated
Special Purpose Vehicle namely, KLJ Organic Diamines Ltd (“SPV”) under mutual collaboration. The
company has subscribed to equity shares of the SPV vide the Memorandum of Association, amounting
to an investment of ̀  35,000/-. Pending finalization of : (a) definitive and determinative terms & conditions
on nature of arrangement/relationship; and (b) respective shareholders’ rights and obligations through
execution of Shareholders Agreement the said investment has been recognised and measured at
FVTOCI.
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41. Disclosures on financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides
additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial
statements.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities:

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial
assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

I. Financial assets:
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
(a) Investments in equity instruments (Quoted) 1,266.73 593.67

Total 1,266.73 593.67

Measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables 1,001.61 943.25
Cash and cash equivalents 100.33 49.97
Other bank balances 3,947.22 3,211.16
Other financial assets 1.89 11.85

Total 5,051.05 4,216.23

II. Financial liabilities:
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Derivatives
- Forward Contracts 0.03 1.24

Total 0.03 1.24

Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings - 30.24
Trade payables 238.40 286.53
Other financial liabilities 191.53 186.18

Total 429.93 502.95

The carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximates to their fair values.

(b) Capital Management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to:

- Safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that the Group is able to provide
maximum return to stakeholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group’s Board of Directors reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this
review, the Board considers the cost of capital, risk associated with each class of capital
requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Fair Value Measurement:

This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial
assets.
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Fair value of the Company’s financial assets / financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars           As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

1. Financial assets / liabilities at fair
value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)

Financial assets / (liabilities)
measured at fair value
Gain/(Loss) on Forward Contract (0.03) (1.24)

Valuation technique and key input:  Mark to market Statement provided by State Bank of
India

Particulars           As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2. Financial assets / liabilities at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets measured
at fair value
Investments in equity Shares -
Quoted 1,266.73 593.67
Unquoted 0.09

Valuation technique and key input: Level 1-Quoted bid prices from Stock Exchange

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
Unlisted shares valued at fair value
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Purchases 0.35 -
Fair value changes (0.26) -
Balance at the end of the year 0.09 -

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
(but fair value disclosures are required)

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the financial statements (except fair value of investments in equity instruments
and Derivatives - Forward Contracts) approximate their fair values.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended 31st
March, 2022.
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3. Disclosure related to Derecognition of  investments in equity instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income during the reporting period;

(a) the reasons for disposing of the investments - The holding company has disposed of
certain long-term investments in equity instruments in line with its risk management
policy to mitigate the associated risks.

(b) the fair value of the investments at the date of derecognition - Sale Price on the date
of sale.

(c) the cumulative gain or loss on disposal - Loss on disposal ` ` ` ` ` 9.20 Lakhs (P.Y Loss `
21.52 Lakhs)

(c) Financial risk management:

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its
business strategies. The risk management policy is approved by the Company’s Board. The
Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings (if any), trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to
provide guarantees to support its operations in selective instances. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations and investments. The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk etc. The objectives of the Company’s financing policy are to secure solvency, limit
financial risks and optimise the cost of capital. The Company’s capital structure is managed using
equity and debt ratios as part of the Company’s financial planning.

(a) Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices- will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return. The major
components of market risk are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

(I) Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company undertakes
transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise.

Foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2022 are hedged as per the policy of the
company

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Amount in `̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs Amount in ` in Lakhs
Foreign Foreign

currency currency

Payable USD 2,11,877.23 161.17 2,12,200.56 157.35

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022



176

Diamines And Chemicals Limited
CIN NO:L24110GJ1976PLC002905

Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

The Company is principally exposed to foreign currency risk against USD. Sensitivity of profit
or loss arises mainly from USD denominated receivables and payables.As per management’s
assessment of reasonable possible changes in the exchange rate of +/- 5% between USD-
INR currency pair, sensitivity of profit or loss only on outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the period end is presented below:

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

USD sensitivity at year end For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2022 March,  2021

Assets:
Weakening of INR by 5% - -
Strengthening of INR by 5% - -

Liabilities:

Weakening of INR by 5% -8.06 -7.87
Strengthening of INR by 5% 8.06 7.87

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover
foreign currency payments in USD. The Company enters in to contracts with terms up to 120
days.

Forward cover is obtained from bank for each of the aggregated exposures and the Trade
deal is booked. The forward cover deals are all backed by actual trade underlines and
settlement of these contracts on maturity are by actual delivery of the hedged currency for
settling the underline hedged trade transaction.

Though the forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments, they are used for
hedging foreign currency exposure and outstanding as at year ended 31st March, 2022 and
31st March, 2021 are as under:-

Outstanding contracts                  Average exchange rates             Foreign Currency

31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021 2022 2021

USD-Sell 76.07 74.15 2,11,877.23 2,12,200.56

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Outstanding contracts                       Nominal Amounts                     Fair Value

31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2022 2021 2022 2021

In INR 161.17 157.35 161.14 156.11

Total 161.17 157.35 161.14 156.11

(II) Interest rate risk:
The Company invests the surplus fund generated from operations in bank deposits . Bank
deposits are made for a period of up to 12 months and carry interest rate of 5%-5.10% as per
prevailing market interest rate. Considering these bank deposits are short term in nature,
there is no significant interest rate risk. There is no significant utilisation of borrowings.
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(III) Price risk:
The Company’s equity securities price risk arises from investments held and classified in the
balance sheet at fair value through OCI. The Company’s equity investments in Securities are
publicly traded.

Price sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of profit or loss in respect of investments in equity shares at the end of the reporting
period for +/-5% change in price and net asset value is presented below:

Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2022 would increase / decrease by
` ` ` ` ` 63.34 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 29.69 Lakhs)  as a result of 5% changes in fair value of equity investments
measured at FVTOCI.

(b) Credit risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Company’s exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled
by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management of the Company.
Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance
with banks, investments in equity instruments and trade receivables.

None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks,
which may result into financial loss for the company.

(c) Liquidity  risk:

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the
obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, liquidity management also
involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liquidity
ratios.

The information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to
pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based
on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

(`̀̀̀̀ in Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 Years 3 Years to 5 Years
1 year to 3 Years 5 Years and above

As at 31st March, 2022
Borrowings -
Trade payables 238.09 0.31
Other Financial Liabilities 191.56

Total 429.65 0.31

As at 31st March, 2021
Borrowings 30.24
Trade payables 286.53
Other Financial Liabilities 187.42

Total 504.19
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42. Additional Information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements to the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 :
Name of the Entity Net Assets (Total Share in Profit/ Share in Other Share in Total
in the Group Assets Minus  (Loss) after Tax Comprehensive Comprehensive

Total Liabilities) Income Income
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount

Consolidated (` in Consolidated (` in Total (` in Total (` in
Net Assets  lakhs) Profit or lakhs) lakhs) lakhs)

Loss

As at 31st March, 2022
Parent Company
Diamines and Chemicals Limited 100.05 10,024.24 100.06 1,672.35 100.00%          326.16 100.05   1,998.51

Sub Total (A) 10,024.24 1,672.35 326.16 1,998.51
Subsidiary Company
DACL Fine Chem Limited 0.15 15.13 -0.06 (0.99) 0.00 - -0.05 (0.99)

Sub Total (B) 15.13 (0.99) - (0.99)

Eliminations (C) -0.20 (20.00) - - - - -

Sub Total (A+B+C) 100.00 10,019.38 100.00 1,671.36 100.00 326.16 100.00 1,997.52

As at 31st March, 2021

Parent Company
Diamines and Chemicals Limited 100.05 8,502.57 100.18 2,103.37 100.00 294.08 100.16 2,397.45

Sub Total (A) 8,502.57 2,103.37 294.08 2,397.45

Subsidiary Company

DACL Fine Chem Limited 0.01 1.12 -0.18 (3.88) 0.00 - -0.16 (3.88)

Sub Total (B) 1.12 (3.88) - (3.88)

Eliminations (C) -0.06 (5.00) - - - - - -

Sub Total (A+B+C) 100.00 8,498.69 100.00 2,099.49 100.00 294.08 100.00 2,393.57
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44. The Group does not have any Immovable Property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the
Company.

45. The Group does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

46. The Group has sought balance confirmations from trade receivables and trade payables, wherever
such balance confirmations are received by the Company, the same are reconciled and appropriate
adjustments if required, are made in the books of account.

47. The previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make it comparable with the
current year.

48. Approval of Consolidated Financials Statements
The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 11th May,
2022.

As per our report of  even date attached                                   For and on behalf of the Board
For K. C. Mehta & Co. Amit Mehta G. S. Venkatachalam
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director

DIN: 00073907 DIN: 02205898
Neela R. Shah
Partner Dipen Ruparelia Hemaxi Pawar
Membership No. 045027 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Vadodara
Date : 11th May, 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
NAME OF THE COMPANY:Diamines and Chemicals Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE: Plot No.13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346

Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand over at the Entrance of the Hall.
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 46th Annual General Meeting held at Plot No.13, PCC Area, P.O.
Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346 at 12:00 Noon on Tuesday, the 28th June, 2022.

Regd. Folio/DP ID & Client ID

Name and Address of the Shareholder (s):

No. of shares held

If Shareholder (s), Please Sign here If Proxy, Please Sign here

Form No: MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
NAME OF THE COMPANY:Diamines and Chemicals Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE: Plot No.13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346

Name of Member (s):
Registered Address:

E-mail Id:
Folio No/Client Id:
DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of __________, Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1) Name: _________________________________
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature: ________________________, or failing him

2) Name: _________________________________
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature: ________________________, or failing him

3) Name: _________________________________
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature: ________________________,
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 46th (Forty-Sixth) Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the 28th day of June, 2022 at 12:00 Noon at Registered
office of the Company situated at Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P. O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346 and/or
at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Resolution No:
1) To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone audited Financial Statements of the Company for the

Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon including the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year
ended on March 31, 2022.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam (DIN: 02205898) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3) To declare Final Dividend of ` 3/- per Ordinary (Equity) share of ` 10/- each for the financial year
2021-2022.

4) Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor
5) To approve payment of Remuneration of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as Non-Executive Director in the

category of Professional Director exceeding fifty per cent of the total Remuneration/compensation/fees
payable to all other Non-Executive Director of the Company for the financial year 2022-23

6) Re-appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya (DIN: 07048046) as an Independent Non-Executive Director

Sign this _______ day of ________ 2022

Signature of Shareholder: ___________________________
Signature of proxy holder (s): ________________________

Note: this form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix
Revenue

Stamp
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Form No: MGT-12
POLLING PAPER

[Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN NO: L24110GJ1976PLC002905
NAME OF THE COMPANY:Diamines and Chemicals Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE: Plot No.13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals, Vadodara – 391 346

BALLOT PAPER

Sr. Particulars Details
No
1 Name of the First Named Shareholder (In Block Letters)

2 Postal Address

3 Registered Folio No. /*Client ID. No. (*Applicable to
investors holding shares in dematerialized form)

4 Class of Share

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/Special resolution enumerated below by recording my
assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner:

No.                                           Particulars

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March
31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon including the audited consolidated financial
statement of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2022.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. G. S. Venkatachalam (DIN:
02205898) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

3 To declare Final Dividend of ` 3/- per Ordinary (Equity) share of `
10/- each for the financial year 2021-2022.

4 Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor

5 To approve payment of Remuneration of Mr. Rajendra Chhabra as
Non-Executive Director in the category of Professional Director
exceeding fifty per cent of the total Remuneration/compensation/
fees payable to all other Non-Executive Director of the Company for
the financial year 2022-23

6. Re-appointment of Mrs. Kejal Pandya (DIN: 07048046) as an
Independent Non-Executive Director

Place:
Date:                                                                                          _____________________
                                                                                                          (Signature of Shareholder)

No. of
Shares
held by

me

I dissent
from the

resolution

I assent
to the

resolution
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NOTE
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If undelivered, please return to

Diamines and Chemicals Limited
Regd Office :
Plot No. 13, PCC Area, P.O. Petrochemicals,
Vadodara - 391 346.
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